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(2020 30 )
@)
(
)|« @)

PING AN INSURANCE

1 9,859,081 57.52| 567,126,178.33 74.00| 729,571,994.00| 6.09
GROUP CO-A
KWEICHOW MOUTAI

2 457,293 633.53| 289,706,907.63| 1,274.90| 583,002,845.70| 4.87
CO LTD-A
CHINA MERCHANTS

3 9,387,378 26.02| 244,228,283.42 35.02| 328,745,977.56| 2.75
BANK-A
JIANGSU HENGRUI

4 2,819,348 50.36| 141,992,607.25 93.39| 263,298,909.72| 2.20
MEDICINE C-A
GREE ELECTRIC

5 4,380,047 38.80| 169,965,363.36 55.22| 241,866,195.34| 2.02
APPLIANCES 1-A
WULIANGYE YIBIN

6 1,766,404 68.63| 121,219,550.26 135.50| 239,347,742.00| 2.00
CO LTD-A
MIDEA GROUP CO

7 LT0-A 4,422,485 46.22 204,401,044.72 52.25 231,074,841.25| 1.93
INDUSTRIAL BANK

8 13,234,950 16.40| 217,060,399.63 16.51| 218,509,024.50| 1.82
CO LTD -A
CITIC SECURITIES

9 CO-A 7,753,140 19.88| 154,169,803.26 23.39| 181,345,944.60| 1.51
INNER MONGOLIA

10 5,549,138 22.95| 127,379,388.55 29.29| 162,534,252.02| 1.36
YILI INDUS-A
CHINA VANKE CO

11 LTD -A 5,310,111 23.32| 123,815,887.17 26.86| 142,629,581.46| 1.19
CHINA YANGTZE

12 8,009,120 15.55| 124,513,636.12 17.61| 141,040,603.20| 1.18
POWER CO LTD-A
LUXSHARE

13 PRECISION 2,920,951 17.89 52,261,739.76 46.10 134,655,841.10| 1.12
INDUSTR-A
CHINA MINSHENG

14 22,592,412 6.57| 148,514,051.26 5.87| 132,617,458.44| 1.11
BANKING-A
BANK OF

15 COMMUNICATIONS 25,041,643 5.87| 147,031,478.22 5.18| 129,715,710.74] 1.08
CO-A
PING AN BANK CO

16 LTD-A 8,830,860 11.69| 103,232,745.45 14.02| 123,808,657.20| 1.03
AGRICULTURAL BANK

17 34,920,789 3.46| 120,905,398.08 3.44| 120,127,514.16| 1.00
OF CHINA-A
SHANGHAI PUDONG

18 10,685,626 10.96| 117,152,183.92 10.61| 113,374,491.86| 0.95
DEVEL BANK-A
ANHUI CONCH

19 1,822,123 32.27 58,791,161.50 60.00| 109,327,380.00] 0.91
CEMENT CO LTD-A
POLY REAL ESTATE

20 6,515,246 11.97 77,959,873.41 16.51| 107,566,711.46]| 0.90
GROUP CO -A
HANGZHOU

21 HIKVISION 3,402,033 26.01 88,485,905.02 31.17| 106,041,368.61] 0.89
DIGITAL-A
SANY HEAVY

22 5,366,004 10.88 58,400,070.52 19.47| 104,476,097.88| 0.87
INDUSTRY CO LTD-A
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@)
(
)|« )
)
GUANGDONG WENS
23 3,382,367 37.88| 128,118,175.58 30.08| 101,741,599.36| 0.85
FOODSTUFFS -A
MUYUAN FOODSTUFF
24 785,643 49.57 38,946,691.81 128.90| 101,269,382.70| 0.85
CO LTD-A
IND & COMM BK OF
25 19,630,368 5.21| 102,313,540.52 5.15| 101,096,395.20| 0.84
CHINA-A
CHINA STATE
26 19,101,497 5.10 97,438,551.30 5.18 98,945,754.46| 0.83
CONSTRUCTION -A
FOSHAN HAITIAN
27 737,312 88.78 65,458,335.76 126.49 93,262,594.88| 0.78
FLAVOURING -A
HAITONG
28 SECURITIES CO 7,364,826 13.49 99,370,570.55 12.63 93,017,752.38| 0.78
LTD-A
CHINA PACIFIC
29 2,860,880 30.34 86,800,139.21 30.75 87,972,060.00| 0.73
INSURANCE GR-A
EAST MONEY
30 4,889,573 14.75 72,128,652.01 17.48 85,469,736.04| 0.71
INFORMATION CO-A
(2020 30 )
)
30
14
11
11
10
8
6
4
2
2
1
1
100

72/308




EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2012 17 2012 12
2019 2020
( ) ) ( ) )
(2012 12 ) 14,118,488,634.52 213,753,917,927 24.9664 378
(2013 12 ) 9,174,011,845.27 138,894,539,337 23.1054 350
(014 12 ) 11,839,565,023.94 179,251,014,462 35.3314 535
(2015 12 ) 10,243,577,104.73 155,087,757,366 38.0449 576
(2016 12 ) 9,476,624,954.07 143,476,101,805 33.8390 512
(017 12 ) 11,093,503,378.06 167,955,641,144 41.1328 623
(2018 12 ) 11,816,519,143.00 178,902,099,825 30.7122 465
(2019 12 ) 17,382,025,714.00 263,163,869,310 41.7586 632
2019 13,310,802,734.42 201,525,553,399 37.0207 560
2019 14,593,504,133.18 220,945,652,576 39.1982 593
2019 14,121,110,969.51 213,793,620,078 39.1600 593
2019 12,958,810,259.84 196,196,387,334 38.8454 588
2019 14,230,606,377.10 215,451,380,549 38.9933 590
2019 10 14,490,352,125.76 219,383,931,184 39.7050 601
2019 11 14,449,119,309.06 218,759,666,339 39.0939 592
2019 12 17,382,025,714.00 263,163,869,310 41.7586 632
2020 17,859,733,633.61 270,396,367,213 40.8036 618
2020 13,329,990,254.20 201,816,052,449 40.1204 607
2020 12,321,668,552.20 186,550,061,880 37.5432 568
2020 11,975,058,293.73 181,302,382,567 39.3463 596
2020 15 11,727,118,919.21 177,548,580,437 39.8475 603
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( )
( ) )

) 382

(2012 12 ) 25.20
(2013 12 ; 23.00 348
(014 12 ) 34.35 520
015 12 ) 38.10 577
2016 12 ; 33.85 512
017 12 N 41.13 623
(2018 12 ) 30.74 465
(019 12 ; 41.76 632
2019 37.02 560
2019 39.20 593
2019 39.16 593
2019 38.85 588
2019 38.99 590
2019 10 39.71 601
2019 11 39.09 592
2019 12 41.76 632
2020 40.80 618
2020 40.12 607
2020 37.54 568
2020 39.35 596
2020 15 39.85 603
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(C )
0 0
0.18 3
0.30 5
0.30 5
0.30 5
0.33 5
0.35 5
0.39 6
(H)()
3.98
-6.71
53.79
8.53
-10.27
22.53
-24.48
37.24
() ( ) 100x(@ b) b
ETF ( )
) ) )
565,500,000 0 565,500,000
65,100,000 233,550,000 397,050,000
168,150,000 230,100,000 335,100,000
273,900,000 339,750,000 269,250,000
92,850,000 82,050,000 280,050,000
153,150,000 163,500,000 269,700,000
214,650,000 99,600,000 384,750,000
159,000,000 127,500,000 416,250,000

(

)
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(b) ETF
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ETF
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

2019 2018
11 17,264,823,312 261,389,424,944 11,751,134,225 177,912,172,167
28,852 436,819 105,269 1,593,773
13 142,201,975 2,152,937,902 99,894,957 1,512,409,649
17,407,054,139 263,542,799,665 11,851,134,451 179,426,175,589
(@ 9,376,356 141,958,030 6,843,073 103,604,125
(b) 4,706,120 71,250,657 3,330,735 50,427,328
7,483,461 113,299,600 22,479,440 340,338,722
3,462,488 52,422,068 1,962,060 29,705,588
25,028,425 378,930,355 34,615,308 524,075,763
10 17,382,025,714 263,163,869,310 11,816,519,143 178,902,099, 826
17,407,054,139 263,542,799,664 11,851,134,451 179,426,175,588
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

2019

2018

315,604,448

375,714

4,778,251,343

5,688,310

220,881,891

321,073

3,344,151,830

4,861,045

315,980,162

4,783,939,653

221,202,964

3,349,012,875

@ ( 100,832,534) (  1,526,604,565) ( 71,764,466) ( 1,086,514,015)
@ ( 18,580,843) (  281,450,223) ( 16,844,930) (  255,032,240)
®) ( 11,018,725) (  166,823,497) ( 7,602,593) (  115,103,258)
( 144,171)  ( 2,182,749) ( 132,924)  ( 2,012,469)

( 51,958) ( 786,644) ( 51,958) ( 786,644)

( 5,761,859) ( 87,234,545) ( 4,100,827) ( 62,086,521)

( 145,569)  ( 2,203,915) ( 274,497)  ( 4,155,885)

( 853,809) ( 12,926,668) ( 973,828) ( 14,743,756)

(  137,398,468) ( 2,080,212,806) (  101,746,023) ( 1,540,434,788)
178,581,694 2,703,726,847 119,456,941 1,808,578,087
3,830,353,720 57,991,555,321 (  2,970,552,210) ( 44,974,160,459)
225,255,286 3,410,365,030  ( 182,771,058) ( 2,767,153,818)
4,055,609,006 61,401,920,351 (  3,153,323,268) ( 47,741,314,277)
4,234,190,700 64,105,647,198 (  3,033,866,327) ( 45,932,736,190)

( 31,604,717) (  479,858,015) ( 22,177,816) (  335,772,134)
4,202,495,983 63,625,789,183 (  3,056,044,143) ( 46,268,508,324)
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31
2018 269,700,000 11,093,007,702 167,948,136,608
214,650,000 7,507,649,975 113,665,820, 622
( 99,600,000) ( 3,631,861,891) ( 54,986,389,030)
( 3,056,044,143) ( 46,268,508,324)
( 96,232,500) ( 1,456,960,050)
2018 12 31 2019 384,750,000 11,816,519,143 178,902,099, 826
159,000,000 6,271,130,574 94,944,916,890
(  127,500,000) ( 4,765,789,486) ( 72,154,052,819)
4,202,495,983 63,625,789,183
(  142,330,500) ( 2,154,883,770)
2019 12 31 416,250,000 17,382,025,714 263,163,869,310
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

2019 2018

4,234,190,700 64,105,647,198 (  3,033,866,327) ( 45,932,736,190)
5,513,689,087) ( 83,477,252,777) (  716,152,024) ( 10,842,541,643)
76,417 1,156,953 502,692 7,610,757
2,533,283 38,353,905 704,670 10,668,704
1,375,385 20,823,329 ( 846,976) ( 12,823,217)
1,500,428 22,716,480 173,645 2,628,985
1,274,012,874) ( 19,288,554,912) ( 3,749,484,320) ( 56,767,192,604)
31,694,717) 479,858,015)  ( 22,177,816) (  335,772,134)
1,305,707,591) ( 19,768,412,927) ( 3,771,662,136) ( 57,102,964,738)
142,330,500) 2,154,883,770) ( 96,232,500) ( 1,456,960,050)
6,256,134,595 94,717,877,768 7,505,544,920 113,633,950,089
4,765,789,486) ( 72,154,052,818) ( 3,631,861,891) ( 54,986,389,030)

1,348,014,609

20,408,941,180

3,777,450,529

57,190,601,009

42,307,018 640,528,253 5,788,393 87,636,271

99,894,957 1,512,409,649 94,106,564 1,424,773,379
13 142,201,975 2,152,937,902 99,894,957 1,512,409,650
13 142,201,975 2,152,937,902 99,894,957 1,512,409,649

283,934,571

350,714

4,298,769,405

5,309,810

198,728,187

296,961

3,008,744,751

4,495,990
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

ChinaAMC ETF

2012 28

SFC

2012 17
03188
TSE

2014 30

ROFII

ROFII
SAFE

2.1

IFRS 1ASB
SFC

1575

SAFE

CSI 300 Index
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104(1)

ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF

SEHK
83188 2012 10 26
2013 27
SAFE
RQFII
RQFII
SAFE
RQFII
Index
Index A
1ASB
SFC E

FVPL



ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

2.2

IFRIC 23
IFRS

IFRIC 23

2015- 2017

IFRS

IAS 12

IFRIC 23

1AS

IAS 12

12

2019
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31
2.3
2019 12 31 IFRS
IFRS
1AS 1AS
2020
1AS 1AS
2020
(a

IFRS
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

(a

FVPL
FVPL

FVPL
FVPL
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

(a

¢

FVPL

FVPL

(d
FVPL
FVPL

FVPL EIR
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

¢

FVPL EIR

EIR

ECL
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

ECL

12

ECL

ECL
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

SEHK

FVPL
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

(a

(b
(c

¢

(e

(a

1
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

(a

¢
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

FVPL

FVPL

FVPL

FVPL

NAV

(a
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

¢

( @)
@C )

~

12
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31
SFC
(a
0.70
2019 12 31 100,832,534 2018
71,764,466 2019 12 31 9,376,356
2018 6,843,073
(b
Citibank N_A.
Citibank (China) Co., Limited PRC
0.07 0.10
4,000
2019 12 31
11,018,725 2018 7,602,593 2019 12 31 4,280,120

2018 2,898,735

110/308
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ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

(c
2019 12 31
64,948 2019 12 31
55,206 2018 162,021

(d
2019 12 31 426,000
2019 12 31

CITIC Securities Co. Ltd.

Citigroup Global Markets Ltd.

2018

2019
CITIC Securities Co. Ltd. 25,745,999
Citigroup Global Markets 248,245,831
Ltd.
2018

CITIC Securities Co. Ltd.

824,898,467
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64,948 2018

0.08 2018 0.08

2018 432,000

19,179 2018 659,885
198,597
19,179 0.19 0.07
198,597 1.80 0.08
659,885 6.16 0.08
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31
(e
2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018

Citibank, N.A. 11 6,406,671,773 6,313,891,648
Citibank (China) Co., Limited 11 10,858,151,539 5,437,242 ,577
Citibank, N.A. 13 60,492,934 65,837,624
Citibank (China) Co., Limited 13 81,709,041 34,057,333
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

14 26 26A
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

10
10
2019 12 31
31,694,717 2018 22,177,816

90
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31
2018
2018 20
2018 12 31
2019 25

2019 12 31

2019
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( 3,056,044,143)

3,153,323,268

97,279,125
0.35 ( 96,232,500)
( 1,046,625)

4,202,495,983

(  4,055,609,006)

146,886,977

0.39 ( 142,330,500)

( 4,556,477)
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ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

10.

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 2018
384,750,000 269,700,000
159,000,000 214,650,000

( 127,500,000) ( 99,600,000)
416,250,000 384,750,000

2019 2018

17,382,025,714 11,816,519,143

41.7586 30.7122
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

11.

2019 2018

17,264,823,312 11,751,134,225

12.

116/308



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

12.

2019
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ChinaAMC ETF
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2019 12 31
12.
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019
17,232,845 31,978 17,264,823
2018
11,577,361 173,773 11,751,134
2019 12 31 Zhejiang Huayou
Cobalt Company Limited 603799
2019 12 31 2019 12 31
2018 12 31
2019 12 31
(1) CITIC Securities Company Limited 600030 ,

(2) Zhongtian Financial Group Co Ltd

Technology Group Co Ltd

600485

118/308
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF

ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

12.

2018 12 31 CITIC Securities Co
Ltd 600030
11 (1) Aluminum Corp of China
Ltd 601600 (2) Aurora Optoelectronics Co Ltd 600666 3)
China CSSC Holdings Ltd 600150 (4) CSSC Offshore and Marine Engineering
Group Co Ltd 600685 (5) Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Co Ltd
600332 (6) Inner Mongolia Junzheng Energy & Chemical Industry Group Co
601216 (7) Kingenta Ecological Engineering Group Co Ltd
002470 (8) Leshi Internet Information & Technology Corp Beijing 300104
(9) Wanda Film Holding Co Ltd 002739 (10) Wanhua Chemical Group Co Ltd
600309 (11) Wintime Energy Co Ltd 600157

2019 2018

152,106,663

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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ChinaAMC ETF
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2019 12 31
12.
2019 12 31 2019 12
31
2018 12 31
173,772,995 ”3
70
2018 12 31
2018 12 31
AVAC 8,310,912 8,310,912
AVAC ( (8,310,912) (8,310,912)
1,259,125 1,259,125
( (1,259,125) (1,259,125)
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31
12.
2019 2018
173,772,995 275,973,391
152,106,663
23,998,061
(173,772,995) (278,305,120)
173,772,995
23,998,061
13.
2019 2018
142,201,975 99,894,957
Citibank, N.A. Citibank (China) Co., Ltd.
14. SFC

7.1
10
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

14. SFC

SFC 10

(a Index 10
(b Index
Index

SFC

SFC

2019 12 31 10 Index

15.
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31
15.
(a
(
Index A Index
Index
Index A Index
Index A
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 2018
A

33,656,344 0.19

313,101,578 1.80 155,751,686 1.32
1,621,648,908 9.33 1,144,357,293 9.68
2,081,533,378 11.98 1,007,341,778 8.52

356,869,261 2.05 302,021,096 2.56
5,802,193,133 33.38 4,105,222,508 34.74
1,232,843,815 7.09 785,344,855 6.65
1,976,664,431 11.37 1,650,803,060 13.97
1,602,379,443 9.22 864,490,195 7.32
1,046,120,327 6.03 816,167,680 6.91

785,622,344 4.52 559,396,070 4.73

412,190,350 2.37 360,238,004 3.05
17,264,823,312 99.33 11,751,134,225 99.45
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31
15.
(a
(
Index
2019 12 31 Index 2018
863 2018 588
Index 2018
(
(

100 2018 100

1
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF

ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

15.

(b

IFRS

IFRS
IFRS ECL
2019 12 31
142,230,827 2018
100,000,226
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31
15.
(b
IFRS
FVPL
IFRS
IFRS
PRC
S&P
2019 12 31
Citibank, N.A. 6,406,671,773 A+ S&P
Citibank (China) Co., Limited 10,858,151,539 A+ S&P
2018 12 31
Citibank, N.A. 6,313,891,648 AA- S&P
Citibank (China) Co., Limited 5,437,242 ,577 BBB+ S&P

2019 2018 12 31

126/308
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ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

15.

(c

2019 12 31

FVPL

2018 12 31
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

15.

(c

2019 12 31
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17,264,823 17,264,823

29 29

142,202 142,202
142,202 17,264,852 17,407,054
9,376 9,376

4,706 4,706

7,483 7,483

3,463 3,463

16,859 8,169 25,028
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF

ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

15.

(c

2018 12 31

11,577,361 173,773 11,751,134

105 105

99,895 99,895
99,895 11,577,466 173,773 11,851,134
6,843 6,843

3,331 3,331

22,479 22,479

1,962 1,962

32,653 1,962 34,615

FVPL
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31
16.

17.

2020 CoVID-19
COVID-19
Index NAV
2020 2020 27 9.44 9.51
40,500,000

138,600,000

18.

2020 27
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

Tiangi Lithium Corp 1,115,187 33,656,344 0.19
ChinaFilmCo Ltd 933,489 14,207,703 0.08
China Satel lite Communications Co Ltd 502,782 5,691,492 0.03
China United Network Communications Ltd 11,658,864 68,670,709 0.40
Focus Media Information Technology Co Ltd 12,858,955 80,497,058 0.46
Giant Network Group Co Ltd 766,017 13,834,267 0.08
Mango Excel lent Media Co Ltd 660,009 23,073,915 0.13
Oriental Pearl Group Co Ltd 2,571,547 24,069,680 0.14
Perfect World Co Ltd/China 641,561 28,318,502 0.16
Wanda Film Holding Co Ltd 1,046,263 18,989,673 0.11
Vﬁ/igu Sanqi Interactive Entertainment Network Technology Group Co 1,327,463 35,748,579 0.21
BAIC BluePark New Energy Technology Co Ltd 1,738,975 10,155,614 0.06
BYD Co Ltd 1,133,234 54,021,265 0.31
China Grand Automotive Services Group Co Ltd 4,087,190 13,324,239 0.08
China International Travel Service Corp Ltd 1,214,930 108,068,024 0.62
China Shipbuilding Industry Group Power Co Ltd 847,668 16,953,360 0.10
Chongqing Changan Automobile Co Ltd 2,444,231 24,515,637 0.14
Fuyao Glass Industry Group Co Ltd 1,749,871 41,979,405 0.24
Great Wall Motor Co Ltd 1,512,822 13,388,475 0.08
Gree Electric Appliances Inc of Zhuhai 6,032,141 395,587,807 2.28
Guangzhou Automobi le Group Co Ltd 1,159,224 13,551,329 0.08
Haier Smart Home Co Ltd 4,622,285 90,134,558 0.52
Hangzhou Robam Appliances Co Ltd 591,139 19,986,410 0.11
HLA Corp Ltd 1,662,928 12,771,287 0.07
Huayu Automotive Systems Co Ltd 1,971,429 51,237,440 0.29
Midea Group Co Ltd 6,084,846 354,442,279 2.04
Offcn Education Technology Co Ltd 844,707 15,103,361 0.09
Oppein Home Group Inc 166,990 19,537,830 0.11
SAIC Motor Corp Ltd 4,392,759 104,767,302 0.60
Shanghai Yuyuan Tourist Mart Group Co Ltd 1,937,320 15,188,589 0.09
Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town Co Ltd 5,136,888 40,016,358 0.23
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31

Songcheng Performance Development Co Ltd 1,091,512 33,738,636 0.19
Suning.com Co Ltd 4,667,252 47,185,918 0.27
TCL Corp 16,928,953 75,672,420 0.44
Zhejiang Century Huatong Group Co Ltd 2,985,303 34,122,013 0.20
Zhejiang Supor Co Ltd 210,984 16,199,352 0.09
Anhui Gujing Distillery Co Ltd 154,220 20,961,582 0.12
Foshan Haitian Flavouring & Food Co Ltd 1,021,656 109,838,237 0.63
Guangdong Haid Group Co Ltd 998,924 35,961,264 0.21
Hebei Yangyuan Zhihui Beverage Co Ltd 530,264 15,393,564 0.09
Henan Shuanghui Investment & Development Co Ltd 1,253,071 36,376,651 0.21
Inner Mongolia Yili Industrial Group Co Ltd 7,630,818 236,097,509 1.36
Jiangsu Yanghe Brewery Joint-Stock Co Ltd 760,693 84,056,577 0.48
Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd 623,315 737,381,645 4.24
Luzhou Laojiao Co Ltd 910,549 78,926,387 0.46
Muyuan Foodstuff Co Ltd 1,084,801 96,319,481 0.56
New Hope Liuhe Co Ltd 2,635,747 52,583,153 0.30
Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory Co Ltd 323,542 29,021,717 0.17
Tongwei Co Ltd 2,435,936 31,983,840 0.18
Wens Foodstuffs Group Co Ltd 4,660,861 156,604,930 0.90
Wuliiangye Yibin Co Ltd 2,435,298 323,918,987 1.86
Yonghui Superstores Co Ltd 4,788,840 36,107,854 0.21
China Coal Energy Co Ltd 2,307,670 11,584,503 0.07
China Oilfield Services Ltd 748,397 14,369,222 0.08
China Petroleum & Chemical Corp 16,766,047 85,674,500 0.49
China Shenhua Energy Co Ltd 4,132,407 75,416,428 0.43
CNOOC Energy Technology & Services Ltd 2,512,000 7,360,160 0.04
Offshore Oil Engineering Co Ltd 2,769,832 20,441,360 0.12
PetroChina Co Ltd 12,145,731 70,809,612 0.41
Shaanxi Coal Industry Co Ltd 5,008,804 45,029,148 0.26
Shanxi Meijin Energy Co Ltd 1,531,700 14,443,931 0.08
Yanzhou Coal Mining Co Ltd 1,111,780 11,740,397 0.07
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Agricultural Bank of China Ltd 47,965,037 176,990,986 1.02
Anxin Trust Co Ltd 2,743,163 12,179,644 0.07
Avic Capital Co Ltd 6,745,220 32,714,317 0.19
Bank of Beijing Co Ltd 18,531,469 105,258,744 0.61
Bank of Changsha Co Ltd 1,289,837 11,698,821 0.07
Bank of Chengdu Co Ltd 2,258,299 20,482,772 0.12
Bank of China Ltd 26,388,763 97,374,535 0.56
Bank of Communications Co Ltd 34,397,343 193,657,041 1.11
Bank of Guiyang Co Ltd 3,214,631 30,731,872 0.18
Bank of Hangzhou Co Ltd 2,564,050 23,486,698 0.14
Bank of Jiangsu Co Ltd 11,560,570 83,698,527 0.48
Bank of Nanjing Co Ltd 7,440,326 65,251,659 0.37
Bank of Ningbo Co Ltd 3,530,233 99,376,059 0.57
Bank of Shanghai Co Ltd 8,894,427 84,408,112 0.49
Bank of Xi"an Co Ltd 610,727 4,745,349 0.03
Bohai Leasing Co Ltd 2,318,447 8,810,099 0.05
Caitong Securities Co Ltd 3,141,843 35,628,500 0.20
Changjiang Securities Co Ltd 4,842,974 34,578,834 0.20
China CITIC Bank Corp Ltd 3,841,182 23,700,093 0.14
China Construction Bank Corp 8,416,089 60,848,323 0.35
China Everbright Bank Co Ltd 19,944,142 87,953,666 0.51
China Galaxy Securities Co Ltd 1,618,229 18,787,639 0.11
China Great Wall Securities Co Ltd 417,100 5,781,006 0.03
China Life Insurance Co Ltd 2,087,629 72,795,623 0.42
China Merchants Bank Co Ltd 12,906,181 485,014,282 2.79
China Merchants Securities Co Ltd 3,582,663 65,526,906 0.38
China Minsheng Banking Corp Ltd 31,079,299 196,110,377 1.13
China Pacific Insurance Group Co Ltd 3,933,064 148,827,142 0.86
Chinalin Securities Co Ltd 333,444 4,981,653 0.03
CITIC Securities Co Ltd 9,849,489 249,192,072 1.43
CSC Financial Co Ltd 556,978 16,932,131 0.10
Dongxing Securities Co Ltd 1,723,000 22,640,220 0.13
East Money Information Co Ltd 6,723,173 106,024,438 0.61
Everbright Securities Co Ltd 2,449,930 32,094,083 0.17
Founder Securities Co Ltd 5,154,003 44,685,206 0.26
GF Securities Co Ltd 3,702,203 56,162,420 0.32
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Guosen Securities Co Ltd

Guotai Junan Securities Co Ltd

Guoyuan Securities Co Ltd

Haitong Securities Co Ltd

Hithink RoyalFlush Information Network Co Ltd
Hongta Securities Co Ltd

Huatai Securities Co Ltd

Huaxia Bank Co Ltd

Hubei Biocause Pharmaceutical Co Ltd
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Ltd
Industrial Bank Co Ltd

Industrial Securities Co Ltd

Minmetals Capital Co Ltd

New China Life Insurance Co Ltd

Orient Securities Co Ltd/China
People®s Insurance Co Group of China Ltd
Ping An Bank Co Ltd

Ping An Insurance Group Co of China Ltd
Qingdao Rural Commercial Bank Corp

SDIC Capital Co Ltd

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co Ltd
Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co Ltd

Sinolink Securities Co Ltd

SooChow Securities Co Ltd

Southwest Securities Co Ltd

Tianfeng Securities Co Ltd

Western Securities Co Ltd

Zheshang Securities Co Ltd

Aier Eye Hospital Group Co Ltd

Beijing Tongrentang Co Ltd

Changchun High & New Technology Industry Group Inc
Chengdu Kanghong Pharmaceutical Group Co Ltd
Chongging Zhifei Biological Products Co Ltd
Dong-E-E-Jiao Co Ltd

Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Co Ltd
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3,079,363
5,640,619
2,526,011
10,134,983
269,360
502,340
5,526,155
7,696,084
2,476,226
27,005,668
18,213,072
5,867,661
615,760
1,049,519
4,479,467
1,337,600
12,151,363
13,568,035
767,100
2,114,996
14,704,217
11,282,004
3,031,350
3,008,837
3,527,989
656,700
2,194,457
1,669,200

1,559,983
677,973
183,113
325,000
597,494
571,873
713,929

38,646,006
104,295,045
23,416,122
156,686,837
29,389,870
8,424,242
112,236,208
59,028,964
17,432,631
158,793,328
360,618,826
41,543,040
5,086,178
51,583,859
48,199,065
10,152,384
199,889,921

1,159,524,271

4,963,137
32,021,039
181,891,164
57,763,860
28,191,555
30,058,282
18,310,263
4,833,312
21,505,679
18,578,196

61,712,927
19,105,279
81,851,511
12,015,250
29,671,552
20,227,148
25,423,012
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.22
.60
.13
.90
.17
.05
.65
.34
.10
.91
.07
.24
.03
.30
.28
.06
.15
.67
.03
.18
.05
.33
.16
.17
.10
.03
.12
1

.35
A1
A7
.07
.17
.12
.15
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Hangzhou Tigermed Consulting Co Ltd 646,926 40,853,377 0.24
Huadong Medicine Co Ltd 1,096,668 26,736,766 0.15
Hualan Biological Engineering Inc 1,058,296 37,199,104 0.21
Hubei Jumpcan Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 417,299 10,090,290 0.06
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine Co Ltd 3,877,085 339,322,479 1.95
Jointown Pharmaceutical Group Co Ltd 715,075 10,118,311 0.06
Lepu Medical Technology Beijing Co Ltd 1,342,232 44,401,034 0.25
Meinian Onehealth Healthcare Holdings Co Ltd 3,429,658 51,067,608 0.29
Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical Group Co Ltd 1,250,781 33,270,775 0.19
Shanghai Pharmaceuticals Holding Co Ltd 1,440,389 26,459,946 0.15
Shanghai RAAS Blood Products Co Ltd 2,489,918 18,475,192 0.11
Shenzhen Salubris Pharmaceuticals Co Ltd 526,246 10,493,345 0.06
Sichuan Kelun Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 1,083,893 25,460,647 0.15
Tasly Pharmaceutical Group Co Ltd 1,134,444 17,493,126 0.10
Tonghua Dongbao Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 1,773,846 22,439,152 0.13
Walvax Biotechnology Co Ltd 1,546,752 50,176,635 0.29
WuXi AppTec Co Ltd 910,038 83,832,701 0.48
Yunnan Baiyao Group Co Ltd 633,371 56,642,369 0.33
Zhangzhou Pientzehuang Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 370,116 40,664,645 0.23
Zhejiang NHU Co Ltd 1,618,213 37,639,634 0.22
AECC Aviation Power Co Ltd 1,125,580 24,402,573 0.14
Air ChinalLtd 3,751,496 36,351,996 0.21
AVIC Aircraft Co Ltd 1,728,206 28,308,014 0.16
AVIC Shenyang Aircraft Co Ltd 528,314 16,694,721 0.10
AVICOPTER PLC 362,113 17,276,411 0.10
Beijing New Building Materials PLC 1,061,562 27,016,753 0.16
Beijing Originwater Technology Co Ltd 2,380,404 18,091,070 0.10
China Avionics Systems Co Ltd 656,161 9,343,733 0.05
China Communications Construction Co Ltd 2,941,370 26,942,949 0.16
China Eastern Airlines Corp Ltd 5,606,510 32,573,823 0.19
China Gezhouba Group Co Ltd 3,470,626 23,183,782 0.13
China National Chemical Engineering Co Ltd 3,083,894 19,860,277 0.11
China Rai lway Construction Corp Ltd 5,767,819 58,485,685 0.34
China Rai lway Group Ltd 10,201,040 60,594,178 0.35
China Shipbuilding Industry Co Ltd 11,460,175 60,051,317 0.35
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China Southern Airlines Co Ltd 5,378,364 38,616,654 0.22
China Spacesat Co Ltd 747,379 15,971,489 0.09
China State Construction Engineering Corp Ltd 26,282,737 147,708,982 0.85
COSCO SHIPPING Holdings Co Ltd 4,850,483 25,562,045 0.15
CRRC Corp Ltd 12,180,327 86,967,535 0.50
Dagin Railway Co Ltd 7,449,797 61,162,833 0.35
Fangda Carbon New Material Co Ltd 2,040,818 24,816,347 0.14
Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport Co Ltd 1,302,646 22,731,173 0.13
Hainan Airlines Holding Co Ltd 14,412,330 24,933,331 0.14
Han"s Laser Technology Industry Group Co Ltd 1,072,082 42,883,280 0.25
Jiangsu Zhongtian Technology Co Ltd 3,069,956 25,480,635 0.15
Metallurgical Corp of China Ltd 8,918,170 24,970,876 0.14
NARI Technology Co Ltd 2,883,442 61,071,302 0.35
Ningbo Zhoushan Port Co Ltd 4,952,038 18,817,744 0.11
Power Construction Corp of China Ltd 9,570,887 41,537,650 0.24
Qingdao Port International Co Ltd 603,600 4,146,732 0.02
Sany Heavy Industry Co Ltd 7,386,281 125,936,091 0.72
SF Holding Co Ltd 1,104,662 41,082,380 0.24
Shanghai Construction Group Co Ltd 5,563,745 19,695,657 0.11
Shanghai Electric Group Co Ltd 4,570,917 22,763,167 0.13
Shanghai International Airport Co Ltd 1,199,072 94,426,920 0.54
Shanghai International Port Group Co Ltd 5,798,729 33,458,666 0.19
Shanghai M&G Stationery Inc 465,728 22,699,583 0.13
Shenzhen Inovance Technology Co Ltd 1,308,434 40,090,418 0.23
Siasun Robot & Automation Co Ltd 1,369,066 19,166,924 0.11
Spring Airlines Co Ltd 466,496 20,474,509 0.12
STO Express Co Ltd 375,296 7,318,272 0.04
Suzhou Gold Mantis Construction Decoration Co Ltd 2,014,204 17,765,279 0.10
TBEA Co Ltd 4,657,191 30,970,320 0.18
Weichai Power Co Ltd 5,995,384 95,206,698 0.55
XCMG Construction Machinery Co Ltd 5,886,239 32,197,727 0.19
Xiamen C&D Inc 1,766,729 15,882,894 0.09
Xinjiang Goldwind Science & Technology Co Ltd 3,448,788 41,213,017 0.24
YTO Express Group Co Ltd 700,800 8,865,120 0.05
Yunda Holding Co Ltd 833,816 27,766,073 0.16
Zhejiang Chint Electrics Co Ltd 1,348,715 36,145,562 0.21
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Zhejiang Sanhua Intelligent Controls Co Ltd 1,727,510 29,937,748 0.17
Zhengzhou Yutong Bus Co Ltd 1,663,446 23,704,106 0.14
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co Ltd 6,488,235 43,341,410 0.25
360 Security Technology Inc 511,710 12,030,302 0.07
Aisino Corp 1,398,468 32,402,504 0.19
Avary Holding Shenzhen Co Ltd 315,158 14,150,594 0.08
AVIC Jonhon Optronic Technology Co Ltd 661,189 25,826,042 0.15
Beijing Shiji Information Technology Co Ltd 391,892 15,283,788 0.09
BOE Technology Group Co Ltd 29,670,761 134,705,255 0.77
Chaozhou Three-Circle Group Co Ltd 1,315,589 29,311,323 0.17
Dawning Information Industry Co Ltd 792,405 27,401,365 0.16
Fiberhome Telecommunication Technologies Co Ltd 876,196 24,051,580 0.14
Foxconn Industrial Internet Co Ltd 2,233,987 40,814,942 0.23
Gigadevice Semiconductor Beijing Inc 243,842 49,960,787 0.29
Glodon Co Ltd 845,996 28,746,944 0.17
GoerTek Inc 2,837,980 56,532,562 0.33
Guangzhou Shiyuan Electronic Technology Co Ltd 103,475 8,867,808 0.05
Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Co Ltd 4,683,415 153,335,007 0.88
Hengtong Optic-electric Co Ltd 1,668,343 27,127,257 0.16
Hundsun Technologies Inc 806,709 62,705,491 0.36
Iflytek Co Ltd 1,928,264 66,486,543 0.38
Lens Technology Co Ltd 976,203 13,491,125 0.08
LONGi Green Energy Technology Co Ltd 3,308,090 82,139,875 0.47
Luxshare Precision Industry Co Ltd 4,023,470 146,856,655 0.84
OFILM Group Co Ltd 2,382,228 37,162,757 0.21
Sanan Optoelectronics Co Ltd 3,063,283 56,241,876 0.32
Shengyi Technology Co Ltd 1,416,569 29,634,623 0.17
Shennan Circuits Co Ltd 137,760 19,575,696 0.11
Shenzhen Goodix Technology Co Ltd 179,296 36,988,765 0.21
Shenzhen Sunway Communication Co Ltd 960,900 43,605,642 0.25
Tsinghua Tongfang Co Ltd 2,975,442 26,094,626 0.15
Tunghsu Optoelectronic Technology Co Ltd 5,477,088 18,403,016 0.11
Unisplendour Corp Ltd 1,026,585 32,440,086 0.19
Wangsu Science & Technology Co Ltd 2,439,977 23,252,981 0.13
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Will Semiconductor Ltd 219,898 31,533,373 0.18
Yonyou Network Technology Co Ltd 1,574,787 44,723,951 0.26
Zhejiang Dahua Technology Co Ltd 2,256,890 44,866,973 0.26
ZTE Corp 2,984,666 105,627,329 0.61
Aluminum Corp of China Ltd 8,183,445 28,969,395 0.17
Angang Steel Co Ltd 3,022,504 10,125,388 0.06
Anhui Conch Cement Co Ltd 2,503,529 137,193,389 0.79
Baiyin Nonferrous Group Co Ltd 1,860,900 6,848,112 0.04
Baoshan Iron & Steel Co Ltd 11,159,053 64,052,964 0.37
BBMG Corp 4,176,000 15,576,480 0.09
Beijing Oriental Yuhong Waterproof Technology Co Ltd 1,117,142 29,392,006 0.17
Bluestar Adisseo Co 362,400 4,008,144 0.02
China Jushi Co Ltd 2,640,592 28,782,453 0.17
China Molybdenum Co Ltd 8,840,960 38,546,586 0.22
China Northern Rare Earth Group High-Tech Co Ltd 2,733,008 29,625,807 0.17
Ganfeng Lithium Co Ltd 951,941 33,156,105 0.19
Hengli Petrochemical Co Ltd 2,638,713 42,430,505 0.24
Hengyi Petrochemical Co Ltd 1,421,660 19,789,507 0.11
Hesteel Co Ltd 5,315,028 13,712,772 0.08
Hoshine Silicon Industry Co Ltd 183,932 5,420,476 0.03
Inner Mongolia BaoTou Steel Union Co Ltd 28,508,873 37,631,712 0.22
Inner Mongolia Junzheng Energy & Chemical Industry Group Co Ltd 4,242,676 13,279,576 0.08
Jiangxi Copper Co Ltd 1,305,707 22,105,620 0.13
Lomon Billions Group Co Ltd 1,267,916 19,513,227 0.11
Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group Co Ltd 1,013,300 9,636,483 0.05
Pangang Group Vanadium Titanium & Resources Co Ltd 5,372,100 15,686,532 0.09
Rongsheng Petro Chemical Co Ltd 2,353,459 29,159,357 0.17
Shandong Gold Mining Co Ltd 1,308,725 42,690,610 0.25
Shandong Nanshan Aluminum Co Ltd 9,002,860 20,166,406 0.12
Tongling Nonferrous Metals Group Co Ltd 7,901,687 18,410,931 0.11
Transfar zhilian Co Ltd 1,617,800 11,292,244 0.06
Wanhua Chemical Group Co Ltd 1,963,918 110,313,274 0.63
YanAn Bicon Pharmaceutical Listed Co 772,228 12,069,924 0.07
Zhej iang Huayou Cobalt Co Ltd 811,822 31,977,669 0.18
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Zhejiang Longsheng Group Co Ltd
Zhongjin Gold Corp Ltd
ZijinMining Group Co Ltd

China Fortune Land Development Co Ltd

China Merchants Shekou Industrial Zone Holdings Co Ltd
China Vanke Co Ltd

Gemdale Corp

Greenland Holdings Corp Ltd

Jiangsu Zhongnan Construction Group Co Ltd

Jinke Properties Group Co Ltd

Poly Developments and Holdings Group Co Ltd

Red Star Macalline Group Corp Ltd

RiseSun Real Estate Development Co Ltd

Seazen Holdings Co Ltd

Shanghai Lingang Holdings Corp Ltd

Shanghai Lujiazui Finance & Trade Zone Development Co Ltd
Xinhu Zhongbao Co Ltd

Yango Group Co Ltd

Youngor Group Co Ltd

China National Nuclear Power Co Ltd
China Yangtze Power Co Ltd

GD Power Development Co Ltd

Huadian Power International Corp Ltd
Huaneng Lancang River Hydropower Inc
Huaneng Power International Inc

SDIC Power Holdings Co Ltd

Sichuan Chuantou Energy Co Ltd
Zhejiang Zheneng Electric Power Co Ltd
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3,264,385 47,235,650 0.27
2,163,580 18,347,158 0.11
17,205,635 78,973,865 0.46
1,510,563 43,353,158 0.25
3,954,316 78,572,259 0.45
7,295,387 234,765,554 1.35
2,823,631 40,942,650 0.24
4,562,100 31,706,595 0.18
2,315,895 24,432,692 0.14
2,682,153 20,598,935 0.12
8,958,546 144,949,274 0.83
508,100 5,756,773 0.03
2,181,091 21,440,124 0.12
1,128,732 43,704,503 0.25
501,590 12,314,034 0.07
1,102,621 14,896,410 0.09
5,379,304 20,333,769 0.12
2,023,440 17,199,240 0.10
4,398,332 30,656,374 0.18
7,787,731 38,938,655 0.22
11,013,166 202,421,991 1.16
14,762,452 34,544,138 0.20
4,086,264 14,996,589 0.09
2,263,900 9,553,658 0.05
5,512,703 30,760,883 0.18
4,243,130 38,951,933 0.22
2,207,206 21,740,979 0.13
5,121,597 20,281,524 0.12
17,264,823,312 99.33

14,836,767,569
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360 Security Technology Inc 507,297 211,913 207,500 511,710
ADAMA Ltd 303,200 357,466 660,666

AECC Aviation Power Co Ltd 1,115,280 424,000 413,700 1,125,580
Agricultural Bank of China Ltd 47,852,637 19,100,400 18,988,000 47,965,037
Aier Eye Hospital Group Co Ltd 1,198,347 602,340 332,596 573,300 1,559,983
Air China Ltd 3,735,166 1,506,530 1,490,200 3,751,496
Aisino Corp 1,391,635 542,733 535,900 1,398,468
Aluminum Corp of China Ltd 8,214,058 3,245,687 3,276,300 8,183,445
Angang Steel Co Ltd 2,303,863 1,081,910 647,631 1,010,900 3,022,504
Anhui Conch Cement Co Ltd 2,502,912 989,117 988,500 2,503,529
Anhui Gujing Distillery Co Ltd 196,920 42,700 154,220
Anxin Trust Co Ltd 2,731,063 1,092,300 1,080,200 2,743,163
Avary Holding Shenzhen Co Ltd 350,258 35,100 315,158
AVIC Aircraft Co Ltd 1,734,371 686,035 692,200 1,728,206
Avic Capital Co Ltd 5,612,641 3,342,979 2,210,400 6,745,220
AVIC Jonhon Optronic Technology Co Ltd 495,090 220,272 155,427 209,600 661,189
AVIC Shenyang Aircraft Co Ltd 523,800 211,814 207,300 528,314
AVICOPTER PLC 358,413 106,000 102,300 362,113
Eé(ljc BluePark New Energy Technology Co 1,792,975 54,000 1,738,975
Baiyin Nonferrous Group Co Ltd 1,065,300 1,170,800 375,200 1,860,900
Bank of Beijing Co Ltd 18,489,700 7,362,169 7,320,400 18,531,469
Bank of Changsha Co Ltd 1,343,837 54,000 1,289,837
Bank of Chengdu Co Ltd 497,575 2,198,824 438,100 2,258,299
Bank of China Ltd 26,334,063 10,512,500 10,457,800 26,388,763
Bank of Communications Co Ltd 34,328,934 13,686,009 13,617,600 34,397,343
Bank of Guiyang Co Ltd 1,727,135 1,578,102 607,094 697,700 3,214,631
Bank of Hangzhou Co Ltd 2,562,660 1,013,190 1,011,800 2,564,050
Bank of Jiangsu Co Ltd 8,654,799 6,040,371 3,134,600 11,560,570
Bank of Nanjing Co Ltd 7,416,241 2,971,785 2,947,700 7,440,326
Bank of Ningbo Co Ltd 3,258,981 1,552,552 1,281,300 3,530,233
Bank of Shanghai Co Ltd 6,831,720 3,152,409 1,915,498 3,005,200 8,894,427
Bank of Xi"an Co Ltd 610,727 610,727
Baoshan Iron & Steel Co Ltd 11,128,604 4,436,249 4,405,800 11,159,053
BBMG Corp 4,178,600 1,667,900 1,670,500 4,176,000
Beijing Enlight Media Co Ltd 1,092,690 356,800 1,449,490

Beijing New Building Materials PLC 1,052,338 423,824 414,600 1,061,562
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Beijing Orient Landscape & Environment

Co Ltd 1,669,348 894,679 2,564,027

Beijing Oriental Yuhong Waterproof 1,122,500 424,542 429,900 1,117,142
Technology Co Ltd

Beijing Originwater Technology Co Ltd 2,355,904 947,700 923,200 2,380,404
Beijing Sanju Environmental

Protection and New Material Co Ltd 1,473,699 481,800 1,955,499

Eg%ﬂ;?gShljl Information Technology 409,392 167,300 184,800 391,892
Beijing Shougang Co Ltd 1,982,948 281,124 2,264,072

Beijing Tongrentang Co Ltd 692,273 294,800 309,100 677,973
Beijing Xinwei Technology Group Co Ltd 1,724,829 1,724,829

Bluestar Adisseo Co 411,100 48,700 362,400
BOE Technology Group Co Ltd 29,611,861 11,819,200 11,760,300 29,670,761
Bohai Leasing Co Ltd 2,316,047 920,100 917,700 2,318,447
BYD Co Ltd 1,124,980 423,754 415,500 1,133,234
Caitong Securities Co Ltd 494,700 3,215,143 568,000 3,141,843
Changchun High & New Technology 175,666 103,547 96,100 183,113
Industry Group Inc

Changjiang Securities Co Ltd 4,833,299 1,927,575 1,917,900 4,842,974
Chaozhou Three-Circle Group Co Ltd 1,302,588 529,901 516,900 1,315,589
gge[‘fdd“ Kanghong Pharmaceutical Group 174,300 193,160 47,040 89,500 325,000
China Avionics Systems Co Ltd 665,136 251,425 260,400 656,161
China CITIC Bank Corp Ltd 3,828,682 1,537,200 1,524,700 3,841,182
China Coal Energy Co Ltd 2,287,570 915,400 895,300 2,307,670
EzénaCommunlcatlonsConstructlonCo 2,938,828 1,163,942 1,161,400 2,941,370
China Construction Bank Corp 8,391,263 3,350,126 3,325,300 8,416,089
China Eastern Airlines Corp Ltd 4,901,882 2,675,328 1,970,700 5,606,510
China Everbright Bank Co Ltd 19,888,641 7,939,401 7,883,900 19,944,142
ChinaFilmCo Ltd 940,489 385,300 392,300 933,489
China Fortune Land Development Co Ltd 2,254,067 839,296 1,582,800 1,510,563
China Galaxy Securities Co Ltd 1,608,800 638,129 628,700 1,618,229
China Gezhouba Group Co Ltd 3,444,981 1,388,445 1,362,800 3,470,626
gg 'L”,fdera”d Automotive ServicesGroup 5 75 635 2 208,554 1,287,000 4,087,190
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China Great Wall Securities Co Ltd 488,300 71,200 417,100
China International Travel Service 1,224,329 509,401 518,800 1,214,930
Corp Ltd
China Jushi Co Ltd 2,618,852 1,058,240 1,036,500 2,640,592
ChinaLife Insurance Co Ltd 2,077,649 839,280 829,300 2,087,629
China Merchants Bank Co Ltd 12,879,784 5,117,797 5,091,400 12,906,181
China Merchants Expressway Network & 699,551 104,099 803,650

Technology Holdings Co Ltd
China Merchants Securities Co Ltd 3,572,063 1,413,900 1,403,300 3,582,663
China Merchants Shekou Industrial Zone

Holdings Co Ltd 2,965,006 2,059,510 1,070,200 3,954,316
China Minsheng Banking Corp Ltd 30,987,026 12,376,973 12,284,700 31,079,299
China Molybdenum Co Ltd 8,830,860 3,500,900 3,490,800 8,840,960
Ezéna National Chemical Engineering Co 2,455,515 1,481,579 853,200 3,083,894
China National Nuclear Power Co Ltd 5,836,831 4,072,800 2,121,900 7,787,731
China Northern Rare Earth Group High- 2,717,808 1,082,200 1,067,000 2,733,008
Tech Co Ltd

China Nuclear Engineering Corp Ltd 986,997 141,600 1,128,597

China Oilfield Services Ltd 741,897 310,100 303,600 748,397
China Pacific Insurance Group Co Ltd 3,923,122 1,569,742 1,559,800 3,933,064
China Petroleum & Chemical Corp 15,504,347 7,095,500 5,833,800 16,766,047
China Petroleum Engineering Corp 2,110,200 676,900 2,787,100

China Rai lway Construction Corp Ltd 5,749,916 2,296,003 2,278,100 5,767,819
China Rai lway Group Ltd 9,313,381 4,575,059 3,687,400 10,201,040
Chln(zl Reform Heal th Management and 902,243 121,700 1,023,943

Services Group Co Ltd

China Satel lite Communications Co Ltd 502,782 502,782
China Shenhua Energy Co Ltd 2,479,118 2,782,789 1,129,500 4,132,407
China Shipbuilding Industry Co Ltd 11,427,775 4,572,100 4,539,700 11,460,175
China Shipbuilding Industry Group 864,966 317,902 335,200 847,668
Power Co Ltd

China Southern Airlines Co Ltd 4,297,064 2,616,900 1,535,600 5,378,364
China Spacesat Co Ltd 740,930 317,849 311,400 747,379
China State Construction Engineering oo 55 417 10,452 520 10,393,600 26,282,737
Corp Ltd

E,r[‘c'j”a United Network Communications 11,630,592 4,627,572 4,599,300 11,658,864
China Vanke Co Ltd 6,078,525 3,433,362 2,216,500 7,295,387
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China Yangtze Power Co Ltd 8,243,499 5,760,667 2,991,000 11,013,166
Chinalin Securities Co Ltd 367,644 34,200 333,444
Chongging Changan Automobile Co Ltd 2,445,231 958,900 959,900 2,444,231
Chongging zhifei Biological Products 592,995 211,999 207,500 597,494
ColLtd
Eglc Guoan Information Industry Co 3,428,770 469,700 3,898,470
CITIC SecuritiesCoLtd 9,651,438 4,097,551 3,899,500 9,849,489
CNOOC Energy Technology & Services Ltd 2,512,000 2,512,000
COSCO SHIPPING Holdings Co Ltd 4,774,789 1,931,994 1,856,300 4,850,483
CRRC Corp Ltd 12,145,169 4,837,458 4,802,300 12,180,327
CSC Financial CoLtd 555,100 209,578 207,700 556,978
Dagin Railway Co Ltd 7,431,723 2,982,074 2,964,000 7,449,797
Datang International Power Generation 3,099,200 423,900 3,523,100
ColLtd
Dawning Information Industry Co Ltd 905,205 112,800 792,405
DHC Software Co Ltd 2,336,998 767,443 3,104,441
Dong-E-E-Jiao Co Ltd 566,975 211,898 207,000 571,873
Dongxing Securities Co Ltd 1,728,179 697,521 702,700 1,723,000
East Money Information Co Ltd 4,522,744 3,320,427 940,302 2,060,300 6,723,173
Everbright Securities Co Ltd 2,450,003 963,127 963,200 2,449,930
Fangda Carbon New Material Co Ltd 1,335,260 668,283 619,675 582,400 2,040,818
F|berhome_TeIecommun|cat|0n 866,421 317,975 308,200 876,196
Technologies Co Ltd
Financial Street Holdings Co Ltd 1,496,807 466,700 1,963,507
First Capital Securities Co Ltd 2,618,869 370,100 2,988,969
Egg“s Media Information Technology Co ¢ 167 759 7,558,075 3,866,900 12,858,955
Foshan Haitian Flavouring & Food Co Ltd 1,012,984 423,672 415,000 1,021,656
Founder Securities Co Ltd 5,138,803 2,043,200 2,028,000 5,154,003
Foxconn Industrial Internet Co Ltd 1,479,900 1,283,887 529,800 2,233,987
Fuyao Glass Industry Group Co Ltd 1,754,521 702,850 707,500 1,749,871
Ganfeng Lithium Co Ltd 978,941 406,800 433,800 951,941
GD Power Development Co Ltd 14,726,728 5,877,724 5,842,000 14,762,452
Gemdale Corp 2,818,851 1,126,980 1,122,200 2,823,631
GF SecuritiesCo Ltd 3,695,003 1,468,700 1,461,500 3,702,203
Giant Network Group Co Ltd 759,283 317,834 311,100 766,017
Gigadevice Semiconductor Beijing Inc 182,971 180,371 119,500 243,842
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Glodon Co Ltd 955,296 109,300 845,996
GoerTek Inc 2,433,246 1,291,634 886,900 2,837,980
Great Wall Motor Co Ltd 1,508,132 613,190 608,500 1,512,822
Gree Electric Appliances Inc of Zhuhai 6,005,014 2,401,327 2,374,200 6,032,141
Greenland Holdings Corp Ltd 4,563,350 1,813,750 1,815,000 4,562,100
Guangdong Haid Group Co Ltd 989,981 423,943 415,000 998,924
Guangshen Rai lway Co Ltd 4,240,986 590,900 4,831,886
Guangzhou Automobi le Group Co Ltd 1,154,017 450,107 444,900 1,159,224
Guangzhou Baiyun International
Airport Co Ltd 1,291,390 529,856 518,600 1,302,646
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical 707,924 317,905 311,900 713,929
Holdings Co Ltd
Guangzhou Port Co Ltd 2,318,942 762,500 3,081,442
Guangzhou Shiyuan Electronic
Technology Co Ltd 103,475 103,475
Guosen Securities Co Ltd 3,072,304 1,233,659 1,226,600 3,079,363
Guotai Junan Securities Co Ltd 5,632,175 2,241,144 2,232,700 5,640,619
Guoyuan Securities Co Ltd 2,525,178 1,003,133 1,002,300 2,526,011
Haier Smart Home Co Ltd 4,572,455 1,835,730 1,785,900 4,622,285
Hainan Airlines Holding Co Ltd 14,376,230 5,752,200 5,716,100 14,412,330
Haitong Securities Co Ltd 10,102,962 4,033,921 4,001,900 10,134,983
ggnf’fdhou HikvisionDigital Technology 5 477 1 gg1,238 1,787,300 4,683,415
Hangzhou Robam Appliances Co Ltd 585,721 211,918 206,500 591,139
Hangzhou Tigermed Consulting Co Ltd 646,926 646,926
(":'g”Lfd"aser Technology Industry Group 1,062,500 441,082 431,500 1,072,082
Hebei Yangyuan zZhihui Beverage Co Ltd 85,900 570,398 31,966 158,000 530,264
Henan Shuanghui Investment &
Development Co Ltd 1,239,919 519,252 506,100 1,253,071
Hengli Petrochemical Co Ltd 953,268 1,730,462 350,783 395,800 2,638,713
Hengtong Optic-electric Co Ltd 1,666,245 583,498 581,400 1,668,343
Hengyi Petrochemical Co Ltd 1,639,060 542,500 759,900 1,421,660
Hesteel Co Ltd 5,315,928 2,121,400 2,122,300 5,315,028
Hithink RoyalFlush Information
Network Co Ltd 267,500 105,460 103,600 269,360
HLA Corp Ltd 2,249,628 872,700 1,459,400 1,662,928
Hongta Securities Co Ltd 502,340 502,340
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Hoshine Silicon Industry Co Ltd 102,901 136,131 49,800 104,900 183,932
Huaan Securities Co Ltd 2,264,895 310,725 2,575,620
Huadian Power International Corp Ltd 4,066,664 1,619,100 1,599,500 4,086,264
Huadong Medicine Co Ltd 920,307 408,217 164,844 396,700 1,096,668
Hualan Biological Engineering Inc 701,620 388,487 308,790 340,601 1,058,296
Huaneng Lancang River Hydropower Inc 2,245,800 895,300 877,200 2,263,900
Huaneng Power International Inc 5,483,953 2,201,650 2,172,900 5,512,703
Huatai Securities Co Ltd 4,080,658 2,977,697 1,532,200 5,526,155
Huaxia Bank Co Ltd 8,006,084 3,070,800 3,380,800 7,696,084
Huayu Automotive Systems Co Ltd 1,975,561 777,268 781,400 1,971,429
Hubei Biocause Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 1,846,025 1,362,501 732,300 2,476,226
Hubei Jumpcan Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 414,039 208,260 205,000 417,299
Hundsun Technologies Inc 610,229 284,798 194,482 282,800 806,709
Iflytek Co Ltd 1,826,179 827,385 725,300 1,928,264
Eg“s”'a' &Conmercial Bank of China o5 945 053 19,755,745 10,698,100 27,005,668
Industrial Bank Co Ltd 15,574,129 8,721,843 6,082,900 18,213,072
Industrial Securities Co Ltd 5,857,461 2,340,100 2,329,900 5,867,661
tgger Mongolia BaoTou Steel Union Co 22,767,573 14,002,100 8,260,800 28,508,873
Inner Mongolia Junzheng Energy &
Chemical Industry Group Co Ltd 4,215,076 1,697,700 1,670,100 4,242,676
ég”ftrdMO”gO' 1aYili Industrial Group 7,598,645 3,031,173 2,999,000 7,630,818
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine Co Ltd 2,763,944 1,819,652 591,189 1,297,700 3,877,085
i;gngsu Yanghe Brewery Joint-Stock Co 754,076 317,717 311,100 760,693
i;gngsu Zhongnan Construction Group Co 2,315,495 913,700 913,300 2,315,895
Jiangsu Zhongtian Technology Co Ltd 3,064,163 1,231,693 1,225,900 3,069,956
Jiangxi Copper Co Ltd 1,294,547 529,560 518,400 1,305,707
Jinke Properties Group Co Ltd 3,056,553 374,400 2,682,153
Jointown Pharmaceutical Group Co Ltd 707,806 317,969 310,700 715,075
Eiggde Xin Composite Material Group Co 2,652,450 357,300 3,009,750
Kangmei Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 3,735,595 470,000 4,205,595
Kuang-Chi Technologies Co Ltd 539,731 171,730 711,461
Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd 619,724 238,991 235,400 623,315
Lens Technology Co Ltd 988,489 388,414 400,700 976,203
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Lepu Medical Technology Beijing Co Ltd 1,330,315 529,917 518,000 1,342,232
Leyard Optoelectronic Co Ltd 1,901,177 892,100 2,793,277
Liaoning Cheng Da Co Ltd 1,529,038 212,400 1,741,438
Lomon Billions Group Co Ltd 761,900 784,216 278,200 1,267,916
LONGi Green Energy Technology Co Ltd 2,439,728 1,197,362 807,400 1,136,400 3,308,090
Luxshare Precision Industry Co Ltd 3,082,364 1,434,191 865,115 1,358,200 4,023,470
Luzhou Laojiao Co Ltd 924,121 352,628 366,200 910,549
Mango Excel lent Media Co Ltd 519,146 167,863 27,000 660,009
ggantl da” Onehealth Healthcare Holdings  , aq6 65y 1 548,361 437,247 892,600 3,429,658
Metallurgical Corp of China Ltd 8,912,370 3,533,200 3,527,400 8,918,170
Midea Group Co Ltd 5,801,613 2,647,833 2,364,600 6,084,846
Minmetals Capital Co Ltd 665,100 271,000 118,360 438,700 615,760
Muyuan Foodstuff Co Ltd 780,144 593,857 289,200 1,084,801
NARI Technology Co Ltd 2,291,047 1,424,795 832,400 2,883,442
New China Life Insurance Co Ltd 1,040,183 423,736 414,400 1,049,519
New Hope Liuhe Co Ltd 2,637,447 1,045,800 1,047,500 2,635,747
Ningbo Zhoushan Port Co Ltd 4,929,376 1,958,662 1,936,000 4,952,038
Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group Co Ltd 1,013,300 1,013,300
Offcn Education Technology Co Ltd 844,707 844,707
Offshore Qi l Engineering Co Ltd 2,761,132 1,104,000 1,095,300 2,769,832
OFILM Group Co Ltd 2,365,928 949,600 933,300 2,382,228
Oppein Home Group Inc 163,958 105,832 102,800 166,990
Orient Securities Co Ltd/China 4,465,767 1,788,500 1,774,800 4,479,467
Oriental Pearl Group Co Ltd 2,566,757 1,020,590 1,015,800 2,571,547
Pangang Group Vanadium Titanium & 6,125,700 753,600 5,372,100
Resources Co Ltd
People®s Insurance Co Group of China
Ltd/The 1,525,000 187,400 1,337,600
Perfect World Co Ltd/China 494,208 355,653 208,300 641,561
PetroChina Co Ltd 10,110,931 5,701,700 3,666,900 12,145,731
Ping An Bank Co Ltd 10,729,787 5,401,976 3,980,400 12,151,363
Ping An Insurance Group Co of China Ltd 13,531,610 5,421,225 5,384,800 13,568,035
Eg 'Lytgeve'(’pme“ts and Holdings Group 8,920,664 3,542,182 3,504,300 8,958,546
Power Construction Corp of China Ltd 7,645,387 4,964,500 3,039,000 9,570,887
Qingdao Port International Co Ltd 677,000 73,400 603,600
Qingdao Rural Commercial Bank Corp 767,100 767,100
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Qinghai Salt Lake Industry Co Ltd 1,744,271 247,300 1,991,571
Red Star Macalline Group Corp Ltd 405,200 256,600 153,700 508,100
RiseSun Real Estate Development Co Ltd 2,172,057 858,534 849,500 2,181,091
Rongsheng Petro Chemical Co Ltd 1,568,291 1,343,068 557,900 2,353,459
SAIC Motor Corp Ltd 4,375,765 1,737,694 1,720,700 4,392,759
Sanan Optoelectronics Co Ltd 3,057,583 1,218,000 1,212,300 3,063,283
Sany Heavy Industry Co Ltd 6,824,093 3,410,788 2,848,600 7,386,281
SDIC Capital Co Ltd 1,053,136 1,594,360 532,500 2,114,996
SDIC Power Holdings Co Ltd 5,088,135 1,816,895 2,661,900 4,243,130
Seazen Holdings Co Ltd 1,123,432 424,000 418,700 1,128,732
SF Holding Co Ltd 600,654 705,708 201,700 1,104,662
Shaanxi Coal Industry Co Ltd 4,998,304 1,997,300 1,986,800 5,008,804
i:gndong Buchang Pharmaceuticals Co 549,944 207,745 138,679 896,368
Shandong Gold Mining Co Ltd 935,932 464,500 310,693 402,400 1,308,725
Shandong Nanshan Aluminum Co Ltd 8,955,540 3,567,020 3,519,700 9,002,860
Shanghai Construction Group Co Ltd 5,567,025 2,194,020 2,197,300 5,563,745
Shanghai Electric Group Co Ltd 4,406,010 1,756,507 1,591,600 4,570,917
E:anhal Fosun Pharmaceutical Group Co 1,257,926 511,855 519,000 1,250,781
Shanghai International Airport Co Ltd 1,209,868 479,604 490,400 1,199,072
E:g”gha' International Port Group Co 4,047,310 3,209,519 1,458,100 5,798,729
Shanghai Lingang Holdings Corp Ltd 501,590 501,590
Shanghai Lujiazui Finance & Trade Zone 1,250,621 148,000 1,102,621
Development Co Ltd
Shanghai M&G Stationery Inc 465,728 465,728
i:gnghau Pharmaceuticals Holding Co 1,449,235 560,054 568,900 1,440,389
pranghiai Fucong Develaprart Sanic Co 14,662,182 5,860,335 5,818,300 14,704,217
Shanghai RAAS Blood Products Co Ltd 1,862,018 1,232,000 604,100 2,489,918
E:anhal Yuyuan Tourist Mart Group Co 1,937,320 1,937,320
Shanxi Meijin Energy Co Ltd 1,531,700 1,531,700
Ezgnm Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory Co 318,495 105,947 100,900 323,542
(SzgaLnél Xishan Coal & Electricity Power 1,967,003 261,190 2,228,193
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Shengyi Technology Co Ltd 1,416,569 1,416,569
Shennan Circuits Co Ltd 137,760 137,760
Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co Ltd 8,444,083 6,313,121 3,475,200 11,282,004
Shenzhen Goodix Technology Co Ltd 123,500 166,296 110,500 179,296
Shenzhen Inovance Technology Co Ltd 1,249,828 524,606 466,000 1,308,434
Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town Co Ltd 5,107,888 2,038,500 2,009,500 5,136,888
i:gnzhen Salubris Pharmaceuticals Co 521,686 211,860 207,300 526,246
Shenzhen Sunway Communication Co Ltd 978,976 403,824 421,900 960,900
Siasun Robot & Automation Co Ltd 1,356,733 529,933 517,600 1,369,066
Sichuan Chuantou Energy Co Ltd 2,213,839 871,967 878,600 2,207,206
Sichuan Kelun Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 1,075,282 423,911 415,300 1,083,893
Sinolink Securities Co Ltd 3,016,050 1,206,400 1,191,100 3,031,350
Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical Co Ltd 2,736,868 881,430 3,618,298
Ezggcheng Performance Development Co 908,986 489,926 307,400 1,001,512
SooChow Securities Co Ltd 3,003,737 1,198,900 1,193,800 3,008,837
Southwest Securities Co Ltd 3,521,189 1,420,400 1,413,600 3,527,989
Spring Airlines Co Ltd 335,889 266,807 136,200 466,496
STO Express Co Ltd 371,496 156,700 152,900 375,296
Suning.com Co Ltd 4,652,201 1,850,251 1,835,200 4,667,252
Suofeiya Home Collection Co Ltd 803,860 106,084 909,944
Suzhou G_old Mantis Construction 1,985,204 781,900 752,900 2.014,204
Decoration Co Ltd
Tasly Pharmaceutical Group Co Ltd 1,128,620 426,924 421,100 1,134,444
TBEA Co Ltd 4,641,408 1,877,883 1,862,100 4,657,191
TCL Corp 13,553,853 8,283,000 4,907,900 16,928,953
Tianfeng Securities Co Ltd 748,500 91,800 656,700
Tiangi Lithium Corp 848,203 333,650 243,134 309,800 1,115,187
Tonghua Dongbao Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 1,779,435 850,611 856,200 1,773,846
[239' ing Nonferrous Metals Group Co 7,887,587 3,130,400 3,116,300 7,901,687
Tongwei Co Ltd 2,423,400 963,536 951,000 2,435,936
Transfar Zhilian Co Ltd 1,841,200 223,400 1,617,800
Tsinghua Tongfang Co Ltd 2,583,452 1,381,890 989,900 2,975,442
[,‘igghsu Optoelectronic Technology Co 4,789,288 2,329,900 1,642,100 5,477,088
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Teahnology Developrent Co Ltd 904,69 110,500 1,015,149
Unisplendour Corp Ltd 253,975 774,260 97,950 99,600 1,026,585
Walvax Biotechnology Co Ltd 1,536,006 632,846 622,100 1,546,752
Wanda Film Holding Co Ltd 1,197,263 151,000 1,046,263
Wangsu Science & Technology Co Ltd 1,820,760 1,360,717 741,500 2,439,977
Wanhua Chemical Group Co Ltd 2,048,652 777,166 861,900 1,963,918
Weichai Power Co Ltd 6,047,809 2,392,175 2,444,600 5,995,384
Wens Foodstuffs Group Co Ltd 5,293,061 632,200 4,660,861
Western Securities Co Ltd 2,184,125 870,932 860,600 2,194,457
Will Semiconductor Ltd 219,898 219,898
Wintime Energy Co Ltd 7,704,604 1,068,000 8,772,604

Wuchan Zhongda Group Co Ltd 2,147,551 712,000 2,859,551
‘&’g:;‘vosf‘;%‘.;C'h”ntoelroﬁ;‘é‘r’ﬁuEpnégrfgj' nment 798,700 897,463 368,700 1,327,463
Wuliiangye Yibin Co Ltd 2,415,859 953,539 934,100 2,435,298
WuXi AppTec Co Ltd 139,300 831,176 51,861 112,299 910,038
XCMG Construction Machinery Co Ltd 5,867,339 2,328,300 2,309,400 5,886,239
Xiamen C&D Inc 2,123,329 739,200 1,095,800 1,766,729
Xiamen Intretech Inc 124,000 156,863 280,863

Xiamen Tungsten Co Ltd 1,056,037 141,600 1,197,637

Xinhu Zhongbao Co Ltd 5,370,504 2,137,700 2,128,900 5,379,304
éc')”LJt' da”g Coldwind Science & Technology 5 g99 g04 1,283,088 580,596 1,305,900 3,448,788
YanAn Bicon Pharmaceutical Listed Co 378,128 520,600 126,500 772,228
Yango Group Co Ltd 2,030,440 821,200 828,200 2,023,440
Yanzhou Coal Mining Co Ltd 1,119,180 424,000 431,400 1,111,780
Yonghui Superstores Co Ltd 4,778,952 1,892,288 1,882,400 4,788,840
Yonyou Network Technology Co Ltd 1,203,574 602,892 389,721 621,400 1,574,787
Youngor Group Co Ltd 3,130,939 1,605,644 1,166,449 1,504,700 4,398,332
YTO Express Group Co Ltd 464,100 415,300 178,600 700,800
Yunda Holding Co Ltd 173,440 697,964 47,412 85,000 833,816
Yunnan Baiyao Group Co Ltd 658,007 238,464 263,100 633,371
Zangge Holding Co Ltd 748,346 250,000 998,346

égal_nfdzhou Pientzehuang Pharmaceutical 368,513 124,903 123,300 370,116
Zhejiang Century Huatong Group Co Ltd 577,080 2,438,123 325,200 355,100 2,985,303
Zhejiang China Commodities City Group 3,410,457 1,099,600 4,510,057

CoLtd
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Zhejiang Chint Electrics Co Ltd 1,070,248 651,367 372,900 1,348,715
Zhejiang Dahua Technology Co Ltd 2,251,190 904,300 898,600 2,256,890
Zhejiang Huayou Cobalt Co Ltd 612,225 284,320 178,477 263,200 811,822
Zhejiang Longsheng Group Co Ltd 3,249,885 1,298,800 1,284,300 3,264,385
Zhejiang NHU Co Ltd 1,070,130 1,004,183 456,100 1,618,213
(Z:EeLJt' and Sanhua IntelTigent Controls 1,321,094 627,038 424,978 645,600 1,727,510
Zhejiang Supor Co Ltd 208,485 105,899 103,400 210,984
Zhej iang Wanfeng Auto Wheel Co Ltd 1,650,629 227,904 1,878,533
Zhejiang Zheneng Electric Power Co Ltd 5,093,503 2,044,994 2,016,900 5,121,597
Zhengzhou Yutong Bus Co Ltd 1,649,669 651,577 637,800 1,663,446
Zheshang Securities Co Ltd 1,670,400 654,800 656,000 1,669,200
Zhongjin Gold Corp Ltd 2,153,793 855,487 845,700 2,163,580
Zhongtian Financial Group Co Ltd 3,773,150 3,773,150
ZijinMining Group Co Ltd 15,111,893 7,557,642 5,463,900 17,205,635
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and 5,619,555 2,977,380 2,108,700 6,488,235
Technology Co Ltd
ZTE Corp 2,975,654 1,187,612 1,178,600 2,984,666
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2019 12 31 17,382,025,714 41.7586
2018 12 31 11,816,519,143 30.7122
2017 12 31 11,093,007,702 41.1309
2019 12 31 41.7586 30.2426
2018 12 31 447342 30.5351
2017 12 31 43.1972 33.9102
2016 12 31 36.5111 29.1665
2015 12 31 53.7690 30.5877
2014 12 31 35.3314 21.0387
2013 12 31 27.1919 21.6261

2012 12 31 24.9664 21.1203
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2019 12 31
2012 16 2012 17 2012 10 26
2019 12 31 100.16 71.69 64.83
2018 12 31 43.81 27.89 25.22
2017 12 31 88.27 70.04 75.49
2016 12 31 37.94 39.88 33.75
2015 12 31 55.48 57.44 59.33
2014 12 31 47.25 41.94 52.57
2013 12 31 2.90 4.96 4.44
2012 12 31 5.13 4.13 11.72
2012 11 2012 12 31

2012 11 2012 12 31
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ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 December 2018

Motes 2019 2018
RMBE RME

ASSETS
Financial assets at fair value through profit o loss 11 17,264,823, 312 11.751,134,225
Other receivable 28.852 105,269
Cash and cash equivalents 13 142,201,975 S5 894, 957
TOTAL ASSETS 17,407,054 130 11.851.134.451
LIABILITIES
Management fee payable S{a} 8,376,356 6,843,073
Custodian, fund administration and trustee fees payable Sb) 4,706,120 3,330,735
Amounts due to participating dealers & 7483 461 22,479,440
Cther payables and accruals 3,482 485 1,962.080
TOTAL LIABILITIES 25,028,425 34,615,308
EQUITY
MET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TOUNITHOLDERS 10 17,382.025.714 11,816.519,143

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

17.407,054,138

11.851.134.451

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ChinafMC CSI 200 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2019

Motes 019 2018
RMB RME
IMCOME
Divddend incame 315,604,448 220,831,891
Interest income 375714 321,073
315,980,162 221,202,064
EXPENSES
Management fee S@) ( 100832534) {71,764 466)
Brokerage and transaction fee S(dy 18,589 843) { 16,844 9300
Custodian, fund administration and trustee fees by ( 11.018725) i 7,602 563
Auditor's remuneration { 144, 171) { 132.924)
Index licensing fee { 51,558) { 51,958)
Data licensing fee ( 5,761,859) [ 4,100,827)
Professional fee { 145 568) i 274 487
Other operating expenses { 853,809) [ 973.828)
{137,308 .458) { 101,746,023
PROFIT BEFORE INVESTMENT AND EXCHAMGE
DIFFERENCES 178,581,884 119,456,941
IMVESTMENT GAIMNSKLOSSES) AND EXCHAMGE
DIFFERENCES
Met change in unrealised gains of losses on financial
assels ab fair value through profit or loss 3,830,353 720 { 2970,552.210)
Met realised gains or losses on financial assets at fair
walue through profit or loss 225 255286 { 182771,058)
MET INVESTMENTS AND EXCHANGE
GAINSHLOSSES) 4,055,609 006 { 3,153 323.268)
PROFITALOSS) BEFORE TAX 4,234 190,700 { 3,033 856327
Withholding income tax expenses 7 { 31,604, 717) { 22177.816)
TOTAL COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME 4@&2.4:95.933 { 3.056,044,143)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ChinafMC CSI 200 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

ETATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

Year ended 31 December 2019

Mote Units REE
At 1 January 2018 268,700,000 11,063,007, 702
Issue of units 214,650,000 7,507 648,975
Redemplion of units (99500 0000 { 3.,631,861.801)
Total comprehensive loss - { 3056044 143)
Distribution to unitholders ] - { 96.232,500)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 384,750,000 11,816,516,143
|ssue of units 159,000,000 6271130574
Redemption of units { 127.500,000) {  4.7657T80 486)
Total comprehensive income - 4,202 485,983
Distribution to unitholders o - { 142,330,500)
At 31 December 2019 416,250,000 17.382.025,714

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ChinaArC C3l 300 Index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2019

Mote 2019 2018
RME RMB
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profitf{loss) before tax 4,234 180,700 (3,033.866,327)
Increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss { 5513680087 ( T16.152,024)
Decrease in other receivable 76417 502,682
Increase in management fee payable 2533283 704 670
Increased{decrease) in custodian, fund administration and
trustee fees payable 1,375.385 { &45 97E)
Increase in other payables and accruals 1,500,428 173,645
Cash usad in cperations { 1.274.012.874) (3,749,484 320)
Tax paid { 31,684,717 [ 22177 .816)
Met cash flows used in operating activities { 1,305,707.581) (3.771.662135)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distribution paid to unitholders ( 142.330.500) { 96,232,500)
Proceeds from issue of units 6,256,134 5085 7,505,544 820
Payments on redemplion of units { 4765 780, 426) (3.631.861,891)
Met cash fiows from financing aclivities 1,248,014 609 3777 450529
MET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 42,307,018 5,788,383
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year &0 894 957 94, 106,564
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR 13 142,201,975 99,894 857
AMNALY SIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at banks 13 142,201,975 09,894 D57
MET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
INCLUDE:
Dividend received net of withholding tax 283,934,571 188,728,187
Interest received net of withholding tao 380,714 208,061

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these financial statements.
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ChinafMC CSI 200 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
3 December 2018

1. THETRUST

ChinadMC ETF Series (the "Trust") is an umbrelia unit trust governed by its trust deed dated 28 May
2012, as amended or supplemented from time to time (the "Trust Deed") between China Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Manager”) and Cititrust Limited (the “Trustee"). # is
authorised by the Secunties and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the "SFC") pursuant to Section
104(1) of the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong.

These financial statements relate to the first sub-fund of the Trust, ChinaARMC C51 300 index ETF (the
“Sub-Fund”). The Sub-Fund commenced trading under the stock codes 83188 (RMB counter) and
03188 (HKD counter) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("SEHK") on 17 July 2012 and
26 October 2012, respectively. On 27 February 2013, the Sub-Fund commenced trading under the
stock code 1575 on the Tokyo Stock Exchange ("TSE").

Pursuant to the guidelines on management and operation of Renminbi Qualified Foreign institutional
Investor ("ROFI") issued by the State of Administration of Foreign Exchange ("SAFE") on and
effective from 30 May 2014, an RQFI has the fiexibility to allocate its RQFI quota granted by SAFE
across different public fund products under its management, Accordingly, the Sub-Fund no longer has
the exclusive use of all the RQFII guota previously granted by SAFE to the Manager in respect of the
Sub-Fund, The Manager, at its discretion, may re-allocate the RQFII quota in respect of the Sub-Fund
to other public fund products under its management or vice versa withoul having to obtain prior
approval from SAFE.

The investment cbjective of the Sub-Fund is to provide imvestment results that dosely corespond to
the performance of the CSI1 300 Index (the “Index”). The Sub-Fund is a physical exchange traded fund
imvesting directly in the underying A-Shares of the Index.

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Finandial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASBE"), and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the IASE
and the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure provisions
specified in Appendix E of the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds of the SFC (the "SFC Code").

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for financial
assels classified at fair value through profit or loss ("FVPL") that have been measured at fair value,

These financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi ("RMB") and all values are rounded
to the nearest RMB except where othersise indicated.

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Sub-Fund has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first ime for the current period’s
financial statements. which are applicable to the Sub-Fund.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Trealments
Annual Improvement to
IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle Amendments to IAS 12

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

-15-
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ChinafMC CSI 200 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

IFRIC | i i I T

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainly over income Tax Treafments (the "Interpretation™) addresses the
accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncerainty that affects the application of
IAS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies cutside the scope of [AS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments, The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

* Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

* The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

* How an entity determines taxable profit {tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates

* Howw an entity considers changes in facts and drcumstances

The Sub-Fund determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more cther uncertain tax treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the
resclution of the uncertainty.

The Sub-Fund applies significant judgement in identifying uncertainties over income tax treatments.
The Sub-Fund has assessed that the interpretation does not have a significant impact on the financial
statements.

Amendments to 1AS 12 income Taxes

The amendments clanfy that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to
past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distibutions to owners.
Therefore, an entity recognises the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income o equily according to where it ariginally recognised those past fransactions
or events,

An entity applies the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with early application permitted. When the entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to
the income tax consequences of dividends recognised on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period. Since the Sub-Fund's current practice isin line with these amendments, they had
noimpact on the financial statements of the Sub-Fund.

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERMATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Sub-Fund has not early applied any of the new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yvet effective for the accounting year ended 31 December 2019, in these financial statements.
Among the new and revised IFRSs, the following are expected to be relevant to the Sub-Fund's
financial statements upon becoming effective:

Amendments to 1AS 1 and IAS 8 Defimtion of Materal
! Effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Amendments o 1AS 1 and 1AS & provide a new defintion of matenial. The new definiion states that
infarmation is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpese financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments cdarnify that materiality will depend on the nature of magnitude
ofinformation. A misstatement of information is materal if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the pimary users. The Sub-Fund expects to adopt the amendments prospectvely
from 1 January 2020, The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the Sub-
Fund's financial statements.
=16-
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ChinafMC CSI 200 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICAMT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial instruments

(@) Classification

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Sub-Fund classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities
at initial recogniticn info the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities discussed
below.

In applying that dassification, a financial asset or fimandal liability is considered to be held for
trading if:

# |t is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term, or

« On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking, or

= |tisa derivative (except for a dervvative that is a financial guarantee confract or a designated
and effective hedging instrument)

Einancial assels
The Sub-Fund classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost or
measured at FVPL on the basis of both:

= The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
= The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets

Financial assets measured af amorised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if they are held within a business model whose
ohjedtive is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and their contractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
{*SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. The Sub-Fund includes in this category cash and
cash equivalents and short-term non-financing receivables including other receivable.

Financial assets measurad at FVPL
A financial asset is measured at FVPL if:

# [ts contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are SPF1 on the
principal amount outstanding, or

# ltis not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash
fizws, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell, or

+ AL initial recognition, i is imevocably designated as measured at FVPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise anse from measuring assets or labiliies or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

The Sub-Fund includes in this category instruments held for trading. This category indudes
equily instruments which are acquired pringipally for the purpose of generaling a profit from
short-term fluctuations in price,

Financial liabikties
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost include all financial liabilities, The Sub-Fund

inciudes in this category management fee payable, custodian, fund administration and trustee
fees payable, amounts due to participating dealers and other payables and accruals.

=17 =
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ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (centinuead)
{b) Recognition

The Sub-Fund recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or comvention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the frade date, i.e., the dale that the Sub-Fund commits to purchase or sell the
financial assats.

() Initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FYPL are recorded in the statement of financial
posifion at fair value. All transaction costs for such instruments are recognised directly in profit
or loss,

Financial assets and liabilties (other than those classified as at FVPL) are measured initially at
their fair value plus any directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or issue.

{(d} Subseguent measurement

After inttial measurement, the Sub-Fund measures financial instruments which are classified as
at FVPL. at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of those financial instruments are
recorded in net change in unrealised gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities at FVPL.
Interest and dividends eamed or paid on these instruments are recorded separately in interest
income and dividend income,

Financial assets, other than these classified as at FVWPL, are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method ("EIR") less any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognised or impaired, as well as
thraugh the amortisation process.

Financial liabilities, other than those classified as at FVPL, are measured at amortised cost
using the EIR. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabiliies are
derecognised, as well as through the amortisation process,

The EIR is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial hability
and of allocating and recognising the interest income or interest expense in profit or loss over
the relevant period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Sub-Fund estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial insiruments, but does not consider expeclted credit losses
{"ECLs"). The caleulation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts.

-18-
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ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (centinuead)
(e) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired, or the Sub-Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a pass-through arrangement and the Sub-Fund has:

= Transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

& Meither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assat, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Sub-Fund has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset (or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of
the risks and rewards of the asset transferred confrol of the asset, the assel is recognised to
the extent of the Sub-Fund's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Sub-Fund
also recognises an assocated Rability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Sub-Fund has retained.
The Sub-Fund derecognises a financial liability when the oblgation under the liabilty is
discharged.

Impairment of financial assets

Faor financial assets measured at amortised cost, impairment allowances are recognised under the
general approach where ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures where there has
net been a significant increase in credit risk since intial recognition, the Sub-Fund is required to
provide for credit losses that result from possible default events within the next 12 meonths. For those
credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recagnition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expecied owver the remaining life of the exposure
irrespective of the timing of the default.

The Sub-Fund's approach to ECLs reflects a probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of fulure economic conditions.

The Sub-Fund uses the provigion matrix as a practical expedient to measure ECLs on other receivable,
based on days past due for groupings of receivables with similar loss patterns. Receivables are
grouped based on their nature, The provision matrix is based on historical observed loss rates over
the expected life of the receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

iy financial instrum
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reporied in the statement of
financial position i, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the iability
simultaneously. This is generally not the case with master netting agreements unless one party to
the agreement defaults and the related assels and liabilties are presented gross in the statement of
financial position.
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ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTEE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement
The Sub-Fund measures its investments in finandal instruments, such as equity instruments, at fair
value at each reporting date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market paricipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumplion that the fransaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

# In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Sub-Fund,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumplions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

The Sub-Fund uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of uncbservable inputs.

The fair value for financial instruments fraded in active markels at the reporting date is based on their
quoted price, without any deduction for transaction costs.

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using
waluation techniques deemed to be appropriate in the crcumstances, Valuation technigues include
the market approach (i.e., using recent arm's length market transactions, adjusted as necessary, and
reference to the current market value of ancther instrument that is substantially the same) and the
income approach (ie., discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models making use of
avallable and supportable market data as much as possible).

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valualion techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly cbhsenable

Level 3 — Waluation technigues for which the lowest level imput that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the finandal statements on a recurring basis, the Sub-
Fund determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categonisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting pericd.
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ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTEE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash on hand and short-
term deposits in banks that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, with original maturities of three months or less,

Shori-term investments that are not held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments
and restricted margin accounts are not considered as cash and cash eguivalents.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of cutstanding bank cverdrafts when applicable.

Fingi ki
The Sub-Fund's functional currency is RMB, which is the cumency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates. The Sub-Fund's performance is evaluated and its liquidity is
managed in RMB. Morecver, the nel asset value per unit at the time of issue or redemption is
determined and units quoted on the SEHK are denominated in RMB.

Therefore, the RME is considered as the cumency that most faithfully represents the economic effects
of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The Sub-Fund’s presentation currency is also
RME.

Eoreign currency translations
Transactions during the year, including purchases and sales of securities, income and expenses, are
transiated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the funclional
currency rates of exchange riling at the end of the reporting period, Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss,

Man-monetary tems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Mon-monetary item s measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined.

Foreign currency translation gains and lesses on financial instruments classified as at FWPL are
included in profit or loss.

Taxes

The Sub-Fund is exempt from all forms of taxation in Hong Kong, including income, capital gains and
withholding taxes. Howewer, in some junisdictions, dividend income, interest income and capital gains
are subject to withholding income tax deducted at the source of the income. The Sub-Fund presents
the withholding tax separately from the gross investment gains in the statement of comprehensive
imcome, For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash inflows from investments are presented
net of withholding taxes, when applicable.

- -
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ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTEE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Redeemable units
Redeemable units are dassified as an equity instrument when:

(@) The redeemable units entitle the holder to a pro-rafa share of the Sub-Fund’s net assets in the
event of the Sub-Fund's liquidation.

(b} The redeemable units are in the class of insfruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instruments.

{c) Al redeemable units in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instruments have identical features.

{d) The redeemable units do not include any contractual chligation to deliver cash or another
financial assets other than the holder's rights to a pro-rata share of the Sub-Fund's net assets.

(&) The tolal expeded cash flows attributable to the redeemable units over the life of the instrument
are based substantially on profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change
in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Sub-Fund over the life of
the instrument.

In addition to the redeemable units having all the above features, the Sub-Fund must have no other
financial instruments or contracts that hawve:

{a) Total cash flows based substantially on profit or loss, the change in the recognisad net assets or
the change in the fair value ofthe recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Sub-Fund, and
{b) The effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual refurn to the redeemable unitholders.

The Sub-Fund continuously assesses the classification of the redeemable units. If the redeemable
units cease to have all the features or meet all the conditions set out to be classified as equity, the
Sub-Fund will reclassify them as financial liabilities and measure them at fair value at the date of
reclassification, with any differences from the presious carrying amount recognised in equity. If the
redeemable units subsequently have all the features and meel the conditions to be classified as equity,
the Sub-Fund will reclassify them as equity instruments and measure them at the camrying amount of
the liabilities at the date of the reclassification.

The issuance, acquisition and cancellation of redeemable units are accounted for as equity
transactions.

Upon issuance of redeemable units, the consideration received is included in equity. Transaction costs
incurred by the Sub-Fund in issuing or acquinng its own equity instruments are accounted for as a
deduction from eguity to the extent that they are incremental costs directly aftributable to the equity
transaction that otherwise would have been avoided.

Oren equity instruments that are reacquired are deducted from equity and accounted for at amounts
equal to the consideration paid, induding any directly aftributable incremental costs.

Mo gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale,
issuance or cancellation of the Sub-Fund®s own equity instruments,

Revenue recognition

(a) Dridend income
Dividend income is recognised on the date when the Sub-Fund's right to receive the payment is
established, Dividend income is presented gress of any non-recoverable withholding income
taxes, which are disclosed separately in the statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTEE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(b} Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the EIR by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the finandal instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, o the net carrying amount of the financial assets,

Met change in unreali ins of losses ial assets 3
This item includes changes in the fair value of financial assels and liabilities at FVPL and excludes
interest and dividend income and expensas,

Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of financial instruments for the period
and from reversal of prior period's unrealised gains and losses for financial instruments which were
realised in the reporting period.

Met realised gains or losses on financial assets at FVPL

Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial assets at FVPL are calculated using the weighted
average method. They represent the difference between an instrument’s average cost and disposal
amount.

Digtributiens to unitholders

Distributions are at the discretion of the Sub-Fund, A distribution to the Sub-Fund's unitholders is
accounted for as a dedudlion from net assels attributable to wnitholders ("NAV"). A proposed
distribution is recognised as a liability in the year in which it is approved by the Manager.

Related parties
A parly is considered to be related to the Sub-Fund if:

{a) the parlyis a person or a close member of that person's family and that person
{iy  has control or joint control over the Sub-Fund;
(i} has significant influence over the Sub-Fund; or
{iii}  isamember of the key management personne of the Sub-Fund or of a parent of the Sub-
Fund,
or

(b} the party is an enlity where any of the following conditions applies:

{i}  the entity and the Sub-Fund are members of the same group;

{ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i} the entity and the Sub-Fund are joint ventures of the same third party;

{iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

{v} theentity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Sub-
Fund or an entity related to the Sub-Fund;

{vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

{vil) a person identified in {a){i) has significant influence aver the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(vili) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel serdices to the Sub-Fund or to the parent of the Sub-Fund.
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NOTEE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AMD CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Sub-Fund's financial statements requires the Manager to make judgements,
estimates and assumplions that affect the reporied amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and
liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncerdainty
about these assumplions and estimates could result in cutcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Fair value of suspended equily investments

The suspended equity investments noted have been valued based on either |ast traded price, Index
Return Method and Market Comparable Method as detailed in note 12 to the financal statements. In
addition, the Manager made estimates about the lquidity discount, The Sub-Fund classified the fair
value of these investments as Level 2 or Level 3.

&, TRANSACTIONS WITH THE TRUSTEE AMD MANAGER AND THEIR CONMECTED PERSONS

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions entered into during the vear
between the connected persons of the Sub-Fund, as defined in the SFC Code, including the Trustee,
the Manager and their connected persons. All transadtions entered into during the year between the
Sub-Fund, the Trustee, the Manager and their connected persons were camried out in the normal
course of business and on normal commercial terms. To the best of the Manager's knowledge, the
Sub-Fund does not have any other transactions with connected persons except for those discosed
bed o

(a) Management fee
The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee from the Sub-Fund, at a rate of 0.70% (up
to @ maximum of 19%) per annum with respect to the net asset value of the Sub-Fund calculated
and accrued on each dealing day and is paid menthly in arrears.

The management fee incurred during the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted fo
RMB100.832.534 (2018 RMB71,764,466). As at 31 December 2018, a management fee of
RMBS, 376,356 (2018 RMBG, 843,073) was payable to the Manager.

(b} stndia 3 3 [
Custodian fees and fund administration fees pertain to the amounts charged by the Trustee as
safe keeping and fund administration fees. The Trustee will bear the fees of Citibank, N.A.

{the "Administrator and Custodian®) and Citibank (China) Co., Limited {the “"PRC Custodian®).

The Trustee is entitled to receive a trustee fee from the Sub-Fund which is acorued on each
dealing day and is paid monthly in arrears. The trustee fee is calculated as a percentage per
annum of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund at the current rates ranging from 0.07% to 0.10%,
subject to a monthly minirmum of LUS54,000.

Under the terms of the Trust Deed, the Trustee may, after consulting the Manager. on giving not
less than one month's notice to unitholders, increase the rate of the trustee fee payable in respect
of the Sub-Fund up to or towards the maximum rate of 1% per annum of the net asset value of
the Sub-Fund accrued daily and calculated as at each dealing day and payable monthly in arrears.

The custodian, fund administration and trustee fees for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB11,018,725 (2018 RMBY 602,593), As at 31 December 2019, the custodian,

fund administration and trustee fees of RMB4,280,120 (2018: RMB2.898.735) were payable o
the Trustee,

-5 -
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NOTES TO FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2018

5, TRAMSACTIONS WITH THE TRUSTEE AND MANAGER AND THEIR CONMECTED PERSONS
(continued)
{c) Financial statement preparation fee

The Trustes is entitled to receive a financial statement preparation fee from the Sub-Fund for the
preparation of intenim and year-end financial statements.

The financial statement preparation fee incurred during the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMBS4 948 (2018: RMBG4 248). As at 31 December 2019, a financial statement
preparation fee of RMBSS,206 (2018 RMB162,021) was payable to the Trustee,

(d) Brokerage and transaction fees
Brokerage fees pertain to the broker commission and administration fees for every transaction
made through the brokers at the average market rate of 0.08% (2018 0.08%) based on the
transaction value. Transaction fees pertain to handling fee and security management fee for every
transaction made on the Shanghai and Shenzhen exchanges and stamp duty incured for sales
transactions.

As at 31 December 2019, transaction fees of RMB426,000 (2018: RMB432,000) were payable to
the Trustee,

Far the year ended 31 December 2019, brokerage fees through CITIC Securities Co. Ltd,, the
connected person of the Manager, and Citigroup Global Markets Lid., the connected person of
the Trustee, amounted to RMB18178 (2018: RMBS58.885) and RMB188.587 (2018 Mil)

respechively.
% of the
Aggregate value Total Sub-Fund's Average
ofpurchases and commission totaltransactions commission
sales of secunlies paid dunng the period rate
RMB RMB b %
2019
CITIC Securities Co. Lid. 25,745,959 19,178 0.19% 0.07%
Citigroup Global Markets
Ltd 248245831 198,597 1.860% 0.08%
2018
CITIC Securities Co. Lid. 824 808 467 659,885 §.16% 0.08%

-25-
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= TRAMSACTIONS WITH THE TRUSTEE AND MANAGER AND THEIR CONMECTED PERSONS

(continued)

{e) Bank deposits and investiments held by the Trustee's affiliates

The imvestments and bank balances deposited with the Trustee's affiliales as at 31 December

2019 and 31 December 2018 are summarised below:

Motes
Investments
Citibank, N.A, 1 5,406,671,773
Citibank {China) Co., Limited 1 10,858,151,538
Bank balances
Citibank, M.A_ 13
Citibank (China) Co., Limited 13

2018
RMEB

6,313.801,648
54372425177

65,837,624
34,057,333

The carrying amount of cash at banks approximates toits fair value as at the year end.

& SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Manager and its connected persons have not recenved any soft dollar commissions or entered
into any soft dollar arrangements in respect of the management of the Sub-Fund for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, The Manager and its connecled persons have nat

refained any cash rebates from any broker or dealer,

7. IMCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax

Mo provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the Sub-Fund as the dividend income and
realised gain on disposal of investments of the Sub-Fund are excluded from the charge to profits tax
under Section 14, Section 26 or Section 264 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.

P istri

Aten per-cent (109) PRC withholding income tax has been levied on dividend and interest payments
from PRC-listed companies to foreign investors. The Sub-Fund is subject to a distribution tax of ten
per-cent (10%). There is no assurance that the rate of the distnibution tax will not be changed by the
PRC tax authorities in the future, The distribution tax prosided for the year ended 31 December 2018

was RMB31,694.717 (2018 RMBZ2 177 816).

& AMOUNTS DUE TO PARTICIPATING DEALERS

The balance represents the amounts due to participating dealers and is expected to be settled within

80 days.
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g, DISTRIBUTION

Undistributed income at 1 January 2018
Total comprehensive loss

Add: Net losses on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Undistributed income before distnbution

Interim distribution declared on 20 July 2018
(RMBD.35 per unit)

Transfer to capital

Undistributed income at 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2018

Total comprehensive income

Less: Met gains on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Undistributed income before distribution

Interim distribution declared on 25 July 2018
(RMBOD. 25 per unit)

Transfer to capital

Undistributed income at 31 December 2019
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RMBE

[ 3056,044,143)

3,153.323 268

97,279,125

! 85,232 5009

i 1,046,625)

4,202,495 583

( 4,055,609,008)

146,885,977

! 142,330,500)

[ 4.556.477)

The Manager may in its absolute discretion distribute income to unitholders at such time or times as
it may determine in each financial year or determine that no distribution shall be made in any finandal
wear. The amount to be distrbuted to unitholders, if any, will be derved from the net income of the

Sub-Fund.

=T =
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0.

11.

THE REDEEMAELE UNITS

2018 2018

Mumber of units Mumber of units

Units in issue at the beginning of the year 384,750,000 260,700,000
Units issued 158,000,000 214,650,000
Units redeemed {127,500,000) £ 99,600.000)
Units in issue at the end of the year 418,250,000 384,750,000
2019 2018

RMBE RME

Dealing net asset value at the end of the year 17.382,025.714 11.816519.143
Dealing net asset value per unit at the end of the year 41,7586 307122

The creation and redemption of units of the Sub-Fund can only be facilitated by or through participating
dealers. Investors other than the paricipating dealers make a request to create or redeem units
thraugh a paricipating dealer, and if the investor is a retall investor, such request must be made
through a stockbroker which has opened an account with a participating dealer.

The Trustee shall receive subscription proceeds from the participating dealers for the creation of units
and pay redemplion proceeds for the redemption of units to the relevant parlicipating dealer in such
form and manner as preseribad by the Trust Deed,

Units are denominated in RME and no fractions of a unit shall be created or issued by the Trustes.
Units of the Sub-Fund are offered and issued at their dealing net asset value only in aggregations of
a specfied number of application units (“Application Unit"). Units are redeemable only in an
Application Unit or multiple thereof at the dealing net asset value, Currently, creation and redemption
of units are effected in cash.

FIMAMCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH FROFIT OR LOSS

20318 2018
RME RME

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Listed equity securities 17,264,823,312 11,751,134,225
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NOTEE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 December 2018

12. FAIR VALUE OF FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of financial assals traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
close of trading on the period end date.

The Sub-Fund ulilises the last traded market price for financial assets where the last traded price falls
within the bid-ask spread. In circumstances where the last traded price is not within the bid-ask spread,
the Manager will determine the point within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fairvalue.

The Sub-Fund's fair value measurement assumes that the asset or liability is exchanged in an orderly
transaction between market participants to sell the asset or transfer the liability at the measurement
date under current market conditions.

When a price for an identical assel or liability is not observable, the Sub-Fund measures fair value
using ancther valuation technigue that maximises the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimises
the wuse of unobservable inputs. Because fair value is a market-based measurement, it is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, including
assumplions about risk, As a result, the Sub-Fund's intention to hold an asset or to settle or otherwisse
fulfil a liability is not relevant when measuring fair value.

Even when there is no cbservable market to pronvide pricing information about the sale of an asset or
the transfer of a liability at the measurement date, a fair value measurement shall assume that a
transaction takes place atthat date, considered from the perspective of a market participant that holds
the asset or owes the [Rability. That assumed transaction establishes a basis for estimating the price
to sell the asset or to transfer the hability.

A ion nigu

Leval 1 - Listed equify securnties fraded in active markels with quoled markef prices

When fair values of listed equity securities at the reporting date are based on quoted market prices or
binding dealer price quotations, in an active market for identical assets without any adjustments, the
imstruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy. The Sub-Fund values thesa investments at
last traded prices.

Leval 2 - Listed equiy secunties temporanly suspended on year end date

In the absence of a quoted price in an active market, the Manager applied the market approach in
which they have used the |ast traded price before their suspension as there has been no expected
material gap-down. Adjustments are made to the valuations when necessary to recognise the
differences of iming between the date of suspension and resumption which is within a reasonable
time and the price fluctuation when the investments resume trading subsequent to the year end date.
To the axtent that the significant inputs are observable, the Sub-Fund categorises these investments
as Lewvel 2.

Lewel 3 — Listed equity secunties suspended on year end date which have not resumed trading prior
{o the date of authorisation of the financial slatements

The valuation of investments suspended from trading is performed on a daily basis by the portfolio
manager of the Manager and reviewed by senior management of the Manager and the Trustee, The
fair value was estimated by the Manager using the Index Return Method and then adjusting the last
traded price by applying available data of the comesponding sector of those investments since the
suspension date, The model incorporates unobservable inputs which include the relevant industry
index. Alzo, the Market Comparable Method was used lo estimate the fair value, in which the last
traded price before the suspension of trading was used and then adjusted by applying a liguidity
discount. The model incorporates unobservable inputs which indude qualitative assessment. Both
valuation methods are generally accepted in the industry. Hence, the Sub-Fund dlassified the fair
value of these investments as Level 3. Mo investments are classified as Level 2in 2019,

i
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12. FAIR VALUE OF FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following table shows an analysis of the Sub-Fund's financial assets measured at fair value at
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2018

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active obszervable unobservable
markets nputs inputs
Leswel 1 Levvel 2 Levvel 3 Taotal
RME'DO0 RMME'D00 RME'D00 RMB000
2019
Financial t fair valu
through profit of loss
Listed equity securities 17,232,845 31,978 = 17,264,823
Financial assets al fair value
rough pro loss
Listed equity securities 11,577,361 - 173,773 11,751,134
| Y | .|
T 1

As at 31 December 2019, the Sub-Fund reclassified one listed equity security, Zhejiang Huayou
Cobalt Company Limited {stock code: 803789), from Lewel 1 to Level 2 following the suspension of
trading of the investment. This listed equity security was temporarily suspended from trading as at 31
December 2019 and resumed trading from suspension before the date of authorisation of the financial
statements for the vear ended 31 December 2019,

As at 31 December 2018, no listed equity securties were reclassified from Level 1 to Level 2,

The transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy is deemed to have occurred at
the end of the reporting period.

Transfers between Level 1and Level 3

As at 31 December 2018, nolisted equity securities were reclassified from Level 1 to Level 3 following
the resumplicn of trading of the investments. Also, the Sub-Fund transferred three listed equity
securities, namely (1) CITIC Securities Company Limited (stock code: 600030), (2) Zhongtian
Financial Group Co Ltd (stock code; 000540 and (3) Beijing Xinwei Technology Group Co Litd (stock
code: G00485), out from Level 3 following the resumption of trading of the investments,
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3 December 2018

12. FAIR VALUE OF FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 3 (continued)

As al 31 December 2018, the Sub-Fund reclassified one listed equity security, CITIC Securties Co.,
Ltd, (stock code: 600030), from Lewvel 1 to Level 3 following the suspension of trading of the
imvestments. Also, the Sub-Fund fransferred eleven listed equity securities, {13 Aluminum Corp of
China Ltd (stock code: 601800), (2) Aurcra Optoelectronics Co Ltd (stock code: 800665), (3) China
C3S5C Holdings Ltd {stock code: 600150), (4) CSSC Offshore and Marine Engineering Group Co Lid
(stock code: GO0BAS), (5) Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Heldings Co Lid (stock code:
G00332), () Inner Mongolia Junzheng Energy & Chemical Industry Group Co (stock code; 601216),
{7) Kingenta Ecological Engineering Group Co Lid (stock code: 002470), (8) Leshi Internet Information
& Technology Corp Beijing {stock code: 300104), (8) Wanda Film Halding Co Ltd (stock code: D02738),
{100 Wanhua Chemical Group Co Ltd (stock code: 800209 and (11) Wintime Energy Co Ltd (stock
code: GO015T), out from Level 3 following the resumption of trading of the investments,

The transfers between Level 1 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is deemed to have accurred at
the end of the reporting period.

The following table shows the total amount of all transfers of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss from Level 1 to Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Transfers from
Level 1to Level 3
2019 2018
RMB RMB
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Listed equity securities - 152,106,663

Transfers batween Level 2 and Level 3
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2018, no listed equities were reclassified from Level 2 to
Lewval 3,

Cuantitative information of significant unobservable inputs - Level 3
As at 31 December 2018, no listed equity securties were dassified as Level 3. Hence, quantitative
sensitivity analysis was not required as at 31 December 2018,

Description RME Valuation technique Unchservable input
31 December 2018
Equity securities
= Equity imvestment 173,772,995 Index Return Return on relevant
Method industry index
{-23% to -1%)
Market Liguidity discount
Comparable {=70%)
Meathod
¥ -
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12.  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Quantitative information of signifizant unchservable inputs - Level 3 (continued)

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categonsed within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2018 is

shown below:
Effect on the
Effect on the net assets
fair value of attributable to
Changes in investmeant unitholders
Input the inputs RMEBE RMB
As at 31 December 2018
- Equity investment AMAC Index 5% 8310812 8310,Mm2
AMAC Index (5% {8.310,912) (8,310,912)
Liguidity discourt 5%, 1,258,125 1.258.125
Liquidity discount (5%) {1,258,125) (1.259,125)

Level 3 reconciliation
The following table shows a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of financial instruments
categonised within Level 3 between the beginning and the end of the reporting periods.

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Equity securities

2019 2018

RME RMB
Cpening balance 173,772,995 275,973,391
Transfer into Level 3 - 152,106,653
Total gains in profit or loss = 23 9588 051
Transfer out from Level 3 { 173,772.995) [ 275305120}
Clesing balance — 173, 772905
Total gains for the year included in profit or loss for assets held

at the end of the reporting period - 23,958,061
13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2018

RME RME
Cash at banks 142,201,975 £9.804 057

Cash at banks held with Cibank, N A. and Citibank {China) Co., Ltd,, the affiliate companies of the
Trustee of the Sub-Fund, was placed into interest bearing accounts. The carrying amount of the cash
at banks approximates o #s fair value.

-32-
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14, INVESTMENT LIMITATION AND PROHIBITIONS UNDER THE SFC CODE

According to Chapter 7.1 of the investment limitations and prohibitions of a collective investment
scheme, the value of the Sub-Fund's holding of securities issued by any single issuer may not exceed
10% of s total net asset value,

The SFC Code allows the Sub-Fund to invest in constifuent securities issued by a single issuer for
more than 10% of the Sub-Fund's net asset value provided that:

{8) theinvestment is limited to any constituent securities that each accounts for more than 10% of
the weighting of the index; and

(b} the Sub-Fund's holding of any such constituent securities may not exceed their respective
weightings in the index, except where weightings are excesded as a result of changes in the
composition of the index and the excess is only transitional and temporary in nature,

The SFC Code further provides that, if the investment limits stated abowve are breached, the
management company should take as a priority objective all steps as are necessary within a
reasonable period of time to remedy the situation, taking due account of the interests of the unitholders.
The Trust Deed of the Trust also contains provisions mirraring the above provisions of the SFC Code,

The Manager and the Trustee have confirmed that the Sub-Fund has complied with this limit during
the: year,

There were no constituent securities that indivdually accounted for more than 10% of the net asset
value of the Sub-Fund and their respective weightings of the Index as at 31 December 2019,

5. FIMAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTNES AND POLICIES

Risk managerment
Risk is inherent in the Sub-Fund's aclivities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing

identification, measurement and monitoring. The Manager is responsible for identifying and controlling
risks. In the perspeclive of risk management, the Sub-Fund®s objective is to create and protect value
for unitholders.

The Sub-Fund is exposed to market risk (which includes equity price risk, interest rate risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising fram the financial instruments it holds,
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15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTWVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Risk management (continued)
{a) Market risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices, elther caused by factors specific to the individual instruments or
factors affecting all instruments in the market.

iy  Equity price risk
The Sub-Fund invested substantially all of its assets in A-Shares ofthose PRC companies
compriging the Index in substantially the same weightings as constituted in the Index, The
Sub-Fund is therefore exposed to substantially the same market price risk as the Index.

Wihen there are changes in the constituent A-Shares comprised in the Index andfor their
respective weightings within the Index, the Manager will rebalance the composiion of the
redlevant investment holdings or the underlying dynamic basket of A-Shares of selected
constituent companies of the Index.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2018, the Sub-Fund's investments were
concentrated in the following industries.

2019 2018
Fair value % of net Fair value % of net
RMEBE assets RMB assets
value value
A-Share holdings
- by sectors
Basic Materials 33,656 244 0.19% - -
Communication
Services 33101578 1.80% 155,751,686 1.32%
Consumer
Discretionary 1,621,648 808 9.33% 1,144,357,2583 9.68%
Consumer Staples 2081533378 11.98% 1,007 341,778 B.52%%
Energy 356,868,261 2.05% 302,021,086 2.56%
Financials 5,802,193 133 33.38% 4 105222 508 34.74%
Health Care 1232843815 7.08% 785,344,855 5.65%
Industrials 1,976,664 421 11.37% 1,650,803,080 13.97%
Infermaticn
Technology 1.602,379.443 9.22% 854,400,185 T.32%
hakerials 1,046,120,327 6.03% B16 167 680 5.91%
Real Estate 785,622,344 4.52% 559, 366,070 4.73%
Utilities 412,190,350 2.37% 360,238,004 3.05%
17,264 823 312 99 33% 11,751,134,225 99 45%

Sensitivity analysis in the evert of a possible change in the Index by 5% as estimated by
the Marnager

As at 31 December 2019, if the Index was to increase by 5% (2018; 5%) with all other
variables held constant, the pre-tax profit for the year weould have increased by
approximately RMESES million (2018: RMESE2E million). Conversely, if the Index was to
decrease by 5% (2018 5%), the pre-tax profit for the year would have decreased by an
approximately equal amount. The above sensitivity is affected by the tracking difference

of the Sub-Fund,
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NOTEE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 December 2018

15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTWVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Risk management (continued)
(@) Market nisk (continued)

(i)  Interest rate risk
Interect rate fisk is the rsk that the value of a financlal instrument or future cash flows will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The Manager considers that the Sub-Fund is not subject to significant risk due to
fluctuations in the prevailing level of market interest rates. As the Sub-Fund has no
investments in fived income assets. the Manager considers that changes in the fair value
of its net assets in the event of a change in market interest rates will not be material.
Therefare, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

iy Curency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates.

Approximately 100% (2018: 100%) of the Sub-Fund's sales and purchases were
denominated in RMB, the Sub-Fund's functicnal currency. Assets and liabilities held by
the Sub-Fund are mainly denominated in RME. Therefore, the Manager considers the
Sub-Fund is not exposed to significant currency nsk and no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

(b} Credit and counterparty risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss to the Sub-Fund that may arise on outstanding financial instruments
should a counterparty default on its obligations, The Sub-Fund minimises the exposure to credit
risk by only dealing with creditworthy counterparties.

All transactions by the Sub-Fund in securities are seltled/paid for upon delivery using approved
brokers. The risk of default is considered to be minimal, as delivery of securities is only made
once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the secunties
have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its obligation.

The Manager's policy is to closely monitor the creditworthiness of the Sub-Fund's counterparties
{e.q., brokers, custodian and banks) by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements and
press releases on a regular basis,

Credit rick disclosures are segmented into two sections based on whether the underlying
financial instrument is subject to IFRS &'s impairment disclosure requirements or not,

Financial assets subject to IFRS 9's impairment requirements

The Sub-Fund's financial assets subject to the ECL model within IFRS 9 are only cash and cash
equivalents and other receivable, As at 31 December 2018, the total of cash and cash
equivalents and other receivable was RMB142,230,827 on which no loss allowance had been
provided (2018: total of RMBE100,000,226 on which no loss allowance had been incurred). | is
considered that there 15 no concentration of credit nsk within these assels. No assels are
considered to be impaired and no amounts have been written off in the year.
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3 December 2018

15.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Risk management (continued)

{b)

Credit and counterparty risk {continued)

Financial assets subject to IFRS 9's impairment requirements (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the Sub-Fund applies the general approach
for impairment, there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk sinee initial recognition. The financial assets therefore are il classified
as stage 1 and presented in gross camrying amount,

In calculating the loss allowance, a provision matrix has been used basad on historical observed
loss rates over the expected life of the receivables adjusted for forward-looking estimates. All
the Sub-Fund's cash and cash equivalents are held In major financial instdutions lacated in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, which the Manager believes are of high credit quality. The
Manager considers the Sub-Fund is not exposed to significant credit risk and no loss allowance
has been made.

Financial assets not subject to IFRS 9's impairment requirements

The Sub-Fund is exposed to credit risk on equity securities. This class of financial assets is not
subject o IFRS 9°s impairment requirements as they are measured at FVPL. The camrying value
of these assets represents the Sub-Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk on financal
instruments not subject to IFRS 9's impairment requirements on the respective reporting dates.
Hence, no separate maximum exposure (o credit risk disclosure is provided for these
instruments.

The Sub-Fund's financial assets which are potentially subject bo concentrations of counterparty
risk consist principally of assets held with the Custodian. The fables below summarise the Sub-
Fund®s assets placed with the PRC Custodian and their related credit ratings from Standard &
Poor's {"S&P"):

21 December 2019
Source of
RMEB Credit rating credit rating
Custodians
Citibank, M.A. 6,406,671,773 A+ S&EP
Citbank (China) Co., Limited 10,858 151 538 A+ sap
21 December 2018
Source of
RMB Credit rating credit rating
Custodians
Citibank, M.A. 5,313,801 648 AA- SEP
Citibank (China) Co., Limited 5,437,242 577 BEE+ S5&P

The Manager of the Sub-Fund considers that none of these assets were impaired nor past due
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
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NOTEE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 December 2018

15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTWVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Risk management (continued}
()  Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Sub-Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash or
resources fo settle #s obligations in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are
materially disadvantageous.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Sub-Fund held liquid assets, comprising
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents and other
receivable that are expected to readily generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk,

The table below summanses the maturty profile of the Sub-Fund's financial assets and liabilities
at the end of the reporting period based on confractual undiscounted cash flows in order to
provide a complete view of the Sub-Fund's contractual commitments and liquidity.

Financial assets

Analysis of equity securities at FVPL into maturity groupings is based on the expected date on
which these assets will be realised, For other assets, the analysis into maturity groupings is
based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity
date or, if earlier, the expected date on which the assets will be realisad.

Financial liabilities

The maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to
the confractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of when the amount is paid,
the liability is allocated to the earliest period in which the Sub-Fund can be required to pay.

At 31 December 20419
Dueon  Due within 1 manth {Mote)
demand Tmonth  to1vyear Moterm Tatal
R EO0 RMB'OO0 RMB'000  RMB'G0D0 RMBOOD

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss - 17.284,823 = - 17,284,823
Other receivable - 28 - - 29
Cash and cash equivalents 142,202 - - - 142 202
Taotal financial assets 142 202 17,254 852 - - 17,407 054
Ei ial ligbilti
Management fee payable - 9376 - - 9376
Custodian, fund

administration and trustes

fees payable - - 4,706 - 4,706
Amounts due to participating

dealers - 7483 - - 7483
Cither pavables - = 3483 - 3,463
Total financial liabilities - 16,859 8,169 - 25,028

- a7 -
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NOTEE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 December 2018

15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTWVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Risk management {continued)
(e} Liquidity risk (continued)

At 31 December 2018
Due on  Due within 1 month {Mote)
demand 1month  tolyear  MNoterm Total
REAEDO0 RMB'DO0 RMBDOD  RME'GD0 RMEBQO0D

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value

thraugh profit or loss = 11577381 - 173773 11,751,134
Other receivable - 105 = = 105
Cash and cash equivalents &8 B85 - - - &0 885
Total financial assets 20885 11577466 - 173773 11851134
Einancial ligbilties
Management fee payable - 6,843 - - 5,543
Custodian, fund

administration and trustee

fees payable - 3,33 - = 3.3
Amounts due to participating

deglers <3 22,479 o = 22479
Othier payables - - 1,862 - 1962
Total financial liabilities - 32,653 1,962 - 4615
Mote:

The Manager considers there is no term of matunty for certain financial assets at FVPL because
those financial assels were suspended from trading.

Capital managemearit
The Sub-Fund's capital is represented by its net assets altnbutable to unitholders. The Sub-Fund

strives to invest the subseriptions of redeemable participating units in investments that meet the Sub-
Fund's investment objectives while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet unitholder redemptions.

The Manager manages the capital of the Sub-Fund in accordance with the Sub-Fund's investment
chjectives and pdicies stated in the prospectus.
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3 December 2018

16. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Manager makes the strategic resource allocations on behalf of the Sub-Fund and has determined
the cperating segments based on the reports reviewed which are used to make strategic decisions.

The Manager considers that the Sub-Fund has a single operating segment which is investments in
securities, The objectives of the Sub-Fund are to track the performance of the Index and invest in
substantially all the index constituents with security weight and industry weight that are closely aligned
with the characteristics of the tracked index.

The internal financial information used by the Manager for the Sub-Fund's assets, liabilties and
performance is the same as that disclosed in the statement of financial position and statement of
comprehensive income.,

The Sub-Fund is domiciled in Hong Komg. All of the Sub-Fund's income is derived from investments
in securities which constitute its tracked index. The Sub-Fund's investments are mainly domiciled in
the PRC.

The Sub-Fund has no assels classified as non-current assets. The Sub-Fund has portfolios that
closely corespond to the security weight and industry weight of its tracked index.

17. EVENTS AFTER THE REFORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of Coronanvirus Disease ("COVID-19 cutbreak™) in early 2020 had significant impact on
global financial markets. The Manager will pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial poesition and operating results of the Sub-Fund. The
Index and published MAV per unit have dropped by 9.44% and 9.51% from 1 Januwary 2020 o 27
March 2020 respectively, This is considered to be a non-adjusting event after the reporting period,
The Manager will confinue to remain alert to the situation and monitor the subscriptions and
redemptions of the Sub-Fund. During the period between the end of the reporting period and the date
of authorisation of these financial statements, there were subscription of 40,500,000 units and
redemption of 138,600,000 units of the Sub-Fund.

18. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Manager and the Trustee on
27 March 2020
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31 December 2019

Holdings Mlarket % of
Shares Value NAY
RMB
Financia assets at Tair value through profit or l0ss
Listed securities
China
Basic Materials
Tiangi Lithium Conp 1,115,187 33,656,344 0.19%
Communication Services
China Film Co Ltd 933,489 14,207, 703 0.08%
China Satellite Communications Go Ltd 502,782 5,691,452 0.03%
China United Metwork Communications Lid 11,658,864 68,670,708 0.40%
Focus Media Information Technology Co Ltd 12,858,955 80,497 058 0.46%
Giant Mebwork Group Co Ltd 768,017 13,834 267 0.08%
Mango Excellent Madia Co Ltd 660,009 23073915 0.13%
Oriental Pearl Group Co Ltd Z571.,547 24,069,680 0.14%
Perfect World Co LtdChina £41.561 28,318,502 0.16%
Wanda Film Holding Co Ltd 1,046,263 18,989673 0.11%
Wiuhu Sang Interactive Entertainment Network Technology Group
Co Ld 1,327 483 35,748,579 0.21%
Consumer Discretionary
BAIC BluePark Mew Energy Technology Co Ltd 1,738,975 10,155614 0.06%
BYD Co Ltd 1,133,234 54,021,265 0.31%
China Grand Automotive Services Group Co Litd 4,087,180 13,324,238 0.08%
China International Travel Service Corp Lid 1,214,830 108,068,024 0.682%
China Shipbuilding Industry Group Power Co Lid B47 B8 16,853,380 0.10%
Chongging Changan Auwtomobsde Co Lid 2444 7351 24,515,637 0.14%
Fuyao Glass Industry Group Co Ltd 1,748,871 41,878.405 0.24%
Great Wall Motor Co Ltd 1,512,822 13,388 475 0.08%
Gree Electric Appliances Inc of Zhuhai 6,032,141 3956, 587 807 2.28%
Guangzhou Automobile Group Co Lid 1,159,224 13,551,328 0.08%
Haier Smart Home Co Ltd 4, 622 785 80,134 558 0.52%
Hangzhou Robam Applances Co Lid 581,138 19,986,410 0.11%
HLA Corp Ltd 1.662528 12,771,287 0.07%
Huayu Automotive Systems Co Lid 1,971,429 51,237,440 0.29%
Midea Group Co Ltd 6,084,848 354,442 279 2.0:4%
Offen Education Technology Co Lid B44.707 15,103,361 0.08%
Oppein Home Group Inc 168,590 19,537 830 0.11%
SAIC Motor Corp Ltd 4, 392,758 104,767,302 0.60%
Shanghai Yuyuan Tourist Mart Group Co Lid 1,937,320 15,188,589 0.09%
Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town Co Lid 5136 888 40,016,358 0.23%
Songcheng Performance Development Co Lid 1,001 512 33, 738638 0.19%
Suning.com Co Lid 4,667 252 47185818 0.27%
TCL Corp 16,928,953 T5,672420 0.44%
Zhejiang Century Huateng Group Co Lid 2585303 24122013 0.20%
Zhejiang Supor Co Ltd 210,584 16,198,352 0.09%
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continwed)

31 December 2019

Holdings Market % of
Shares Value NAY
RMVE
Financlal assets at falr value through profit or loss
(continued)

Listed securities (continued)
China (continued)
Consumer Staples
Anhui Gujing Distilery Co Lid 154220 20,061 582 0.12%
Feshan Haitian Flaveuring & Food Ceo Lid 1,021,656 109,838, 237 0.635%
Guangdong Haid Group Co Ltd 298,524 35,961,264 0.21%
Hebei Yangyuan Zhihui Beverage Co Ltd 530,264 15,393 564 0.09%
Henan Shuanghui Imvestment & Development Co Lid 1,253,071 36,376.651 0.21%
Inrer Mongalia Y8l Industrial Group Co Ltd 7.630 818 236,097,508 1.36%
Jiangsu Yanghe Brewery Joint-Stock Co Lid 760,693 B4, 086,577 0.48%
Kweichow Moutai Co Lid 523,315 737,381,845 4. 24%
Luzhou Lagjiao Co Ltd 910,545 78,926,387 0.46%
Muyuan Foodstulf Co Ltd 1,084 804 95,319,481 0.56%
Mew Hope Livhe Co Ltd 2635747 52583153 0.30%
Shanx Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory Co Lid 323542 20,021,717 0.17%
Teagwei Co Ltd 2435936 31,983,840 0.18%
Wens Foodstuffs Group Ca Ltd 4,660,861 156,604,530 0.90%
Wiliangye Yibin Co Ltd 2,435,208 323,918 887 1.86%
Yonghui Superstores Co Lid 4,788,840 35,107,854 0.21%
Energy
China Coal Energy Co Ltd 2307670 11,584,503 0.07%
China Oilfield Services Ltd 748,387 14,369,222 0.08%
China Petrsleum & Chemical Corp 16,766,047 85,674,500 0.49%
China Shenhua Energy Co Ltd 4132407 75416428 0.43%
CMOOC Energy Technology & Services Ltd 2512000 7,380,180 0.04%
Offshore Oil Engineering Co Lid 2. 768,832 20,441,360 0.12%
PetroChina Co Lid 1214573 70,808.612 0.41%
Shaarnxi Coal Industry Co Lid 5,008,804 45,029,148 0.26%
Shanxi Meijin Energy Co Ltd 1,531,700 14,443,931 0.08%
Yanzhou Ceal Mining Co Lid 1,111,780 11,740,387 0.07%
Financials
Agricultural Bank of China Lid 47,965,037 176,990, 966 1.02%
Anxin Trust Co Lid 2743183 12,178,644 0.07%
HAvic Capital Co Lid B 745,220 32,714 317 0.18%
Bank of Beijing Co Ltd 18,531 468 105,258, 744 0.61%
Bank of Changsha Co Ltd 1,288,837 11,688,821 0.07%
Bank of Chengdu Co Lid 2268299 20482772 0.12%
Bank of China Lid 26,388,763 97,374 535 0.56%
Bank of Communications Co Ltd 34, 597 343 193,657, 041 1.11%
Bank of Guiyang Co Ltd 3214631 30,7872 0.18%

-41-

183/308



ChinafMC CSI 200 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

31 December 2019

Listed securities (continued)

Lhina (continued)

Financials {continued)
Bank of Hangzhou Co Ltd

Bank of Jmngsu Co Ltd

Bank of Manjing Co Lid

Bank of Mingbo Co Lid

Bank of Shanghai Co Ltd

Bank of Xi'an Co Ltd

Bohai Leasing Co Ltd

Caitong Secunties Co Ltd
Changiang Securities Co Ltd

China CITIC Bank Corp Lid

China Construction Bank Corp

China Everbright Bank Co Ltd

China Galaxy Secunties Co Ltd

China Great Wall Securities Co Lid
China Life Insurance Co Lid

China Merchants Bank Co Ltd

China Merchants Secunties Co Lid
China Minsheng Banking Cerp Ltd
China Pacific Insurance Group Co Ltd
Chinalin Securities Co Lid

CITIC Securities Co Ltd

CSC Financial Co Ltd

Dongxing Securities Co Lid

East Money Information Co Lid
Everbright Securties Co Lid

Founder Securities Co Lid

GF Securities Co Ltd

Guosen Securities Co Ltd

Guotai Junan Secunties Co Lid
Gueoyuan Securites Co Lid

Haiteng Securities Co Lid

Hithink Rioyal Flush information Mebwork Co Ltd
Hongta Securities Co Ltd

Huatai Securities Co Ltd

Huaxia Bank Co Lid

Hubei Biocause Pharmaceutical Co Ltd
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Ltd
Industrial Bank Co Lid

Industrial Securites Co Ltd

EDINETOOOO
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Holdings
Shares

2,564 050
11,560,570
7,440,326
3,530,233
8854 427
610,727
2318447
3,141,843
4,842 874
3,849 182
8,416,089
18,944 142
1,618,220
417,100
2,087,629
12,906,181
3,582 683
31,078,299
3,533,064
333 444
9,849 480
556,978
1,723,000
8723173
2449930
5,154,003
3,702,205
3,079,363
5,640,618
2526011
10,134 983
269,360
502,340
5,526,155
7696084
2476, 226
27,005 658
18,213,072
5,867 661
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Market
Value
RME

23,486, 698
83,688 527
65,251 659
a9 376,059
84408112
4,745,349
8810009
35,628,500
34,578,834
23,700,083
60,848,323
87 953 666
18,787 639
5,781,006
72,785,623
485,014,262
65,526 506
198,110,377
148,827,142
4,981 653
249192072
16,8321
22,640,220
108,024,438
32,004,083
44,685 206
56 162,420
38 646 008
104,295,045
23416122
156 686 837
29,389 870
8,424 242
112,238,208
59,028 564
17432631
158,793,328
60,618,826
41,543 040

Ooooooooooooooooooad

% of
HAW

0.14%
0.48%
0.37%
0.57%
0:49%
0.03%
0.05%
0.20%
0.20%
0.14%
0.35%
0.51%
0.11%
0.03%
0.42%
2.79%
0.38%
1.13%
0.85%
0.03%
1.43%
0.10%
0.13%
0.61%
0.17%
0.26%
0.32%
0.22%
0.80%
0.13%
0.50%
0.17%
0.05%
0.65%
0.34%
0.10%
0.91%
2.07%
0.24%
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

31 December 2019

Holdings Market % of
Shares Value NAV
RMEB

Listed securities {continued)
China (continued)
Financials {continued)
Minmetals Capital Co Lid 615,760 5,086,178 0.03%
Mew China Life Insurance Co Ltd 1,049,519 51,583 859 0.30%
Crient Secunbes Co Ltd'China 4479 487 48,199,065 0.28%
People’s Insurance Co Group of China Ltd 1,337,600 10,152 384 0.08%
Fing An Bank Co Lid 12,151,363 180,889,921 1.15%
Ping An Insurance Growp Co of China Lid 13,568035  1,159,524.27 B.BT%
Cingdao Rural Commercial Bank Corp 767,100 4983137 0.03%
SDIC Capital Co Lid 2114996 32,021,033 0.18%
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co Litd 14,704,217 181,891,164 1.05%
Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co Lid 11,282,004 57,763,860 0.33%
Singlink Securities Co Ltd 3,031,350 28,191,555 0.16%
SooChow Securities Co Ltd 3,008,837 30,058 282 0.17%
Southwest Securities Co Lid 3,527,989 18,310,263 0.10%
Tianfeng Secwrities Co Lid 656,700 4833312 0.03%
Viestern Securities Co Ltd 2,194 457 2,505673 0.12%
Zheshang Securities Co Ltd 1,669,200 18,578,196 0.11%
Health Care
Aier Eye Hospital Group Co Lid 1,558,883 61,712827  0.35%
Beijing Tongrentang Co Lid B77. 873 18105279 0. 11%
Changehun High & New Technology Industry Group Ine 183113 81,851,511 0.47%
Chengdu Kanghong Pharmaceutical Group Co Lid 325,000 12015250 0.07%
Chengging Zhifei Biclogical Preducts Co Ltd 587 494 28,671,682 0A7%
Dong-E-E-Jiao Co Ltd 571,873 20,227,148 0.12%
Guangezhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Co Lid 713,929 25423012 0.15%
Hangzhou Tigermed Consulting Co Ltd 645,526 40853377 0.24%
Huadong Medicine Co Ltd 1,086 668 28,736,768 0.15%
Hualan Biclogical Engineening Inc 1,058,296 371989104 0.21%
Hubei Jumpcan Pharmaceutical Co Lid 417 299 10,080,280 0.08%
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine Co Ltd 3,877,085 339,322479 1.85%
Jointown Pharmacewtical Group Co Lid T15.075 10,118,311 0.05%
Lepu Medical Technology Beijing Co Ltd 1,342,232 44,401,034 0.25%
Meinian Cnehealth Healthcare Holdings Co Ltd 3,428 658 51,067 608 0.28%
Shanghai Fosun Phammaceutical Group Co Lid 1,250,781 33,270,775 0.19%
Shanghai Pharmaceuticals Holdng Co Lid 1,440,385 26,459,846 0.15%
Shanghai RAAS Blood Products Co Lid 2489018 18475182 0.11%
Shenzhen Salubris Phamaceuticals Co Ltd 528,246 10,493,345 0.06%
Sichuan Kelun Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 1,083,893 25 460,647 0.15%
Tasly Pharmaceutical Group Co Ltd 1,134 444 17,483.126 0.10%
Tonghua Dongbao Pharmaceutical Co Lid 1,773,846 22438152 0.13%
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

31 December 2019

Holdings Market % of
Shares Value NAV
RMB
China {continued)
Health Care (confinued)
Walvax Biotechnology Co Ltd 1,546,752 50176635 0.28%
WiuXi AppTec Co Ltd 810,038 B3 832 701 D.48%
Yunnan Baiyao Group Co Ltd 833,371 56,842 380 0.33%
Zhangzhou Pientzehuang Pharmaceutical Co Lid 370,116 40,654,645 0.23%
Zhejiang NHU Co Lid 1,818,213 37,6386 0.22%
Industrials
AECC Aviation Power Co Ltd 1,125580 24402573 0.14%
Air China Ltd 3,751,496 36,351,896 0.21%
AVIC Aireraft Co Lid 1,728,206 28,308,014 0.16%
AVIC Shenyang Aircraft Co Lid 528,314 16,684,721 0.10%
AVICOPTER PLC IE2 113 17. 276411 0.10%
Beijing New Building Materials PLC 1,061,562 27 018,753 0.16%
Beijing Originwater Technology Co Ltd 2,380,404 18.081,070 0.10%
China Avionics Systems Co Ltd 656,161 8,343,733 0.0:5%
China Communications Construction Co Ltd 2,941,370 26,942,949 0.16%
China Eastern Aifines Corp Ltd 5606510 32573823 0.19%
China Gezhouba Group Co Ltd 3470626 23,183,782 0.13%
China Mational Chemical Engineering Co Ltd 3,083,854 18,880,277 0.11%
China Railway Construction Corp Ltd 5767 815G 58,485 685 0.34%
China Raltway Group Ltd 10,201,040 60.594.178 0.35%
China Shipbuilding Industry Co Litd 11,480,175 60,051,317 0.35%
China Southern Allines Co Lid 5,378, 354 38,616,654 0.22%
China Spacesat Co Lid 747,379 15,871,488 0.08%
China State Construction Engineening Corp Lid 28,282,737 147,708,982 0.85%
COSC0 SHIPPING Holdings Co Ltd 4,850,483 25.662.045 0.15%
CRRC Corp Ltd 12 180,327 B8, 967 535 0.50%
Dagin Raidway Co Lid 7,448 797 51,162 833 0.35%
Fangda Carbon New Material Co Ltd 2,040,818 24 816,347 0.14%
Guangehou Baiyun Intemational Airpert Co Lid 1,302.646 22,731,173 0.13%
Hainan Alrlines Holding Co Ltd 14,412,330 24 83330 0.14%
Han's Laser Technology Industry Group Co Litd 1,072,082 42 883,280 0.25%
Jiangsu Zhongtian Technology Co Ltd 3,069,956 25 480 635 0.15%
Metallurgical Corp of China Ltd B9181AT0 24 870,876 0.14%
MARI Technology Ceo Lid 2883442 61,071,302 0.355%
Mingbo Zhoushan Port Co Litd 4952038 18,817,744 0.11%
Power Censtruction Corp of China Lid 8,570,887 41,537,650 0.24%
ingdao Port International Co Lid 603,600 4,148,732 0.02%
Sany Heavy Industry Co Ltd 7,386,281 125,936,091 0.72%
5F Helding Co Lid 1,104,662 41,082,380 0.24%
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

31 December 2018

Holdings Market Yool
Shares Value NAV
RME

Listed securities (continued)
China {continued)
Industrials {continued)
Shanghai Construction Group Co Ltd 5.563.745 19,695,657 0.11%
Shanghal Blectric Group Co Lid 4570917 22763167 0.13%
Shanghai International Airport Co Ltd 1,183,072 84 426,920 0.54%
Shanghai international Port Group Co Lid 5,788,728 33,458 666 0.18%
Shanghai M&G Stationery inc 465,728 22,690,583 0.13%
Shenzhen Inovance Technology Co Lid 1.308.434 40,080,418 0.23%
Siasun Robot & Automation Co Lid 1,368,066 19, 166,924 0.11%
Spring Airfines Co Ltd 466,496 20,474,509 0.12%
5TO Express Co Ltd 375,286 7,318,272 10.J04%:
Suzhou Gold Mantis Censtruction Decoration Co Lid 2014,204 17,765,279 0.10%
TEEA Co Lid 4,657,191 30,870,320 0.18%
Wieichai Power Co Ltd 5,985,384 a5, 206,658 0.55%
ACMG Construction Machinery Co Ltd £ 886,235 32187727 0.15%
Xiamen C & D Ine 1,765,729 15,882 594 0.09%
Xinjiang Geldwind Science & Technology Co Lid 3448788 41,213,017 0.24%
¥TO Express Group Co Ltd 700,800 8,885,120 0.05%
¥unda Holding Co Ltd 833816 27,786,073 0.16%
Zhejiang Chint Electrics Co Ltd 1,348,715 36,145,562 0.21%
ZIhejiang Sanhua Intelligent Controls Co Ltd 1.727.510 28,537 748 0.A7%
Zhengzhou Yutong Bus Co Ltd 1,663,445 23,704, 106 0.14%
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co Ltd 6,488,235 43 341 410 0.25%
Information Technology
350 Security Technology Inc 511,710 12,030,302 0.07%
Ajsine Corp 1,388 458 32,402,504 0.18%
Avary Holding Shenzhen Co Ltd 315,158 14, 150, 554 0.08%
AVIC Jonhon Optronic Technology Co Ltd B61.185 25,826,042 0.15%
Baijing Shiji Information Technalogy Co Ltd 391,892 15,283,788 0.08%
BOE Technolegy Group Co Lid 28,670,761 134,705,255 0.77%
Chaozhou Three-Cirde Group Co Lid 1.315.588 29,311,323 0.17%
Dawming Infermation hdustry Co Ltd 792 405 27,401 385 0.16%
Fiberhome Telecommunication Technologies Co Ltd B7E. 196 24,051,580 0.14%
Foxconn Industrial Intermet Co Lid 2,233,887 40,814 842 0.25%
Gigadevice Semiconductor Beijing Inc 243,842 48 950,787 0.28%
Gledan Co Lid B45,5096 28,746,944 0.17%
GoerTek Inc 2B37.280 56,532,562 0.533%
Guangzhou Shiyuan Electronic Techneology Co Ltd 103,475 8,867 808 0.05%
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

31 December 2019

Holdings Market % of
Shares Value NAV
RMBE
Information Technology {continued)
Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Co Ltd 4683415 153,335,007 0.88%
Hengtong Optic-electric Co Ltd 1,668,343 27,127 287 0.16%
Hundsun Technologies Inc 808,709 62 705,491 0.38%
Ifytek Co Lid 1,828,264 66,486,543 0.38%
Lens Technology Co Lid 976,208 13,491,125 0.08%
LOMGI Green Energy Technolegy Co Ltd 3,308,000 82,130,875 0.47%
Lusxshare Precision Industry Co Lid 4023470 146,856, 655 0.84%
OFILM Group Co Ltd 2382228 37 162,757 0.21%
Sanan Optoelectronics Co Lid 3,063,283 56,241,876 0,32%
Shengyi Technology Co Lid 1,416,568 28,63 623 017%
Shennan Circuits Co Ltd 137.760 19,575,686 011%
Shenzhen Goodix Technobogy Co Lid 179,296 36,980,765 0.21%
Shenzhen Sunway Communication Co Ltd S60,200 43,605,642 0.25%
Tsinghua Tongfang Co Ltd 2875442 26,084 626 0.15%
Tunghsu Optoelectronic Technology Co Ltd 5,477,088 18,403,016 0.11%
Unisplendour Corp Lid 1,026,565 32,440,086 01%%
Wangsu Science & Technology Co Lid 2,438,877 23,252,981 0.13%
Wil Semiconductor Ltd 218,288 31,533,373 0.18%
Yormyou Metwork Technology Co Lid 1,574,767 44, 723,951 0.26%
Thegiang Dahua Technology Co Lid 2256800 44, BE86 973 0.26%
ZTE Corp 2.984 666 105,627,329 0.E1%
Materials
Aluminum Corp of China Ltd 2,183,445 28, 550 385 0.17%
Angang Steel Co Lid 3022504 10,125,388 0.06%
Anhui Conch Cement Co Lid 2503528 137,183,389 0.7%%
Baiyin Monferrous Group Co Lid 1,860,800 5,848 112 0.04%
Baoshan lron & Steel Co Lid 11,158,053 64,052,964 0.37%
BEMG Corp 4,176,000 15,576 480 0.059%
Baijing Criental Yuheng Waterproof Technology Co Ltd 1,117,142 28,382,006 017%
Bluestar Adisseo Co 362,400 4, 008, 144 0.02%
China Jushi Co Ltd 2,640,592 28 782 453 0.17%
China Molybdenuwm Co Ltd 8,840,960 38,546,586 0.22%
China Merthern Rare Earth Group High-Tech Co Ltd 2733008 29,625,807 0A7%
Ganfeng Lithium Co Lid 951,841 33,156,105 0.19%
Hengli Petrochemical Co Ltd 2838713 42,430 505 0.24%
Hengyi Petrochemical Co Lid 1,421,660 18,788,507 0.11%
Hestesl Co Ltd £ 315028 1372772 0.08%
Hoshine Silicon Industry Co Lid 183,932 5420476 0.03%
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

31 December 2019

Holdings Market % of
Shares Value NAV
RME
China {continued)
Materials {continued)
Inner Meongolia BaoTou Steel Union Co Ltd 28,508.873 ITEn Nz 0.22%
Inner Mengalia Junzheng Energy & Chemical industry Group Co
Ltd 4. 42676 13,279,576 0.08%
Jiangxi Copper Co Ltd 1,305,707 22 105,820 0,13%
Lomen Billions Group Co Lid 1,267,816 19,613,227 0.11%
Mingxia Bacfeng Energy Group Go Ltd 1,013,200 9 636,483 0.05%
Pangang Group Yanadum Titanium & Resources Co Ltd 5372100 15,686,532 0.08%
Rongsheng Petro Chemical Co Ltd 2,353,458 28,158,357 0.17%
Shandong Gold Mining Co Ltd 1,308,725 42 890610 0.25%
Shandaong Nanshan Aluminum Co Ltd 2,002.860 20,166,406 0.12%
Tongling Monferrous Metals Group Co Ltd 7,801,887 18,410,931 0.11%
Transfar Zhilian Co Ltd 1,617,800 11,282 244 0.06%
Wanhua Chemical Group Co Ltd 1,963,918 110,313,274 0B3%
Yanin Bicon Pharmaceutical Listed Co TI2228 12,069,924 0.07%
Zhejlang Husyou Cobalt Co Lid B11,822 31,977,669 0.18%
Zhejiang Longsheng Group Co Ltd 3,264,385 47,235,650 0.27%
Thongin Gold Corp Lid 2,163,580 18,247,158 0.11%
Zijin Mining Group Co Lid 17,205,635 TBATIBES 0.46%
Real Estate
China Fortune Land Development Co Ltd 1,510,583 43353158 0.25%
China Merchants Shekeou Industrial Zone Holdings Co Lid 3,954 318 78572259 0.45%
China Vanke Co Lid 7,285,387 234,785,554 1.35%
Gemdale Corp 28236 40,942 650 0.24%
Greenland Holdings Corp Lid 4.562100 31,706,585 0.18%
Jiangsu Zhongnan Construction Group Co Ltd 2315895 24 432 692 0.14%
Jinke Properties Group Co Lid 2682153 20,588,935 0.12%
Paoly Developments and Holdings Group Co Lid 8,958,546 144,548,274 0.83%
Red Star Macalline Group Corp Lid 508,100 5756773 0.03%
RiseSun Real Estate Development Co Ltd 2181,0% 21440124 0.12%
Seazen Holdings Co Ltd 1,128,732 43,704,503 0.25%
Ehanghai Lingang Holdings Corp Ltd 51,580 12,314,004 0.07%
Shanghai Lujiazud Finance & Trade Zone Development Co Lid 1. 102621 14,896,410 0.09%
HXinhu Zhongbao Co Ltd 5,379,304 20,333,769 0.12%
Yange Group Co Litd 2023440 17,199,240 0.10%
Youngor Group Co Lid 4,308,332 30,656,374 0.18%
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO {continuad)

31 December 2019

Holdings Market W of
Shares Value HAV
RMNE
China {continued)
Litilities
China National Muclear Power Co Ltd TIRT.TA 38,938 655 0.22%
China Yangtze Power Co Lid 11,013,166 202.421,90 1.16%
GD Power Development Co Lid 14762452 34544138 0.20%
Huadian Power Intemational Corp Lid 4,085 264 14,995 589 0.08%
Huaneng Lancang River Hydropower Inc 2,263,900 9,553,658 0.05%
Huaneng Power Intemational Inc 5512703 30,760,883 0.18%
SDIC Power Heldings Co Lid 4,243,130 38,951,833 0.22%
Sichuan Chuantou Energy Co Lid 2,207, 206 21,740,878 0.13%
Thegiang Zheneng Blectric Power Co Litd §121,807 20,281,524 0.12%
TOTAL INVESTMEMTS, AT FAIR WALUE 17,264.823,312 80.33%
TOTAL INVESTMENTS, AT COST 14 836,767 569
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MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

Year ended 31 December 2019

Holdings
Holdings as at
as at N
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS 2019  Additions Actions  Disposals 2019
Listed securities
380 Security Technalogy Ine 507 287 211,813 . 207,500 511,710
ADAMA Lid 303,200 357,465 . 680,685 -
AECC Avlation Power Co Lid 1.115.280 424,000 . 413,700 1,125580
Agricultural Bank of China Ltd 47,852,637 18,100,400 - 18988000 47 865037
Ader Eye Hosgital Group Co Lid 1,188,347 602,340 332586 573300 1,559,983
Air China Ltd 3735166  1.506,530 . 1420200  3,751495
Aisino Corp 1,391,635 542733 . 535,800 1,388,468
Adurrinurn Corp of China Lid B214.058  3.245687 - 3276300  B,183445
Angang Steel Co Lid 2,303,863  1.081,810 647,631 1,010,800 3022504
Anhui Conch Cement Ceo Lid 2,502,512 289,117 - 588,500 2,503,529
Anhui Gujing Distillery Co Ltd 3 196,920 - 42,700 154,220
Anxin Trust Co Lid 2,731,063 1,082 300 - 1,080,200 2,743,163
Awary Holding Shenzhen Co Ltd - 350,258 - 35100 315,158
ANMIC Aircraft Co Ltd 1,734,371 B26,035 - 692200 1,728,208
Avic Capital Co Ltd 5612641 3,342 873 L 2,210,400 6, 745,220
ANMIC Jonhon Optronic Technology Co Lid 495,080 20,272 156427 208,600 561,189
ANIC Shenyang Aircraft Co Lid 523,800 211,814 - 207 300 528 314
AVICOPTER PLT 358,413 106,000 - 102,300 362,113
BAIC BluePark Mew Energy Technology Co
Ltd - 1.782 875 - 54,000 1,738,875
Baiyin Monferrous Group Co Ltd 1,065,300 1,170,800 - 375,200 1,860,900
Bank of Beijing Co Ltd 18,489,700 7,362 169 - T,320400 18,531,469
Bank of Changsha Co Ltd - 1.343 837 - 54,000 1,288,837
Bank of Chengdu Co Ltd 497 575 2,188 824 - 438,100 2,258,248
Bank of China Ltd 28,354,063 10,512 500 - 10,457 800 26,388 763
Bank of Communications Co Ltd 343728934 13,608,000 - 13817600 34,397 343
Bank of Guiyang Co Ltd 1,727.135 1,578,102 607,094 697700 3,214,631
Bank of Hangzhou Co Ltd 2562850  1.013 190 - 1,041,800 2564050
Bank of Jiangsu Co Ltd 8654798 6,040,371 - 3134600 11,560570
Bank of Manjing Co Lbd 7416241 2,971,785 . 2,947,700 7,440,326
Bank of Ningbo Co Ltd 3,258,981 1.5652 852 B 1,281300 3530233
Bank of Shanghai Co Lid GEITZ0 3152409 1915488 3005200  B.894427
Bank of Xi'an Co Lid - B0, 727 - - 610,727
Bacshan lron & Steel Co Ltd 11,128,604 4,436,249 - 4405800 11,159,053
BEBMG Corp 4,178,600 1,667,200 - 1,670,500 4,178,000
Beijing Enlight Media Co Ltd 1,082,890 356,800 - 1,449400 -
Beijing Mew Building Materials PLG 1,062,338 423,824 : 414600 1,061,562
Beijing Orient Landscape & Environment Co
Ltd 1,668,348 B84, 678 - 2,564 027 -
Beijing Oriental Yuhong Waterproof
Technology Co Lid 1,122,500 424,542 - 428900 1,117,142
Beijing Origirwater Technology Co Lid 2,355,904 247,700 - 923200  2,380404
Beijing Sanju Environmental Protection and
Mew Material Co Ltd 1,473,698 481,800 B 1,955459 =
Beijing Shig Information Technology Co Lid 400,392 187,300 . 184,800 291 892
Beijing Shougang Co Ltd 1.982.548 1124 . 2264072 .
= 49 =
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MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Holdings

Holdings as at

as at M

1 January Corporate December

INVESTMENTS (continued) 2019 Additions Actions Disposals 2019

profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)

Beijing Tongrentang Co Ltd 92273 284 800 . 309100 677,973

Beijing Xinwel Technology Group Co Ltd 1,724 829 - - 1,724 829 -

Bluestar Adizseo Co - 411,100 - 48,700 362,400

BOE Technology Group Co Lid 20611.861  11.818200 - 11,780,300 29.670.761

Bohal Leasing Co Lid 2318047 920,100 - 87,700 2318447

BYD Co Ltd 1,124, 580 423,754 - 415,500 113324

Caitong Securities Co Ltd 484,700 3215143 - 568,000 3,141,843
Changchun High & Mew Technology

Industry Group Ing 175,666 103,547 - 95,100 183,113
Changiang Securities Co Lid 4,833, 208 1,827,673 . 1,917,900 4,842,874
Chaozhew Three-Circle Group Co Lid 1.302.588 528501 - 516900 1,315,580
Chengdu Kanghong Pharmaceutical Group

Co Ltd 174,300 183,160 47,040 B8 500 325,000
China Avionics Systems Co Lid 655 136 251425 B 260,400 656,181
China CITIC Bank Corp Litd 3B\ eR2 1,537,200 - 1,524,700 3841182
China Coal Energy Co Lid 2,287,570 215400 . 895,300 2307670
China Communications Construction Co Lid 2938 828 1,163,942 . 1,161,400 2841370
China Construction Bank Corp B.351,263 3350128 - 3,325,300 8416089
China Eastern Aldines Corp Ltd 4501882 2675328 . 1,970,700 5,606,510
China Everbright Bank Co Ltd 19,868 641 7838401 . 7883800 19,044 142
China Film Ce Lid 240,489 385,300 - 362,300 933,489
China Fortune Land Development Co Lid 2,254,067 839,296 - 1,582,800 1,510,563
China Galaxy Securities Co Ltd 1.608 800 638,129 - 628,700 1,618,228
China Gezhouba Group Co Ltd 3444, 581 1,388,445 - 1,362,800 3,470,626
China Grand Automaotive Services Group Co

Ltd 3075638  2,7098554 . 1,287,000 4,087,190
China Great Wall Securities Co Ltd - 488,300 - 71,200 417,100
China International Travel Service Corp Ltd 1,224 329 S08.4M - 518,800 1,214,830
China Jushi Co Ltd 2818852  1,058240 - 1,036500 2,640,592
China Life Insurance Co Ltd 2077848 839, 280 - 820,300 2087 629
China Merchants Bank Co Ltd 12873 784 517797 - 5091400 12908181
China Merchants Expressway Mabwork &

Technology Holdings Co Lid 599, 551 104,089 . BO3,650 -
China Merchants Securities Co Ltd 3,572 0683 1,413,800 - 1,403,300 3,582 653
China Merchants Shekou Industrial Zone

Holdings Co Lid 2 965,006 2068510 - 1,070,200 3,954 318
China Minsheng Banking Corp Lid 30,987,026 12378873 = 12284700 31,078,239
China Molybdenum Co Ltd 8,830,850 3,500,800 . 3,420,800 8,840,950
China Mational Chemical Engineering Co

Ltd 2455515 1481578 - B53200 3,083 89%4
China Maticnal Muclear Power Co Lid 5BIGEN 4072800 . 2121800 7TETTA
China Morthern Rare Earth Group High-

Tech Co Ltd 2717808 1,082,200 - 1,067,000 2,733,008
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MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Holdings
Holdings as at
as at N
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS (continued) 2019  Additions Actions  Disposals 2019
Financial assets at Tair value througr
profit or loss {continued)
Listed securities (continued)
China Nuclear Engineering Corp Ltd G860y 141,800 . 1,128,597 .
China Cilfield Services Lid 741,897 #0100 . 303,600 748,397
China Pacific Insurance Group Co Ltd 3,823,122 1,568, 742 - 1,558,800 3,933,084
China Petroleumn & Chemical Corp 15504347 7,085,500 - G5B33B00  16,765.047
China Petroleurn Engineering Corp 2110200 576,800 . 2,787 100 -
China Railway Construction Corp Ltd E749.916 2296003 = 2278100 5767819
China Railway Group Lid 2313381 4575089 - HEB87400 10,201,040
China Reform Health Management and
Services Group Co Ltd 902,243 121,700 - 1,023,943 -
China Satedlite Communications Co Lid . 502 782 . . 502,782
China Shenhua Energy Co Lid 2479118 2,TEZTEY . 1129500 4132407
China Shipbuilding Industry Co Lid 11,427,776 4572400 - 4530700 11,480,175
China Shipbuilding Industry Group Power Co
Ltd BE4, D56 37902 - 335200 847 668
China Seuthem Aidines Co Ltd 4,287 064 2,616,900 . 1,635600 5378364
China Spacesat Co Ltd 740,930 317,840 - 311,400 747,379
China State Construction Engineering Corp
Ltd 28223817 10,452 520 - 10,353,600 26,282 737
China United Metwork Communications Lid 11,630,592 4,827 572 - 4,599300  11,558.064
China Vanke Co Ltd 6078525 3433382 - 2MeE00 7205387
China Yangtze Power Co Ltd B.24349% 5760557 < 2991000 11,013165
Chinalin Securties Co Ltd - 357 544 - 34,200 333 444
Chengging Changan Autemobile Co Ltd 2445 231 958,900 - 959000 2444231
Chongging Zhifei Biclogical Products Co Ltd 592.995 211,559 . 207,500 597 454
CITIC Guoan Infarmation Industry Ca Lid 3428770 459,700 - 3B9BA4TO -
CITIC Securities Co Ltd 8651438 4087 851 - 3889500 9849480
CNOOC Energy Technology & Services Lid = 2512000 . . 2,512,000
COSCO SHIPPING Holdings Co Ltd 4774789 1,831,804 . 1,856300  4,850483
CRRC Ceorp Lid 12145169 4,837 458 - 4802300 12180327
C5C Financial Co Ltd 555,100 X058.578 - 207,700 Scgo78
Dagin Railway Co Lid TAM 23 2882074 - 2984000 7449787
Datang International Power Generation Co
Ltd 3,009,200 423,900 - 3523100 -
Danwning Information Industry Co Ltd - 805, 205 - 112800 792,405
DHC Software Co Lid 2,336,008 TBT, 443 = 3104441 -
Dong-E-E-Jiae Co Lid 566,975 211,858 . 207,000 271873
Dengring Securities Co Lid 1,728,179 gav.E21 - 702700 1,723,000
East Money Information Co Lid 4522744  3,320427 a40302 2080300 6723173
Everbright Securities Co Lid 2,450,003 953,127 - 963,200 2445930
Fangda Carbon Mew Matesial Co Ltd 1,335,260 E58, 283 B19675 582400 2,040,818
Fiberhome Telecommunication Technologies
CoLd BEE 421 37975 - 308,200 876,196
Financial Street Holdings Co Ltd 1,496,807 486, 700 - 1,963,507 -
First Capital Securites Co Ltd 2,618,889 370,100 L 2,988,969 -
Focus Media Information Technology Co Ltd 9,167,780 7,558,075 - 3866900 12858955
Foshan Haitian Flavouring & Food Co Ltd 1,012,984 423,872 - 415000 1,021,658

-51-

193/308



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Holdings
Holdings as at
as at |
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS (continued) 2019  Additions Actions  Disposals 2019
Financial assets at fair value througt
profit or loss {continued)
Listed securities (continued)
Foundar Securities Co Ltd 138803 2043200 - 2,028,000 5,154,003
Foxeonn Industrial Internet Co Ltd 1,479,900 1,283,887 - 529800 253087
Fuyas Glass industry Group Co Lid 1.754.521 702,850 . 707500 1,749,871
Ganfeng Lithiurn Co Ltd 978,841 406,800 . 433,800 951,841
GO Power Developrment Co Lid 14,726,728 S877.724 - S,842000 14,762 452
Gemdale Comp 2818.851 1,126.880 - 1,122200 2823621
GF Securities Co Ltd 3,685,003 1468700 . 1,461,500 3,702,203
Giant Network Group Co Lid 758,283 37,634 - 31,100 785,17
Gigadevice Semiconductor Bejjing Inc 182,871 180,371 - 118,500 243,842
Glodon Co Ltd - 955, 296 - 102, 300 845 996
GoerTek Inc 2433248 1,291,834 - B8E 800 2,837,880
Great Wall Motor Co Ltd 1,508,132 613,180 - 608,500 1,512822
Gree Electric Appliances Inc of Zhuhai 5,005,014 2401327 - 2,374,200 5,032 141
Greanland Holdings Coep Ltd 4,563,350 1,813,750 - 1,815,000 4,562 100
Guangdong Haid Group Co Ltd 388, 581 423,843 - 415,000 958 924
Guangshen Raibway Co Lid 4,240,588 580,500 - 4,831 885 -
Guangzhou Autemobile Group Co Ltd 1,154,017 450,107 - 444 800 1,158,224
Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport Co

Ltd 1,291,380 529,856 - 518,600 1,302 646
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical

Holdings Co Ltd TO7 524 317,805 . 311,900 713,929
Guangzhou Port Co Litd 2318842 762,500 - 3,081,442 -
Guangzhou Shiyuan Electronic Technology

CoLtd - 103,475 - - 103,475
Guoszen Securities Co Ltd 3,072,304 1,233,659 - 1,226,600 3,078,363
Guotai Junan Securities Co Ltd 56832175 2241144 - 2232700 5,640,619
Guoyuan Securities Co Ltd 2525178 1,003,133 - 1,002 300 2,526,011
Haier Smart Home Co Ltd 4572455 1,835,730 - 1,785,800 4, 622 285
Hainan Airines Holding Co Ltd 14,376,230 5752 200 - 5T16100 14,412,330
Haitong Securities Co Ltd 10,102,862 4,033,521 - 4,001,900 10,134,983
Hangzheou Hikvision Digital Technology Co

Ltd 4609477 1,861.238 E 1,787,300 4,683,415
Hangzhou Robam Appliances Co Ltd 585,721 211,918 - 206,500 581,139
Hangzhou Tigermed Consulting Co Lid = 646,926 - = 545,926
Han's Laser Technology Industry Group Co

Ltd 1,062,500 441,082 - 431,500 1,072,082
Hebei Yangyuan Zhihui Beverage Co Lid B5.200 570,388 31,968 158,000 530,264
Henan Shuanghui Investment &

Development Co Ltd 1,238,218 519,252 - 506,100 1,253,071
Hengli Petrochermical Co Lid 953,268  1.730462 350,783 395,800 2,638,713
Hengtong Optic-alectric Co Lid 1.666.245 583,498 . 581,400 1,658,343
Hengyi Petrochemical Co Ltd 1,639.060 542,500 . 758900 1,421,660
Hesteel Co Lid 5315528 2121400 . 2122300 5,315,028
Hithink RoyalFlush Information MNetweork Co

Ltd 267,500 105,480 - 103,800 268,360
HLA Corp Lid 2,249,628 872,700 . 1,458.400 1,662.928
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ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Holdings
Holdings as at
as at 3|
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS (continued) 2019 Additions Actions Disposals 2019
profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)
Hongta Securities Co Lid - 50230 . . 502,340
Hoshine Siicon Industry Co Lid 102,804 136,431 48, 800 104,900 183,832
Huaan Securities Co Lid 2,264 805 0TS - 2575620 -
Huadian Power International Corp Lid 4,066, 654 1.618.100 . 1,598500  4,086264
Huadong Medicine Co Ltd 920,307 408,217 164,844 3/ETH0  1,0965668
Hualan Biological Engineering inc 701,820 388 487 308,780 340,601 1,058,296
Huaneng Lancang River Hydropower Inc 2,245,800 895,300 - g77200 2,263,900
Huaneng Power International Ine 5,483,853 2,201,850 - 2172800 5512703
Huatai Securities Co Lid 4,080,658 2,977,687 - 1,532,200 5,526,135
Huaxia Bank Co Ltd 8,006,084 3,070,200 - 3,380,800 7,606,084
Huayu Automotive Systems Co Ltd 1,975,561 T77,268 - 781,400 1,871,428
Hubei Biocause Pharmaceutical Co Lid 1,846,025 1,362,501 - 732300 2,476,226
Hubei Jumpcan Pharmaceutical Co Lid 414 038 208,250 - 205,000 417,294
Hundsun Technologies Inc 610,229 284, ToH 184 482 282 800 BOS, 709
Iftytek Co Ltd 1,826,179 B2T 385 - 725300 1,528,264
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Lid 26948023 10,755,745 - 10658100 27,005 668
Industrial Bank Cao Ltd 15,574,129 B.721,843 - 6082900 18,213,072
Industrial Securities Co Litd 5 857 461 2,340,100 L 2,329900 5,867 661
Inner Mongolia BaoTou Steel Union Co Ltd 22.767,573 14002100 - 8260800 28,508 873
Inner Mongolia Junzheng Energy & Chemical
Industry Group Cao Ltd 4.215.008 1,687,700 - 1,670,100 4,242,676
Inner Mongolia Yili Industrial Group Co Ltd 7,588845  3.08,173 - 2,958,000 7,630,818
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine Co Ltd 2,763,544 1,819,852 581,189 1,287,700 3,877,085
Jiangsu Yanghe Brewery Joint- Stock Co Litd 754,076 T - 311,100 TE0,6593
Jiangsu Zhongnan Censtruction Group Co
Ltd 2315495 913,700 - 913,300 2,315,885
Jiangsu Zheagtian Technology Co Lid 3,064,163 1.231,683 - 1,225,800 3,058,956
Jiang Copper Co Lid 1,284,547 523,560 - 518,400 1,305,707
Jinke Properties Group Co Lid - 3,056 553 - 374,400 2882153
Jointewen Pharmaceutical Group Co Litd 707 BOG 317 888 - 310,700 715,075
Kangde Xin Composite Material Group Co
Ltd 2,652,450 357,300 . 3,000,750 -
Kangmei Pharmaceutical Co Lid 3,735,585 470,000 = 4,205,585 -
Kuang-Chi Technologies Co Lid 538,731 171,730 - 711,481 -
Kweichow Moutai Co Lid 619,724 Zig = . 235400 623,315
Lens Technology Co Ltd 988,489 388414 - 400,700 976,203
Lepu Medical Technology Beijng Co Ltd 1,330,315 520917 - 518,000 1,342,232
Leyard Optoslectronic Co Ltd 1,901,177 882,100 - 2783277 -
Liaoning Cheng Da Co Lid 1,628,038 212400 - 1,741,438 -
Lomon Billiens Group Co Ltd 761,900 784 2186 - 278,200 1,267 916
LOMGi Green Energy Technology Co Litd 2438,728 1,197,382 BO7 400 1,136,400 3,308,080
Luxshare Precision Industry Co Ltd 3,082 384 1434, 181 BES 115 1,358,200 4,023470
Luzhou Lagjiac Co Litd 24121 52628 - 366,200 910,549
Mango Excellent Media Co Ltd - 518,148 167,863 27,000 580,009

-63-
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ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Holdings
Holdings as at
as at k3|
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS (continued) 2019 Additions Actions Disposals 2019
profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)

Meinian Onehealth Healthcare Holdings Co
Ltd 2336650  1.548.361 437,247 BO2E00  3,420658

Metallurgical Corp of China Ltd 8,912,370 3,533,200 3,527,400 8,918,170
Midea Group Co Lid E801.613 2847833 - 23848500  6,084845
Minmetals Capital Co Ltd 665,100 271,000 118,360 438,700 615,760
Muyuan Foodstuff Co Lid 780,144 £93.857 - 289200 1,084,801
NARI Technolegy Co Ltd 2201047 1424795 - B32400 2883442
Mew China Life Insurance Co Ltd 1,040,183 423736 . 414400  1,049519
New Hope Livhe Ca Ltd 2637447  1.045800 - 1,047500 2835747
Mingbo Zhoushan Port Co Ltd 4929376 1,958862 . 1,936,000  4,852038
Mingwia Baofeng Energy Group Co Lid - 1,013,300 . . 1,013,300
Offen Education Technology Co Ltd - 844,707 - - B44 707
Offshose Oil Enginesring Co Ltd 2761132 1,104,000 . 1.085300 2768832
OFILM Group Co Lid 2,365,508 844 500 - 833300 2382228
Oppein Home Group Inc 163,958 105832 - 102,800 186,850
Qrignt Securities Co Lid/China 4465767 1,788,500 - 1,774800  4,479467
Oriental Pearl Group Co Ltd 2566757 1,020,580 E 1,045800  2,571547
Fangang Group Vanadium Titanium &

Rescurces Co Ltd - B125700 - 753,600 5,372,100
People's Insurance Co Group of China

LtdThe - 1,525,000 - 187,400 1,337 600
Perfect Word Co Lid/China 494 208 355 653 - 208,300 641 561
PetraChina Co Lid 10,110,931 5,701,700 - 3EBBEO00 1214573
Ping An Bank Co Ltd 10,729,787 5401976 = 3980400 12151363
Ping An Insurance Group Co of China Lid 13,531,610 5421225 - 5384800 135588035
Poly Developments and Holdings Group Co

Ltd B,920884 3542182 - 3,504 300 B,958 548
Power Construction Corp of China Ltd 7,645,387 4,964,500 - 3039000  9,570887
Cingdao Port International Co Ltd - 677,000 - 73,400 803,600
Qingdao Rural Commercial Bank Corp - 767,100 - . 767100
Qinghai Salt Lake Industry Co Ltd 1,744,271 247,300 - 1,99157 -
Red Star Macalline Group Corp Lid 405,200 256 600 - 153,700 508,100
RizeSun Real Estate Development Co Lid 2172067 B854 . B49500  2181,091
Rengsheng Petre Chemical Co Lid 1.568.291 1 ,343068 . 557,900 2,353459
SAIC Motor Corp Ltd 4375785 1,737,804 . 1,720,700  4,382750
Sanan Optoelectronics Co Lid 3057583 1.218000 . 1.212300 3,063,283
Sany Heawy Industry Co Lid 6824003 3410788 - 2848800 7386281
SDIC Capital Co Lid 1,053,136 1,584,360 . 832500 2114996
SDIC Power Holdings Co Lid 5,088,135 1816885 - 2681900 4243130
Seazen Holdings Co Lid 1123432 424,000 - 418700 1128732
SF Holding Co Ltd 600,554 705,708 . 01,700 1,104,662
Shaanxi Coal Industry Co Ltd 4,988,304 1,807,300 - 1,986800 5008804
Shandeng Buchang Pharmaceuticals Co Lid 540 944 207,745 138,678 BOE 368 -
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ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Holdings
Holdings as at
as at 3|
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS (continued) 2019 Additions Actions Disposals 2019
profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)
Shandong Gold Mining Co Lid 935,832 464,500 310,653 402400 1,308,725
Shandong Manshan Aluminum Co Lid BOSS 540 3567020 - 3519700 9002860
Shanghal Construction Group Ca Ltd 556702 2194020 - 2187300 5583745
Shanghai Blectric Group Co Lid 4406010 1,766 607 - 1501600 4570917
Shanghai Fesun Pharmaceutical Group Co
Ltd 1,267,826 511,855 - 518,000 1,280,781
Shanghai International Airpert Co Lid 1,200,868 479,604 - 490,400 1,199,072
Shanghai Intemational Port Group Co Lid 4047310 32083518 - 1458100 5798729
Shanghai Lingang Holdings Corp Lid - £04,500 - - 501,500
Shanghai Lujazui Finance & Trade Zone
Development Co Ltd - 1.280.61 - 148,000 1102621
Shanghai M&G Stationery Inc - 465,728 - - 485 728
Shanghai Pharmaceuticals Holding Co Lid 1,448 235 560,054 - 558,900 1,440,380
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co
Ltd 14662182 5860335 - 5818300 14,704 217
Shanghai RAAS Blood Products Co Lid 1,862,018 1,232,000 - GO, 100 2483918
Shanghai Yuyuan Tourist Mart Group Co
Ltd . 1,937,320 - . 1,937,320
Ehanxi Medjin Energy Co Ltd - 1.531,700 - - 1,531,700
Shanxi ¥Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory Co
Ltd 318,495 106,947 - 100,900 323542
Shanxi Xishan Coal & Electricky Power Co
Ltd 1,967,003 261,180 - 2228183 -
Shengyi Technology Co Ltd - 1,418 568 - - 1,416,568
Shennan Circuits Co Ltd = 137,760 - . 137,760
Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co Ltd 8444083 31312 - 3475200 11,282004
Shenzhen Goodix Technolegy Co Ltd 123,600 165,296 - 110500 170,208
Shenzhen Inovance Technology Co Lid 1.249.828 524 606 . 456,000 1,308,434
Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town Co Lid {07888 2038500 - 2000500 5136888
Shenzhen Salubris Pharmaceuticals Co
Ltd 521,585 211,860 - 207,300 526,246
Shenzhen Sunway Communication Go Ltd 978976 403,824 - 421,900 980,900
Siasun Robot & Autormation Co Lid 1,356,733 £29.933 - 517,600 1,369,066
Sichuan Chuantou Energy Co Ltd 2213838 871,967 - 878,500 2,207,206
Sichuan Kelun Pharmaceutical Co Litd 1,075,282 423911 - 415300 1,083,853
Sinalink Securties Co Ltd 3016,050 1,206,400 - 1,191,100 3,031,350
Sinopec Shanghal Petrochemical Co Ltd 2736868 BE1 430 - 3,618,258 -
Sengcheng Performance Development Co
Ltd 508, 586 483 928 - 307 400 1,081,512
SooChow Securibes Co Lid 3,003,737 1,188,800 - 1,193,800 3,008,837
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ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Holdings
Holdings as at
as at ]|
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS (continued) 2019 Additions Actions Disposals 2019
profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (comntinued)
Southwest Securties Co Lid 352,189  1.420400 - 1413800 35279089
Spring Airines Co Lid 335889 256,807 - 136,200 485 495
STO Express Co Lid 371,496 156,700 . 152,900 375,295
Suning.com Co Lid 4,652,201 1,850,251 - 1,835,200 4687252
Susfeiya Home Collecton Ca Lid 803,850 106, 084 - 209944 -
Suzhou Gold Mantis Construction
Decoration Co Ltd 1,985,204 781,800 . 752800 2,014,204
Tasly Pharmaceutical Growp Co Lid 1,128,620 426,524 - 421,100 1,134 444
TBEACo Ltd 4841408 1,877,883 - 1.862100 4857191
TCL Corp 13,553,853 8,283,000 - 4907900 16928953
Tianfeng Securities Co Ltd - 748,500 - 91,800 656,700
Tiangi Lithiurm Corp B48.203 333,880 24313 309800 1115187
Tonghua Dongbao Pharmaceutical Co Lid 1,779,435 850,611 - 856,200 1,773 846
Tongling Monferrous Metals Group Co Ltd 7887587  3.130,400 - 3116300  7o01 887
Tongwei Co Lid 2423400 953,536 . 851,000 2435936
Transfar Zhilian Co Ltd = 1.B41,200 . 223400 1,617,800
Tsinghua Tengfang Ca Lid 2583452 1,381,890 - 589900 2975442
Tunghsu Optoslectronic Technology Co Ltd 4789288  2,320.8900 . 1642100 5477088
Tus Envirenmental Science And Technology
Development Co Ltd 904 649 110,500 - 1,015,145 -
Unisplendour Corp Lid 253,975 774,260 97,950 99 600 1,026 585
Walvax Biotechnology Co Lid 1,536,006 G2 846 . 622100 1548752
Wanda Film Helding Co Ltd - 1197263 - 151,000 1,048 263
Wangsu Science & Technology Co Ltd 1,820.760  1.360T17 . 741,500 24384977
Wanhua Chemical Group Co Ltd 2048652 T 166 . BE1.900 1,963,918
Weichal Power Co Ltd 6,047 80% 2382475 - 2444800 5995384
Wens Foodstuffs Group Co Lid . 5,283,061 . 632,200 4,660,861
Western Securities Co Lid 2184125 870,932 . BEOB00  2184,457
Will Semiconductor Lid - 219,808 - . 219,898
Wintime Energy Co Ltd 7,704, 604 1,068,000 - 8772804 -
Wuchan Zhongda Group Co Lid 2,147,551 712,000 - 2858551 '
Wuhu Sang Interactive Entertainment
Metwork Technology Group Co Ltd 798,700 BAT 463 - 368,700 1,327 463
Wuliangye Yibin Co Litd 2415858 953,538 - 334,100 2435 298
WuXi AppTec Co Lid 139,300 B31,176 51,851 112,299 910,038
XCMG Construction Machinery Co Ltd 5 BE7, 339 2,328,300 - 2308400 5888 239
Kiamen © & D Inc 2123329 738,200 - 1,095,800 1,766 729
Xiamen Intretech Inc 124,000 156,863 - 280,883 =
Xiamen Tungsten Co Ltd 1,056,037 141,600 - 1,197,637 -
Xinhu Zhongbao Co Ltd 5370504 2137700 - 2128900 5379504
Xinjiang Goldwind Science & Technology
Cold 2,891,004 1,283 088 580,556 1,305,900 3448708
YanAn Bicon Pharmaceutical Listed Co 378,128 520,800 - 128,500 772,228
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ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Holdings
Holdings as at
as at b} |
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS (continued) 2018 Additions Actions Disposals 2019
profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities {continued)
Yango Group Co Ltd 2,030,440 82,200 - B28.200 2023440
Yanzhou Coal Mining Co Ltd 1119180 424,000 - 431,400 1111780
Yenghui Superstores Co Lid 4,778,852 1892288 - 1,882,400 4,788,840
¥onyou Metwork Technology Co Ltd 1,203,574 602 892 389,721 621400 1,574,787
Yeoungor Group Co Ltd 3130930 1,605,644  1,166449 1,504,700 4388332
YTO Express Group Co Lid 454,100 415,300 - 178,600 700,800
Yunda Holdng Co Ltd 173,440 597 964 47412 85,000 B33.816
Yunnan Baiyas Group Co Lid 538,007 238,484 - 263,100 633,371
Zangge Holding Co Ltd 748,346 250,000 - 988,346 -
Zhangzhou Pientzehuang Pharmaceutical
Co Ltd 358513 124,903 - 123,300 370116
Zhejiang Century Huatong Group Co Lid ETT.080 2438123 325,200 355100 2985303
Zhajiang China Commodities City Group Co
Ltd 3410457 1,009,600 - 4,510,057 -
Zhejiang Chint Electics Co Ltd 1,070,248 551,367 - 372900 1348715
Zhegiang Dehua Technology Co Lid 2,251,180 S04, 300 - BOB.600 2256890
Zhejiang Huayou Cobalt Co Ltd 612225 284,320 178,477 263,200 gi1.822
Zhejiang Lengsheng Group Co Lid 3249885 1,208,800 - 1,284,300 3.264,385
Zhejang NHU Co Ltd 1,070,130 1,004,183 - 456100 1618213
Zhejiang Sanhua |ntelligent Controls Co Ltd 1.321.084 627,038 424578 645600  1,727.510
Zhejiang Supor Co Ltd 208485 105,800 - 103,400 240,984
Zhejiang Wanfeng Auto Wheel Co Lid 1.650629 227,904 - 1,878,533 -
Zhejiang Zheneng Electric Power Co Ltd 5,083,603 204495 - 2016900 5,121,587
Zhengzhou Yutang Bus Co Lid 1,848,669 851 577 - 637,800  1,663.446
Zheshang Securities Co Lid 1,670,400 554 800 - 656,000 1669200
Zhongjin Gold Corp Ltd 2153783 855,487 - 845700  2163.580
Zhongtian Financial Group Co Ltd 3773150 - - 3,773,150 -
Zijin Mining Group Co Lid 15,111,883  7.557,642 - 5,463,800 17,205,635
Zoomiicn Heawy Industry Science and
Technology Co Ltd 5,619,555 2977380 * 2,108,700 6,488,235
ZTE Corp 2875654 1187812 - 1,178,600 2984 BB6
- &7 -
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ChinafMC CSI 300 index ETF
{a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

PERFORMANCE RECORD

Year ended 31 December 2019

1. MET ASSET VALUE |calculated in accordance with the Sub-Fund's Trust Deed)

Met assets
attributable to Met asset value
unithalders per unit
RME RWMB
As at:
31 December 2010 17,382,025 714 41.7586
31 December 2018 11,816,518,143 30,7122
31 December 2017 11,083,007 702 41,1309
2. HIGHEST ISSUE AND LOWEST REDEMPTION PRICES PER UNIT*

Highest Lowest
issue redemption
unit price unit price
RMB RMB

During the yeariperiod ended,
31 December 2019 41.7585 20.2426
31 December 2018 44,7342 30,5351
31 December 2017 43,1972 D.o102
31 December 2016 36,5111 20,1665
31 December 2015 53.7690 30.5877
31 December 2014 35,3314 21,0387
31 December 2013 2741918 21.6261
31 December 2012° 24 96564 21,1203

3 COMPARISON OF THE SCHEME PERFORMANCE AND THE ACTUAL INDEX PERFORMANCE®

The table below illustrates the comparison between the Sub-Fund's performance (Market-to-Market) and
that of the Index during the following year/pencd:

RMB counter of

The Index the Sub-Fund  HKD counter of the
(since 16 July {since 17 July  Sub-Fund (since 25
2012) 2012) October 2012)

Curing the yearipencd ended:
31 December 2019 00 16% 71.65% G4.83%
31 December 2018 4351% 27.88% 2522%
31 December 2017 88.27% T0.04% 75.45%
31 December 2016 37.94% 39.88% 33.75%
31 December 2015 55.48% 57.44% 59 33%
31 December 2014 47.25% 41.94% S2.57%
31 December 2013 -2.90% -4 5% 4.44%
31 December 2012° 513% 4.13% 11.72%

* Pasl performance Sgures shown ane nof indoalive of the fulure performnance of the Sub-Fund
¥ The finncaal penoa of e Sub-Fund edended from 11 Judy 2072 [dale of incaplion] fa 31 Decernber 20012
© T fnancisd perod of the Sub-Fundg exfendsd from 11 July 2017 (date of incephion] Jo 31 Decernber 2042

.68 .
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(2020 30 )

11,996,978,020.21
(181,634,247,226 )

21,919,726.48
(331,864,659 )

11,975,058,293.73
(181,302,382,567 )

304,350,000

39.3463
(59 )
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(2020 30 )
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CAMHK CEO CI0

ETF
ETF
2020 30 40
4,830

(2020 30 )

( )
5 78,266,346.44
4 1,482,424,949.00
9 1,560,691,295.44
ETE 14 1,883,425,382.82
3 31,292,286.67
4 78,242,589.33
21 1,992,960,258.82
3 142,164 ,266.57
7 793,140,202.63
10 935,304,469.20
40 4,488,956,023.46
( 4,830 )
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131

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong Kong

27 UFJ 13.88
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2019 12 31
2019 2019 2018 2018
JPY JPY
4 299,365,566  4,155,194,056 327,133,775  4,540,616,797
4 15,560,424 215,978,685 13,631,566 189,206,136

314,925,990 4,371,172,741 340,765,341  4,729,822,933

5 (97,052,192) (1,347,084,425)  (77,934,478) (1,081,730,555)
6 (30,735,360)  (426,606,797)  (48,820,181)  (677,624,112)
(43,116,636)  (598,458,908)  (53,823,344)  (747,068,015)
(8,016,405)  (111,267,701) (5,922,804)  (82,208,520)
9 10  (13,508,435)  (187,497,078) (367,810) (5.105,203)
(192,429,028) (2,670,914,909)  (186,868,617) (2,593,736,405)
7 12,941,175 179,623,509 (16,961,891)  (235,431,047)
135,438,137  1,879,881,341 136,934,833  1,900,655,481

10 (817,563)  (11,347,774)
134,620,574  1,868,533,567 136,934,833  1,900,655,481
8 (18,581,224)  (257,907,389)  (18,114,196)  (251,425,040)

116,039,350 1,610,626,178 118,820,637 1,649,230,441

(14,702) (204,064) 5,745 79,741

(14,702) (204,064) 5,745 79,741

116,024,648 1,610,422,114 118,826,382  1,649,310,182
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2019 12 31
2019 2019 2018 2018
JPY JPY
9 1,638,273 22,739,229 609,267 8,456,626
10 11,890,346 165,038,002
11 109,391 1,518,347 53,074 736,667
12 144,724,593  2,008,777,351 162,044,314  2,249,175,078
3,906,038 54,215,807
13 511,719 7,102,660 776,512 10,777,987
158,874,322  2,205,175,589 167,389,205  2,323,362,165
2,997,542 41,605,883 2,040,583 28,323,292
14 98,289,431 1,364,257,302 95,483,954  1,325,317,282
7,929,748 110,064,902 9,339,371 129,630,469
8,345,164 115,830,876
15 760,724,680 10,558,858,558 602,709,538  8,365,608,387
4,144,568 57,526,604
12 44,473,374 617,290,431
16 50,209,000 696,900,920 92,834,296  1,288,540,028
968,768,343 13,446,504,600 810,752,906 11,253,250,334
17 93,744,561 1,301,174,507 78,314,719  1,087,008,300
601,692 8,351,485 3,032,514 42,091,294
10 12,093,942 167,863,915
61,967,334 860,106,596 75,067,185 1,041,932,528
2,495,226 34,633,737
21,697,097 301,155,706 317,724 4,410,009
192,599,852  2,673,285,946 156,732,142  2,175,442,131
776,168,491 10,773,218,654 654,020,764 9,077,808,203
2,391,804 33,198,240
2,391,804 33,198,240
935,042,813 12,978,394,243 819,018,165 11,367,972,128
18 200,000,000 2,776,000,000 200,000,000 2,776,000,000
735,036,479 10,202,306,329 618,997,129  8,591,680,151
6,334 87,916 21,036 291,980
935,042,813 12,978,394,245 819,018,165 11,367,972,131
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Zhang Xiaoling Gan Tian
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2019 12 31
2018 200,000,000 500,176,492 15,291 700,191,783
118,820,637 118,820,637
5,745 5,745
118,820,637 5,745 118,826,382
2018 12 31 2019 200,000,000 618,997,129 21,036 819,018,165
116,039, 350 116,039, 350
(14,702) (14,702)
116,039, 350 (14,702) 116,024,648
2019 12 31 200,000,000 735,036,479 6,334 935,042,813
JPY JPY JPY JPY
2018 2,776,000,000  6,942,449,709 212,239 9,718,661,948
1,649,230,442 1,649,230,442
79,741 79,741
1,649,230,442 79,741  1,649,310,183
2018 12 31 2019 2,776,000,000  8,591,680,151 291,980  11,367,972,131
1,610,626,178 1,610,626,178
(204,064) (204,064)
1,610,626,178 (204,064)  1,610,422,114
2019 12 31 2,776,000,000  10,202,306,329 87,916  12,978,394,245
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2019 12 31
2019 2019 2018 2018

JPY JPY
134,620,574  1,868,533,567 136,934,833  1,900,655,481
9 10 13,508,435 187,497,078 367,810 5,105,203
11 25,608 355,439 17,379 241,221
4,192,352 58,189,846 3,751,592 52,072,097

817,563 11,347,774
7 (10,395,083)  (144,283,752) (34,842) (483,607)
7 (54,934) (762,484)
12 (10,351,180)  (143,674,378) 14,223,615 197,423,776
16 (209,000) (2,900,920) (762,829)  (10,588,067)
4 (232,461) (3,226,559)
132,209,269  1,835,064,654 154,210,163  2,140,437,062
(238,530) (3.310,796) (133,159) (1,848,247)
(956,959)  (13,282,591) 537,090 7,454,809
(2,805,477)  (38,940,021) 101,942,590  1,414,963,149
1,409,623 19,565,567 (1,747,071)  (24,249,345)
8,345,164 115,830,876 53,356,390 740,586,693
(2,430,822)  (33,739,809) 2,311,254 32,080,206
15,429,842 214,166,207 19,188,589 266,337,615
(13,099,851)  (181,825,932)  (55,642,373)  (772,316,137)
137,862,259  1,913,528,155 274,023,473  3,803,445,804
3,065,600 42,550,528 (18,242,049)  (253,199,640)
(2,653) (36,824) (3,971) (55,117)
140,925,206  1,956,041,859 255,777,453  3,550,191,047

(92,511,640) (1,284,061,563)

(199,008,909)

(2,762,243 ,657)

(50,000,000)  (694,000,000)  (99,837,403) (1,385,743,154)
(1,566,154)  (21,738,218) (221,399) (3,073,018)
(81,925) (1,137,119) (36,179) (502, 165)
178,938,546  2,483,667,018 36,099,208 501,057,007
7,820,870 108,553,676

34,778,827 482,730,118  (255,183,812) (3,541,951,311)
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2019 2019 2018 2018
JPY JPY

(13,481,832)  (187,127,828)
(13,481,832)  (187,127,828)

162,222,201  2,251,644,149 593,641 8,239,736
602,709,538  8,365,608,387 605,861,734  8,409,360,868
(4,207,059)  (58,393,978) (3,745,837)  (51,992,217)

760,724,680 10,558,858,558 602,709,538  8,365,608,387

15 91,829,493 1,274,593,363 47,054,175 653,111,949
15 668,895,163  9,284,264,862 555,655,316  7,712,495,786
15 24 333 47 652

760,724,680 10,558,858,558 602,709,538  8,365,608,387

14,102,471 195,742,297 7,796,353 108,213,380
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2019 12 31
37
Securities and Futures Ordinance
2019 12 31 58,625,000,000 2018

48,224,000,000

2.1
HKFRS
HKFRS
2019 12 31
379(3) 2019 12 31
2019 2018 12 31
436
2019 2018

406(2) 407(2) (3
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2019 12 31

2.1

2019 12 31

2.2

(a

2019 HKFRS 16
2018
2019

HKFRS 16 HKAS 17
2019
2019
4.28
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2019 12 31
2.2
(a
(
HKFRS 16
2019
2019 12
HKAS 17
(
2018 12 31 28,906,924
27,820,366
(3,062,155)
2019 24,758,211
12,664,269

12,093,942
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2.2
(a
(
( 2019
2019
24,861,633
24,758,211
2019
(b
2019

103,422

12 31
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2019 12 31

(a
(b
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2019 12 31
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2019 12 31

(a

¢ @&@C)
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2019 12 31
33.33
33.33
20.00
HKFRS

HKAS 39
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2019 12 31

(a

ocClI

FVOCI

(b

(c

FVPL
FVPL

FVOCI
FVPL FVPL
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2019 12 31
(c
ocCl ocCl
FVPL
FVOCI
(d

HKFRS
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2019 12 31

(a

¢

223/308



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12 31

(c

(@

(e

MPF
MPF MPF

MPF

MPF

MPF
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2019 12 31

2.2
2.2

2018 12 31

2019
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2019 12 31
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2019 12 31

12 IT
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2019 12 31

2019 2018
274,870,257 280,428,321
13,316,009 31,659,528
11,125,211 14,999, 406
54,089 46,520
299,365,566 327,133,775
13,803,179 9,871,642
481,055 2,825,931
232,461
1,276,190 701,532
15,560,424 13,631,566

2019 2018
93,835,041 75,256,568
3,217,151 2,677,910
97,052,192 77,934,478

2019 2018
2,051,406 3,953,692
13,481,832
28,683,954 31,384,657
30,735,360 48,820,181
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2019 2018

10,395,083 34,842

54,934

10,351,180 (14,223,615)

209,000 762,829
(8,014,088) (3,590, 881)
12,941,175 (16,961,891)

16.5 2018  16.5
2019 2018

18,513,150 23,593,337
(197,638) (5,550,507)
264,793 67,396
2,779 4,511
(1,860) (541)
18,581,224 18,114,196
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2019 2018
134,620,574 136,934,833
22,077,333 22,531,508
(4,694,618) (2.306,493)
2,153,945 3,495,174
(755,934) (122,341)
(199, 498) (5.551,048)
) 67,396
18,581,224 18,114,196
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12,173,254 7,285,472 149,530 19,608,256
(11,870,328) (6,913,714) (68,536) (18,852,578)
302,926 371,758 80,994 755,678
302,926 371,758 80,994 755,678
115,107 106,292 221,399
(108, 360) (233,191) (26,259) (367,810)
309,673 244,859 54,735 609,267
12,288,361 7,391,764 149,530 19,829,655
(11,978,688) (7,146,905) (94,795) (19,220, 388)
309,673 244,859 54,735 609,267
12,288,361 7,391,764 149,530 19,829,655
(11,978,688) (7,146,905) (94,795) (19,220, 388)
309,673 244,859 54,735 609,267
309,673 244,859 54,735 609,267
1,566,154 1,566,154

(161,568) (352,973) (22,607) (537,148)
148,105 1,458,040 32,128 1,638,273
12,288,361 8,957,918 149,530 21,395,809
(12,140, 256) (7,499,878) (117,402) (19,757,536)
148,105 1,458,040 32,128 1,638,273
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2019 12 31
10
(
2019 2019
11,890,346 24,861,633
11,890,346 24,861,633
12,093,942 12,664,269
12,093,942
12,093,942 24,758,211
(
2019 2018
12,971,287
12,971,287
817,563
817,563
2019 13,481,832
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11

2018

2018

2018

2019

2019

2019

31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31
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413,168
(378,894)
34,274

34,274
36,179
(17,379)
53,074

449,347
(396,273)
53,074

449,347
(396,273)
53,074

53,074
81,925
(25,608)

109,391

531,272
(421,881)
109,391
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12

2019 12 31

Fund Vasco ChinaAMC China Opportunities Fund

(a

12 31

12 31

¢

2019 12 31

2018 12 31
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ChinaAMC China Growth Fund ChinaAMC Summerbrook Fund ChinaAMC Select
ChinaAMC Investment Trust

2019 2018
133,106, 869 152,045,406
11,617,724 9,998,908
144,724,593 162,044,314
2019 2018
44,473,374
44,473,374
2019 2018
5,019,402 (14,223,615)
5,331,778
10,351,180 (14,223,615)

8,345,164
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2018
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2019 12 31

14

HKFRS

2019
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843,908

(67,396)

776,512

(264,793)

511,719

2019 2018
64,311,626 65,489,567
28,906,025 26,441,488
5,071,780 3,552,899
98,289,431 95,483,954
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2019 12 31
15
2019 2018
91,829,493 47,054,175
24 47
668,895,163 555,655,316
760,724,680 602,709,538
12 31 usD 502,662,533
2018 331,929,894 16,580,603 2018 16,726,390
1,761,468 2018 1,325,740 84,315 2018
113,602 8,672,517 2018 5,304,167
16
2019 12 31
ChinaAMC Select Fund 2019 12 31
50,209,000 2018 92,834,296 2019 12 31
209,000 2018 762,829
50
2020
17
2019 2018
90,422,716 73,449,553
3,321,845 4,865,166

93,744,561 78,314,719
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2019 12 31

18

200,000,000 2018 200,000,000

200,000,000 200,000,000
2019 2018 12 31
19
2019 2018
() 64,691,664 74,420,840
() 1,805,303
(
NAV 0.3
(
NAV 15 20
2019 2018
16,404,277 15,338,362

23,371,995 2018 26,331,332
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2019 12 31
20
2018
12 31
2019 2018
189,197,967 189,197,967 162,044,314 162,044,314

21

22
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2019 12 31

22

(a

HKFRS

HKFRS

I
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2019 12 31

22

b

2019 12 31

44,473,374 144,724,593 189,197,967

4,144,568 4,144,568

48,986,495 49,302,936 98,289,431
5,092,270 2,837,478 7,929,748
760,724,680 760,724,680
814,803,445 100,758,356 144,724,593  1,060,286,394
93,744,561 93,744,561
3,370,458 8,987,888 12,358,346
601,692 601,692
33,771,963 28,195,371 61,967,334
131,488,674 37,183,259 168,671,933
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2019 12 31
22
(b
2018 12 31
162,044,314 162,044,314
3,906,038 3,906,038
68,835,281 26,648,673 95,483,954
5,992,612 3,346,759 9,339,371
602,709,538 602,709,538
512,254 7,832,910 8,345,164
678,049,685 37,828,342 165,950,352 881,828,379
78,314,719 78,314,719
3,032,514 3,032,514
74,471,819 595, 366 75,067,185
155,819,052 595,366 156,414,418
(c
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(c
(
2019 12 31
24,302,848 2018
1,287,698
691,579
(
(
2019 12 31
2018
2018

32,156,547

2018

2018

12,743,931
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1,235,121 2018 87,689,470
3,168,658 2019 12 31
1,140,845 2018
473,987 2018 294,944
11,970,348
2018

2018
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23

2019 12 31
2,376,146,983
31,354,965 2018
3,089,220
3,305,999
2018 244,879,703

24

2020 2019

25

NAV
39,849,039
2019 12 31
CovID
2020 16
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1,750,277,324 2018

875,169 2018
3,677,743 2018
227,789,243

coviD 19
CoviID 19



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Motes 2018 2018
HKS HKS
INCOME

Revenue 4 200385566 32T 133775
Other income 4 15,560,424 13,631,566
314825680 340,765,341

EXPEMSES
Employes benefits expenses =] (97.052,192)  (77.934.478)
Administrative and other operating expenses ] {30.735360) (48,820,181)
Distribution fees, sales commissions and rebates (43.116,636)  (53,823,344)
Shared management and performance fees (8,018 405) 15,922 804)
Depreciation 9,10 (13.508.435) {367.810)
Total expenses {192,420.028) (185.865.617)
Othver gaind(loss) = net 7 128411756 (16.861.851)
Crperating gains 135438137 136,834,823
Finance cost 10 (B17.563) =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 134,620,574 135,934,833
TAX g (18.581.224)  (18.114.196)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 116,038,350 118,820,637

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Cther comprehensive income to be reclassified

subsequently to

prafit ar loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations {14.702) 5,745
Cther comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (14,702) 5,745

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE PARENT 116024 648 118,826,382
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
CONEOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 20148

Motes 208 2048
HKE HK3

NON-CURREMNT ASSETS
Praperty, plant and equipment a 1,638.273 B0, 267
Right-of-use assels 10 11,880,346 -
Infangible assets 11 108,381 53074
Financlal assets held at fair value through profit or loss 12 144,724,583 162,044,214
Rental and utility deposits - 3,506,038
Defarred lax assels 13 511,718 76512
158,874,322 167,389,205

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments 2,897 542 2,040,583
Fea receivables 14 08,280 431 05,483 054
Other receivables 7920748 9,339,371
Receivable for investment sold - 8,345 164
Cash and cash equivalenis 15 60,724,680 802,700 538
Rental and utility deposits 4,144,565 -
Finarcial assels held at fair value through profit or loss 12 A4 473 374 -
Investment in a fund 16 50,208,000 92,834,296

965,768,343 810,752,906

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Fea payables 17 a3, 744,561 78,314,710
income received in advance 601 682 3,032,514
Leasa liabilities 10 12,093 842 -
Oiher payables and accrued liabilities 61,967,334 75,067,185
Provision for leasehold reinstatement 2,495 22§ -
Tax payables 21,697,087 317,724

192500862 156,732,142

HET CURRENT ASSETS 776,168,491 654,020,764

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY

Prawvision for leasehold reinstatement - 2,381 804
. ..2:391.804

Net assels 935,042,813 819,018,165

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 18 200,000,000 200,000,000

Relained sarnings 735,036,479  ©18,997,120

Other resenvas 6,334 21,036

Equity sttributable to owners of the parent 035,042,813 819,018,166

The financial statements on pages 6 to 37 were approved by the Board of Direclors on 18 March 2020 and
wera signed on ils behalf,
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CHIMNA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Share Retained Exchange
capital eamings resenve Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS
At 1 January 2018 200,000,000 500,176,492 15291 700,191,783
Prafit for the year - 118,820,637 - 118,820,637
Other comprehensive income
for the year:
Exchange differences on transliation
of foreign operations - - 9,745 5,745
Total comprehensive income
far the year - 118,820,637 5745 118,826,382
At 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019 200,000,000 618,997,129 21036 819018165
Prafit for the year - 116,039,350 - 116,038 350
Other comprehensive income
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - (14,702) (14,702)
Total comprehensive income
for the year = 116,038,350 (14,7020 116,024,648
At 31 December 2019 200,000,000 T35.035.479 6,334 935042813
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CHIMNA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Notes 2019 2018
HKS HKS
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIMG ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 134,620,574 136,924 833
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 9,10 13,508,435 367,510
Amortisation 11 25,608 17.379
Unrealised exchange lossas, net 4,192 352 3,751,592
Interest expense on lease 817 583 -
Met gain on sale of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss 7 (10,385,083) {34 B42)
Met gain on sale of imvestment in funds 7 - (54,834)
Fair value (gainsilosses on financial assets
at fair value through profit or lass 12 (10,351,180) 14,223 615
Fair value gains on investment in funds 16 {200.000) (7T62,829)
Dividend income 4 - {232 461)
132,200,269 154,210,163
Inerease in rental and ulility deposits (238,530) (133,159)
{Increase)fdecrease in prepayments (956,959) 537,080
{Increase)/decrease in fee receivables (2,805 477) 101,842,590
Decreaselincrease) in other receivables 1,408,623 (1,747,071)
Decrease in receivable for investment scld 8,345 164 53,356,390
{Decrease)fincrease in income received in advance (2,430,822) 2.311.254
Increase in fee payables 15,428,842 19,183,589
Decreasze in other payables and acerued liabilities (13,090.851) (55642 373)
Cash generated from operations 137,862,258 274023473
Hong Keng profits tax refundedfipaid) 3062600  (18.242,048)
Fareign taxes paid (2,653 (3.971)
Met cash generated from operating activities 140,925,206 255777453

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of financial assets held at fair value

through profit or loss (92,511,640) (199.008,508)
Purchases of investment in funds (50,000,000) (99,837 403)
Purchases of tems of property, plant and equipment (1,566,154) (221,388)
Purchases of intangible assets (81.925) (38,178}
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets held at

fair value through prefit or loss 178,938,546 36.089,208
Proceeds from digposal of nvestment in funds - 7.820.870
Met cash generated fromf{used in) investing activities 34,778,827 (255183.812)
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

CASH FLOWSE FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Principal elements of lease payments

Met cash flows used in financing activity

MET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rale changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIWALENTS AT EMD OF YEAR

AMALYSIS OF BALAMCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at banks
Mon pledged time deposits with onginal maturity of
less than three months
Cash on hand

NET CASH FLOWS
INCLUDE:
Interest received

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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Motes 2019 2018

HKS HKS

(13,481,832) -

(13,481,832 5

162,222, 201 593,641

502,709,538 505,861,734

(4,207 D59 {3.745.837)

760,724,680 502,709,538

15 1,829 483 47,054,175

15 858,805 163 555 655,316

15 24 47

750,724 680 802,709 538
14,102,471 _ 77963
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMNG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

1. CORPORATE INMFORMATION

The registered office of China Asset Management (Heng Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is located at
37/F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Heng Kong.

The principal activities of the Company consisted of asset management and investment advisory
senvices, The Company has a license under the Secunties and Futures Ordinance, authorising the
Company to provide types 1, 4 and 9 regulated activities with regards o dealing in securiies, advising
on securities and asset management, respedively.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Asset Management Co., Ltd. (the *Parent™), a
company registered in the People’s Republic of China.

As at 31 December 2018, the assets under management and advisory of the Company had reached
HK$58, 625,000,000 (2018: HKS48.224,000,000).

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost canvention except for Snancial assats hald at fair value through profit
or loss, that have besn measured at fair value,

The preparation of the consclidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain ecriical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting pdicies.

The consclidated financial infermation for the year ended 31 December 2019 has been prepared for
reporting the results to the parent company. The Company, as a wholly owned subsidiary of its parent
company, has applied section 3793) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance to prepare company
level financial statements as the Company's statutory financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018, Consequently, these consolidated financial statements and the comparatives do not
conslitute the Company’s statutory financial statem ents for either of the years ended 31 December 2019
or 2018,

As the Company is an unlisted company, it is not required o deliver its finandial statements to the
Registrar of Companies, and has not done =0,

Information relating to the Company's statutory financial statements required to be disclosed in
accordance with section 436 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

The Company's auditor has reported on the company level financial statements for both years. The
auditor's reports were unqualified; did not include a reference to any matters to which the auditor drew

attention by way of emphasis: and did not contain a statement under either sections 406(2), 407(2) or
{3) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,

11
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMNG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED,)

Basis of consolldation

The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidianes (collectively referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019, The
consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiares are consolidated from the
date on which the Group oblains cantrol, and continue to be consclidated until the date that such contral
Ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-contralling interest
having a deficit balance, Al intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consclidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the threa elements of contral described in the accounting poliey for
subsidianes below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of contrad, is
accounted for as an equity transacion.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabiliies of the subsidiary, {ii) the carrying amouwnt of any non-conftrolling interest and (i) the cumulative
transiation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
{ii} the fair value of any investment retained and (ii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits. as appropriate, on the same basis as would be reguired if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHAMGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AMND DISCLOSURES
{a) Mew and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted HKFRS 18 Leases retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the
standard. The reclassifications and the adjusiments arsing from the new leasing rules are therefore
recognised inthe opening balance sheet an 1 January 2019. The new accounting poicies are disclosed
in note 3.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been dassified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities
were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019, The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2018 was 4 28%,

{i} FPractical expadients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first tim e, the Group has used the following practical expedients permitted

by the standard:

. applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reascnably similar charactenistics

# relying on previous assessments on whether leasas are oneraus as an alternative to parforming
an impaiment review — there were no onercus confracts as at 1 January 2019

* accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1

January 2019 as short-tern leases

12

250/308



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED

NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

22

(a)

(b)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Mew and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

(i Fractical expedients applied (confinued)

. excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the night-of-use asset at the date of initial
application, and
* using hindsight in determining the lease term whera the contract contains options to extend or

terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of
initial application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date the Group relied on its
assessment made applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Amangement
contains a Lease,

(i) Measurement of lease habilties

HEKS
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 28,908,924
Discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate of at the date of initial 2T 820 366
application
(Less)add: adjustments relating to management fee (3.062,155)
Leasa liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 24,758,211
Of which are:
Current lease liabilities 12,664,269
Mon-current lease liabilities 12,083,942

(i) Measurement of right-of-use assels

The associated right-af-use assels for property |eases were measured on a relrospective basis as if the
new rules had always been applied. Cther right-of use assels were measured at the amount equal to
the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or acerued lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018,

{iv) Adiustmernts recognised in the balance sheet on 1 January 2012

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019:

. right-of-use assets — increase by HK524 861 633
. lease labilities - increase by HK524 758,211
. provision for leasehold reinstatement — increase by HK$103.422.

The net impact on retained eamings on 1 January 2019 was nil,

Mew standards and intempretation not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatery for
31 December 20192 reporting periods and have not been eary adopted by the Group. These standards

are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporing periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.

13
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CHIMNA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlied by the Company.
Contral is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involbvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those retumns through its power over the investee (ie.
existing rights that give the Group the cument ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voling or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

{a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
by rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
ic) the Group's veling rights and potential voting rights.

i combination d goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method, The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assels transferred by the Group, liabilites assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the esquity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-contralling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and enlitle their holders to a propertionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquires’'s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and perinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acqulres.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
the amount recognised for non-contralling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and habilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assels acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase,

Fair value measurem ent
The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value

is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Bability in an ordedy transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,

14
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (COMTIMUED)

Fair value measurement {(continued)

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantagecus market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generale economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market paticipant that would use the asset inits highest and best use,

The Group uses valuation technigues that are approprigte in the drecumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assats and liabilties for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1= based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asseats or liabilities

Lewvel 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobsensable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consoclidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group detemines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporing penod.

Where an indication of impairment exists. or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required
{other than financal assets), the assel's recoverable amount is estimated. An assel's recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and s fair value less costs to
sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific o the asset. Animpairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
imcome in the peried in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is an indicalion that previously
recognised impaiment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previcusly recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
however not to an amourt higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciaion/amorisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period in which it arises.
15
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (COMTIMUED)

Related parties
A party is considerad to be related fo the Group if:

{a) the parly is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person,

i) has contral or joint control aver the Group;
(i}  has significant influence over the Group; or
iy  isa member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

{b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

iy  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

{iiy one enlity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

ity the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

{iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

vy the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in {a), and

iwii) a person identified in (2){i) has significant influence over the entity oris a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.,
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the consclidated statement of comprehensive
income in the pericd in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be dearly demonsirated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benafits expected to be obtained from
the use of an item of property, plant and equipment and where the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement. Where
significant parts of propery, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lves and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each tem of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Crwver the leasehold term
Computer and office equipment 3333%
Furniture and fixtures 33.33%
Communications equipment 20.00%
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CHIMNA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (COMTIMUED)

z = - eni @ana dep "':-L". j e

Where parts of an item of propery, plant and equipment have different useful lves, the cost of that item
is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately, Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial

year end,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future esconomic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or refirement recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

| ikl ith fini I i

Accounting software has a finite useful life and is amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there s an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite wseful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has ansen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow will be required to settle the cbligations, provided that
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbligation,

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value
at the financial year end of the fulure expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount ansing from the passage of time is induded in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Ei ial | :
HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 30 thal relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of finandal assets and financial liabilities, derscognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

{a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categonies:
+  those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
+  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the finandial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income (“OCI7). For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through cther comprehensive income ("FVQCI™). The
Group reclassifies debl imvestments when and only when its business model for managing those assels
changes.
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments {continued)
(b Recognition and derecognition

Regqular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecoegnised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

{c) Measurement

At nitial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (*FUYPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets camried at FVPL are expensed
in profit or loss.

For debt instruments, subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics ofthe asset, The measurement categary
inta which the Group classifies its debt instruments is FWPL which do not meets the eritera for amortised
cast or FVOCH. A gain o loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised
in profit or loss and presanted net within other gainsflosses) in the period in which it arises.

For equity instruments, the Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. VWhere
the Group's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity invesiments in
QCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and lesses to profit o loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or
less as other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of finandal assets at FVPL are recognised in other gainsfilosses) in the
statement of profit or less as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of mpainm ent losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

The other recaivables are recognisad initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.,

(d) Impairment
The Group assesses on the expected credit losses associated with other receivables and the simplified

approach permitted by HKFRS 8 is applied, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hand, cash at bank and demand deposits, which
are not restricted as to use,

Contingencies and commitments
Transaclions are classified as contingendes where the Group's obligations depend on uncertain future
events and principally consist of third party obligations, Rems are dassified as commitments whare the

Group commits itself to future transactions or if the items will result in the acquisition of assets.

Income tax

Income tax compnises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income or in equity if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different
pericd, directly in equity.

Curment tax assets and liabiliies are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorties based on tay rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting penod, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for finandial reporting

pUrposes.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, camyforward of unusad tax
credits and unused tax losses, tothe extent that itis probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the camyforaard of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, excepl:

= where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognifion of an assel or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the lime
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

+ in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint
veniures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary

differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

The camying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that @ has become probable that sufficient taxable
prafit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assest to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and labiliies are measured at the tax rates thal are expected to apply to the pariod
when the asset is realised or the liability is seitled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authonty.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) management and advisory fee incomes are recognised when the service provided has been
rendered;

(b} interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exaclly discounts the estimated future cash receipls over the expectad life of the financial
instrument or a shorter penod, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial assat,

(c) profit and loss on disposals of financial instruments classified as financial assets held at fair value
through profit or loss are caleulated using the first in first cut method;

(d) performance fees are recegnised on the performance fee valuation day of the investment funds
and managed accounts when there is a positive perfformance for the relevant performance period,
taking into consideration the relevant basis of calculation for the investment funds and managed
accounts; and

(&) subscription and redemplion fee income are recognised upon subscription and redemption by the
imvestors in the imvestment funds.
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (COMTIMUED)

Employes benefits
Retirement scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatery Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme {the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who
are eigible to participate in the Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salares and are charged to the consclidated staterment of comprehensive income as
they becom e payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from these of the Group in an independenty administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except
for the Group's employer voluntary comtributions, which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contibutions vesting fully, in accordance with the mles of the MPF
Scheme.

The curent sendce cost of the MPF Scheme, recognised in the consolidated statemernt of
comprehensive income in employea benefit expense except where included in the cost of an aszet,
refiects the increase in the defined benefit obligation results from employee service in the current year,
benefit changes, curtalments and setlements.

Bonus
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Group recognises a liability where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive cbligation.

Pard F
Thase consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS™), which is the
Group's presentation currency and the Company's funclional currency.

Foreign transactions are initially recorded using the functional curency rates prevailing at the date of
transactions. Monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the financial year end. Al differences are recognised in
profit or loss, Non-monetary items that are measured in tarms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
transiated using the exchange rates at the dates of initial transactions. Mon-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined, The gain or loss ansing on transiation of a non-monetary tem measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
of loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

Cn consolidation the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into HKS at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statement of comprehensive income are translated
at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions, The exchange differences arnsing on
translation for consolidation are recognised in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that parficular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjusiments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities ansing on acquisiion are treated as assets and liabilties of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (COMTIMUED)

Leases
As explained in note 2.2 abowve, the Group has changed its accounting policy for leases where the Group
is the lessee. The new policy is described below and the impact of the change is desecribed in note 2.2

Until 31 December 2018, leases of office where the Group, as lessee, had substantially all the risks and
rewards of cwnership were classified as operating leases. Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred tothe Group aslessee were classified as operaling
leazes Payments made under operating leases (et of any incentives recaived from the lessor) were
charged to profit or loss on a straightine basis over the peried of the lease.

From 1 January 2018, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a comesponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
of rate as at the commencement date;

® amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;

* the exercise price of a purchasze oplion ifthe Group is reasenably certain to exercise that option;
and

* payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that aption.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension oplions are also induded in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implict in the lease. If that rate cannct be
readily determined, which is generally the case for [eases in the Group, the lessee's incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary bo obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic enviranment
with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental bomawing rate, the Group:

U where possible, uses recent third-party financing recsived by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was
received;

* uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for

leases held by the Group, which does not have recent third party financing; and
makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country, cumency and security
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (COMTIMUED)

Lease (continued)

The Group is exposed to potential fulure increases in vanable lease payments based on an index or
rate, which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against
the right-of-use assel.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease pericd so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period,

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the inifial measurement of lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs; and

. reskoration costs

Right-cf-use assets are generally depreciated owver the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asselis depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life, While the Group revalues its land and
buildings that are presented within propery, plant and equipment, # has chosen not to do so for the
right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
aseats are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leazes are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less, Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items
aof office furniture.

Extension and termination cptions are included in the office lease agreement. These are used o
maximise operatienal flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group's operations. The
majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable by the lessor.

|t ent in & fund

Imvestment in a fund is cassified as held for sale if #s carving amount will be recoverad principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.
It is measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, An impairment loss
is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the assel to fair value less costs to sell. A gain
is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess
of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not presdously recognised by
the date of the sale of the investment in a fund is recognised at the date of derecognition. Investment in
a fund is not depreciated or amortised while it is classified as held for sale. Investment in a fund classified
as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED

NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

4 REVEMNUE AND OTHER INCOME
2019 2018
HKS HKS
Management fee income 274 8T0 257 280,428 321
Performance fee income 13,316,008 31,859,528
Advisory fee income 11,125,211 14,980 406
Subscription and redemption fee income 54,088 45,520
299 365 566 327 133,775
Cther income:
Interest income 13,803,179 9.871642
Soft dollars inceme 481,055 282591
Dividend income - 232 481
Cthers 1.276,190 701.532
15,560, 424 13,631,566
5. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
2018 2018
HKS HES
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,835 041 75,256,568
Pension scheme contributions 3217151 2677910
07,052,192 77934478
. ADMIMISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATIMNG EXPENSES
2018 2018
HKS HKS
Legal and professional fees 2,051 406 3,953)592
Minimum lease payments under operating leases
of land and buildings - 13,481,832
General and administrative expenses (Mote) 28,683,954 31,384 657
48,820,181

Mote:

30,735,360

General and administrative expenses consists of lravelling expenses, information sendces expenseas,
marketing and adverising expenses, building management fee and other administrative expenses.
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

7. OTHER GAINSKLOSSES) - NET

2019 2018
HKS HKS
Met gains on sale of financial assets held at fair value
through profit or loss 10,395,083 34,842
Met gains on sale of investment in funds - 54 934
Met fair value gainsflosses) on financial assels held at fair value
thraugh profit or loss (Note 12) 10,351,180 {14,223 615)
Met fair value gains on investment in funds 209,000 762,828
Foreign exchange losses, net (8.014,088) (3.580.851)
12041 175 {16,961 .881)

TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018. 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

2018 2018
HKS HES
Current tax -~ Hong Kong
Charge for the year 18,513,150 23,583 337
Cverprovision for prior year (197 638) (5,550,507}
Deferred tax charge (Maote 13) 264,793 67,396
Current tax — elsewhere
Charge for the year 2,718 4511
Creerprovision for prior year {1.860) (541}
Total tax charge for the vear 18,581,224 18,114,106

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the domestic tax rates to the tax

expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

Profit before tax

2018
HKS

134,820,574

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to

profits in the respective countries
Income not subject o tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Utilisation of tax loss
Crverprovision for prior year
Cithers
Tax charge at the effective rate

22077333
(4,684 618)
2,153,945

(755,834)

(199, 498)

i4)
18,581,224

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 14% (2018: 13%).

2018
HKS

136,934,833

22 531 508
{2,306,493)
3,495.174

(122341)

(5.551,048)
67,396
18,114,196

At the year end, no tax loss was estimated by the Group (2018: HKS1,319,003) that are available
indefinitedy for offsetting against future assessable profits of the Group.
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Coamputer
Leasehold and office  Communication
improvements equipment equipment Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS

At 1 January 2018
Cost 12173254 72685472 148,530 18,608,256
Accumulated depreciation {11.870,328) {5,913.714) (68.536) (18,852.578)
Met book amount 302926 371758 BO.904 755,678
Year ended 31 December 2018
Gpening net book amount 302826 371,758 80,994 755678
Additions 115107 106,292 - 221,309
Depreciation charge {108 360) (Z33,181) (26,259) (357.810)
Closing net book amount 309673 244 855 54735 608,267
At 31 December 2018
Cost 12,288,361 7,391,764 149,530 19,828,655
Accumulated depreciation {11,978.683) (7, 146,905) (94, 795) {19,220,388)
Met book ameount 208,673 244,830 54,735 G090, 267
At 1 January 2019
Cost 12,288,361 7,301,764 149,530 18,820,655
Accumulated depreciation {11,978 688) (7 146, 805) (E4,795) (19,220,388)
Met book amount 309,673 244 B59 54,735 609,267
Year ended 31 December 2019
Cpening net boak amount 309,673 244,859 54,735 608,267
Additions - 1,566,154 - 1,566,154
Depreciation charge (161,563) (352.973) (22.607) (537.148)
Closing net book amount 148,105 1,458,040 32128 1,638,273
At 31 December 2019
Cost 12,288,361 8,957,918 149,530 21,395,800
Accumulated depreciation {12,140 256) (7 458, 878) (117.402) (19,757.538)
Met book amount 148,105 1,458,040 32128 1,638,273
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

10. LEASE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee,

(i} Amourd recognised in the balance sheet
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leasas:

1 January
2019 2019
HES HKS
Right-of-use assets
Office 11,890, 346 24 861633
11,890,346 24,861,633
Lease Liabilities
Current 12,093,942 12,664 269
Mon-current - 12.083 942
12,093,842 24,758,211
{#) Amourts recognised i the statement of profi or loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
2019 2018
HKS HKS
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Office 12,871,287 -
12,971,287 =
Interest expense 817 563 =
817,563 -

The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was HK513 481 232

(i) The Group's leasing activiies and how these ane accounted for
The Group leases an office. Rental contract is made for fixed periods of 3 years, but may have
extension options as described in note 3.

See note 2 and note 3 for other accounting policies relevant to leases.
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

11. INTANGIBELE ASSET

Software
HKS

At 1 January 2018
Cost 413,188
Accumulated amortisation (378.894)
Met boak amount 34,274
Year ended 31 December 2018
Cpening net book amount 24274
Addition 36,179
Amorisation charge __(17.379)
Closing net book amount __ 53074
At 31 December 2018
Cost 440 347
Accumulated amortisation (396,273)
Met book amouwnt 53074
At 1 January 2019
Cost 449,347
Accumulated amortisation {398,.273)
Met book amount __S3074
Year ended 31 December 2019
Opening nat book amount 53.074
Addition 81,925
Amortisation charge (25,608)
Closing net book amount 109,391
At 31 December 2019
Cost 531,272
Accumulated amortisation (421,881)

Met book amouwnt 108,391

The intangible asset is comprised of purchased softwares and they have an economic life of 3 years,
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12 FINAMCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THRCOUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Ooooooooooooooooooad

As at 31 December 2018 the Group's financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss consisted
of investment funds managed by the Group, namely China®MC China Growth Fund, ChinadMC
Summerbrook Fund, ChinaAMC Select Fund, Vasco ChinaAMC China Opportunities Fund and

ChinaaMC Investment Trust,

(@) Classification of financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

2018 2018
HKS HiKS
Mon-current assets
Investment fund - Hong Kong 133,106 850 152,045 406
Imvestment fund - Australia 11,617,724 9,998 508
Market value of investments at 31 December 144,724 503 162,044,314
2019 2018
HKS HKS
Current assets
Investment fund - Hong Kong 44,473,374 -
Market value of investments at 31 December 44,473,374 -
(b}  Amounts recognised in profit o loss
2018 2018
HKS HES
Fair value gains/(losses) on non-curent financial assels
held at fair value through profit or loss 5,019 402 {14,223 615)
Fair value gains on current financial assets
held at fair value through profit or loss 5331778 -
Total fair value gain/{losses) on financial assets held
at fair value through profit or loss 10,351,180 (14,223 6815)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has no receivable for investment sold,

Asat 31 December 2018, the receivable forinvestment sold amounted to HKS8, 345,164 was unsecured,

interest-free and repayable within three months.
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

13 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as follows:

Depredation in

axcess of
depreciation
allowance
HKS
At 1 January 2018 843 908
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the year (Mate 8) {67.396)
Gross deferred tax asset at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 Tr6.512
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the year (Mote &) (264, 783)
Gross deferred tax asset at 31 December 2019 511,719
14, FEE RECEIVAEBLES
2019 2018
HKS HKS
Management fee receivables 64,311,626 65,488 567
Performance fee receivables 28,905 025 26,441 488
Advisory fee receivables 5,071,780 3,552,859
08,280 431 95,483 954

The Group's business terms with its customers are mainly on credit, The credit period is generally
ranged from one to three months, extending up to sik months for major customers. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables, Crverdue balances are reviewed regulary by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's fee receivables relate
to aumber of diversified customers, there |5 no significant concentration of credit dsk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its fee receivable balances. Fee receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuning expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all fee receivables, To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables has been grouped based on shared credit risk characterstics and the days past due. As of
the year end date, all fee recenables of the Group are neither past due nor impaired,
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

156 CASH AMD CASH EQUINALENTS

2018 2018
HKS HKS
Cash at bank 61,820,483 47 054,175
Cash on hand 24 47
Time deposits E68 BO5 163 555,655 316

760,724 680 602,700,538

Cash at bank earns interests at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The camrying amounts
of the cash and cash eguivalents approximate to their fair values, Shor term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates.

Atthe end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances ofthe Group denominated in USD, RMEB,
JPY, AUD and EUR amounted to HK3502 652,533 (2018: HKS331,928 854), HKS16,580,603 (2018:
HES16,726,300), HKS1,761.468 (2018 HKS1.325740), HKS84.315 (2018 HKS113,602) and
HKS8,672,517 (2018: HKS5,304,167), respectively.

16. INVESTMENT IN A FUND

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's investment in & fund consisted of an investment fund managed
by the Group, namely ChinaAMC Select Fund, which domicile in Hong Keng. The investment in a fund
is short-term holding with market value of HK$50,200,000 as of 31 December 2019 (2018&:
HKS92 834 206). The unrealized gains on investment in funds of HKS200 000 (2018: HKST762 820) was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2018,

After the end of the reporting period, the Group reduced its shareholding of the investment fund to less

than 50%. The directors of the Group is committed to a plan to sell the investment fund andfor perform
redemption to reduce the shareholding in 2020,

17. FEE PAYABLES

2018 208

HES HEKS

Distribution fee, sales commission and rebate payables 80422 716 73448 553
Cither payables 3321 845 4 BE5 166
93,744,561 78.214.718
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NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

18

18.

SHARE CAPITAL

MNumber of Share capital
shares HES
Issued and fully paid:
{2018: 200,000,000)
ordinary shares 200,000,000 200,000,000

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2018, there was no movement in share capital,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these consdlidated financial statements, the Group
had the following material related party transactions during the year:

MNotes 2019 2018

HKS HKS

Management fee income from managed funds (i} 54,691,654 74,420,840
Performance fee income from managed funds i) 1,805,303 =

MNotes:

(i} This represents management fees received from funds with a comm on director, These fees
are calculated at rates ranging from 0.3% to 2% per annum of the net asset value ("NAV")
of the managed funds at each valuation paint,

{ii) This represents performance fees received from funds with a common director. These fees
were caleulated at rates ranging from 15% to 20% of the appreciation in the NAV (before
deduction of any acerued performance fee) per parlicipating share of the relevant cass.

Cutstanding balances with related parties:

2019 2018
HES HKS
Fees receivables from managed funds 16,404,277 15338362

All cutstanding balances were unsecured, interest-free and were repayable within three months. The
above fee receivables consisted of management fee and performance fee receivables.

The salanes and cther short term benefits paid or payable to key management for employves sendces
for the year amounted to HKS23 371,905 (2018: HKS26.331,332).
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NOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

20.

21,

22,

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of rental and ulility deposits, fee receivables, other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, fee payables, accrued bonus, and other payables and accrued
liabilibes approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturties of these
instruments.

During the vear, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and
no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both finandal assets and financial liabilities (2018; Mil).

The following table presents the Group's financial aszets that are measured at fair value at 31 December

2019 2018
Lewed 1 Level 2 Total Lewvel 1 Leved 2 Total
HKS HKS HKS HES HES HKS
Financial assets held
at fair value through
profit or loss - 188,187 957 180197 967 - 162 044 314162 044 314

CAPITAL MAMNAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AMND POLICIES

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern so that it continues to provide returns for shareholder and to support the
Group's stability and growth, Mo changes were made in the objectivies, polices of processes for
managing capital during the year.

FIMAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial assets comprise financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss,
rental and utility deposits, fee receivables, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and receivable
from investment sold. The Group has vanous financial liabdlities such as fee payables, income received
in advance, accrued bonus, other payables and accrued liabilities, which anse directly from its

operations.
Risks arising from holding financial instruments are inherent in the Group's activities and are managed

through a process of ongeoing identification, measurement and monitoring. The main risks arising from
the Group's financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
MNOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

22, FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CBJECTNES AND POLICIES (CONTIMNUED)

(@) Credirisk

Credit fisk relfates to the extent to which failures by counterparties to discharge their obligations
could reduce the amount of future cash flows from financial assets on hand as at the financial year
end. The Group is exposed to credit risk mainly on cash at bank (including demand deposits and
saving deposits), financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss, fees receivables,
investment in funds and the deposits paid for the operating lease arrangements.

Credit isk anses from credit exposures with respect to the investment funds and advisory accounts
on the outstanding fees receivable. The Group's finance team assesses the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account their inancial position, past experience and other factors, The
Board of Directors does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group applies the HKFR S 9 general model for the non-trade related intercompany receivables
and other receivables and simplified approach to measunng expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime ewxpected loss allowance for all management fee receivables and trade related
intercompany receivables.

All the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial institutions located in Hong
Kong, Singapore and the United States of America. which the Board of Directors believes are of
high credit quality. The Board of Oirectors considers that the Group does not have a significant
concentration of credit risk.

The identified impairment loss under simplified approach was immaterial as the history of defaults
from management fee receivables and trade related intercompany receivables are minimal.

As the amount of non-trade related intercompany receivables was immaterial, the identified
impairment was considered as minimal.

Cash and cash equivalents, prepayment are also subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 8, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

The Group minimise exposure to credit risk by only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
the Group's management continuously monitors credit concentrations to reduce the associated
risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk related to the Group at the financial year end is the total
carrying value of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

(b)  Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk isthe risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. The Group's strategy is to minimise its exposure to liquidity
risk by monitoring the liquid capital from time to ime.
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MNOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

22, FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CBJECTNES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

&)

Liguigity r —

The maturity profile of the Group's financial assets and liabilities at the financial year end, based
on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

31 December 2019 Cue
on demand
and within 3 mionths
I months to1year 1toSyears Total
HES HES HEKS HES
Financial assets
Financial assets held at fair value
through profit or loss - A4 473374 144,724 583 189187 967
Rental and utility deposits - 4, 144 568 - 4,144 568
Fed receivables 48986495 49302936 - 898289431
Other receivables 5,082,270 2837478 - 7,929 748
Cash and cash equivalents 760,724,680 - - 760,724,880
Total undiscounted Bnancial assets 814,803 445 100,758,356 144,724,593 1,060.286,35%4
Financial liabilities
Fee payables 93,744 581 - - 93,744, 581
Lease abilties 3370458 8937883 = 12,358,345
Income received in advance 601,692 - - 601,692
Administrative, other payables and
accrued labilities 3377883 28 1953M - 61,967,334
Total undscounted Bnancial kabilities 131,488,674 37183258 - 168.671,823
3 December 2018 Due
on demand
and within 3 months
3 months to1vyear 1lo5Syears Total
HES HES HES HEKS
Financial assets
Financial assets held at fair value
through profit or loss - - 162044314 162044 314
Rental and utility deposits - - 3,908,038 3,906,038
Fee receivables EBE35281 2 B48E73 - 95,483 554
COther receivables 5,882,612 36,758 - 9,338,371
Cash and cagh equivalents 802,708,538 - - 602,709,528
Receivable for imvestment sold 512,264 T.832.910 = 8,345,164
Total undiscounted Enancial assels B78.040.685 37 828342 1656000352 881,828,370
Financial liabilities
Fes payables 78314719 - - TB.314, 718
Income received in advance 3,032,514 - - 3,032514
Administrative, other payables and
accrued liabilities T4.471.819 585,366 - 75,067,185
Total undiscounted Bnancial abilties 155,819,052 595,365 - 156414418
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MNOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

22,

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CBJECTNES AND POLICIES (CONTIMNUED)

e

IMarket risk

Market nisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows will fuctuate due to changes in market
variables such as foreign exchange rales and interest rates. Market risk is managed and
monitared on an on-going basis by the management,

(i) Foreign clrency sk
Cumrency risk is the risk that the future cash flows or the fair value of finandial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates,

The functional currency of the Group is HKS. The Group is thus exposed to foreign cumency
risk which arises from its fransactions denominated in currencies other than its functional
currency. The primary currency giving rise to this Aizk is Renminbi ("RMB") and Euro ("EUR"™).
As of 31 December 2019, the Group has RMB denominated financial assets and liabilities of
RMB24,302, 842 (2018 RMB32,158.574) and RMB1.235,121 (2018 RMBST 589 470)
respectively, Assuming a 5% change on the RMB exchange rate, the effect on profit before
tax and equity of the Group is HK$1,287 698 (2018 HKS3,168,658). As of 31 December
2019, the Group has EUR denominated financial assets and liabilities of EUR1,140,845
(2018; EURES1,579) and EUR Mil (2018 EUR Nil) respectively. Assuming a 5% change on
the EUR exchange rate, the effect on profit before tax and equity of the Group is HKS473 987
(2018; HKS284,.944), In order to manage the foreign currencies risk, the Group performs
regular review on the currency profile of the financial assets and liabilities held, and consider
appropriate aclions according to expectation on market. At the financial year end, the
management considers the Group's exposure to foreign currency nisk to be minimal as the
Group has the right to negotiate with #s major counterparties to settie the financial
instruments by HKS or US dollar.

(i} fnterest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a finandal instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in interest rates.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly from holding the saving deposits. At the
financial year end, the management considers the Group exposure to this risk be minimal.

{iit) Price risk
Financial assets held at fair value through proft or loss and investment in funds mainly
represent seed capital invested in the funds managed by the Group. The fair value of the
investments fluctuates in accordance with their perfformance.

As at 31 December 2019, if the performance of the funds increased by 5% (2018, 5%) with
all other variables held constant on these consclidated financial statements, this would
increase the profit before tax for the year by approximately HKS11,5970,248 (2018 increase
the changes in equity of HK$12,743,931). Conversely, If the performance of the funds
decreased by 5% (2018; 5%), this would decrease the profit before tax for the year by
approdimately equal amount (2018: decrease the profit before tax for the year by
approximately equal amount). In practice, the actual performance of the funds will differ from
the sensitivity analysis depending on the market conditions and investiment strategy and the
difference could be material_
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CHIMNA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
MNOTES TO COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

23 UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Group manages several investment funds which meet the definition of structured entities. The
Group holds interests in these structured enbities through the receipt of management fees and
performance fees from these funds. and an equity holding in certain of these funds.

Asat 31 December 2019, the total NAV of these managed funds were approximately HKS1,750,277,324
{2018 HKS2,376,146 983). The Group's interest in these managed funds was mainly management fee
income of HKS 31,354,965 (2018: HKS38 848,039) and performance fee income of HKSET5, 165 (2018:
HK$3,089,220) for the year, including cutstanding fee receivable of HKS3 677,743 (2018: HK$3,305,999)
as at 31 December 2019, The equity holding in certain of these funds amounted to HIK$227 789,243
(2018: HKS244 879 703), The maximum axposure to loss is equal lo the interest shown above,

24, SUBSEQUENT EVENT
After the outbreak of Coronavius Disease 2018 ("COVID-18 cutbreak”™ in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and confrol measures have been and conlinued to be implemented across the
countryfregion. The Group will pay close attention to the development of the COVID-12 cutbreak and
evaluate its impact on the financial position and cperating results of the Group. As at the date on which
this set of finandial statements were authorised for issue, the Group was nat aware of any material
adverse effects on the financial statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.

25, APPROVAL OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consdlidated financial statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the Board of
Directors on 16 March 2020.
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() (2018 12 31 ) 34

(Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited)
) (2020 30 ) 80,239,882

(Citibank, N.A.)

) (2019 30 ) 751
)
(Citibank (China) Co., Limited)
() (2020 30 ) 3,970
)
ABN BNP
C )
«C ) JP
C ) UBS
C )
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ABN
(ABN AMRO Clearing Hong Kong 1éggg,3oo,ogg /
Limited)
BNP 2,747,950,530
BNP Paribas Securities éOZO’ ’ 28 /
(Asia) Limited
BOCI Securities 406 /
Limited 2019 10 25
(China 1,155,220,000
International Capital Corporation 5020' ’ /
Hong Kong Securities Limited)
( ) (China 5 500
T?;?::gis Securities (HK) Co., 2018 12 31 /
CITIC 1,150 /
Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited 2019 25
(Citigroup 35323’522’128 /
Global Markets Asia Limited)
(Credit Suisse 2 égig,ggg,ooo /
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)
(Deutsche Securities Asia 1&;23’089’160 /
Limited)
Goldman 151,712,958 /
Sachs (Asia) Securities Limited 2019 12 24
( ) Guotai 7 500
i?;?:ed Securities (Hong Kong) 2019 30 /
Haitong
- - 11,500
t?;?izztlonal Securities  Company 2019 30 /
P 1,153,365,600
J.P. Morgan Broking (Hong 5019’ ’ /
Kong) Limited
7,687,441,764
- - 350 /
Macquarie Bank Limited 2019 14
- 17
M Il Lynch F East
o erri ync ar Eas 2019 12 19 /
Morgan 76,750,002 /
Stanley Hong Kong Securities 2020
Limited
174,200
(Nomura International 830871 000 /
(Hong Kong) Limited) 2019 26
( ) SG 439,553,600 /
Securities (HK) Limited 2019 15
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BNP Paribas Securities (Asia) 2, 747,950,530 /
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Limited 2019 10 25
(Credit Suisse 2&8?8’925’000 /
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited)
1,708,089,160 /
(Deutsche Securities Asia Limited) 2020
IMC IMC 79 /
Asia Pacific Limited 2019 14
(Optiver Trading Hong Kong 23,500,000 /
- 2020 16
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ETF ETF

http://etf_chinaamc.com.hk/HKen/CS1300

ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
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Independent auditor®"s report

To the unitholders of ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF (a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF
Series (the "Trust") and referred to as the "Sub-Fund) set out on pages 11 to 39 which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial disposition of the
Sub-Fund as at 31 December 2019, and of its financial transactions and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("1SAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Sub-Fund in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code'™) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying financial statements.
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Independent auditor™s report (continued)

To the unitholders of ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Existence and valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2019, financial assets at fair | We obtained independent confirmation from the
value through profit or Jloss amounted to | custodians of the investment portfolio held at 31
RMB17,264,823,312 which represented 99.33% of the | December 2019, and agreed the quantities held to the
net asset value of the Sub-Fund. These financial | Sub-Fund®s accounting records. We evaluated the design
assets were listed shares on the Shanghai Stock | and tested the operating effectiveness of financial
Exchange or the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and there | instrument valuation controls. In addition, we tested
were 300 constituent listed shares in the Sub- | the valuation of the financial assets at fair value
Fund. They were kept by custodians and measured at | through profit or loss that were quoted in active
fair value. We focused on this area because the | markets by independently agreeing the valuation of
financial assets at fair value through profit or | financial assets to third party vendor sources at 31
loss represented the principal element of the | December 2019.

financial statements and significant assumptions
and judgements were involved in measuring the fair | For suspended shares in which quoted prices cannot be
value of the suspended shares. obtained, we evaluated the valuation techniques and
inputs applied through comparison with the valuation
Refer to disclosures on fair values of financial | techniques that are commonly used in the market and
instruments in notes 11 and 12 to the financial | the validation of observable inputs to external market
statements. data. In addition, we evaluated the appropriateness of
the assumptions made by the Manager.

We assessed the adequacy of disclosures relating to
the fair value of financial instruments, as set out in
notes 11 and 12 to the financial statements, against
the requirements of IFRS.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor®s report thereon

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-Fund are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Independent auditor™s report (continued)

To the unitholders of ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Trustee for the financial statements

The Manager and the Trustee are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the Manager and the
Trustee determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager and the Trustee are responsible for assessing the
Sub-Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager and the Trustee either
intend to liquidate the Sub-Fund or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-Fund are required to ensure that the financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the
trust deed dated 28 May 2012 as amended or supplemented from time to time (‘"the Trust Deed™) and the
relevant disclosure provisions of Appendix E of the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds (the "SFC
Code™) issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements. In addition, we are required to assess whether the financial statements of the
Sub-Fund have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure provisions of Appendix E of the
SFC Code.
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Independent auditor™s report (continued)

To the unitholders of ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-Fund®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Manager and the Trustee.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager and the Trustee®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-Fund"s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor"s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Sub-Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Manager and the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Manager and the Trustee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Independent auditor™s report (continued)

To the unitholders of ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Manager and the Trustee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor®s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on matters under the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant
disclosure provisions of Appendix E of the SFC Code

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure

provisions of Appendix E of the SFC Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor®s report is Wong Man Kin.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
27 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’ s Report
To the Board of Directors of China Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited (the “
and its subsidiaries (the “ Group” ) set out on pages 6 to 37, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

Company” )

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“ HKFRSs” ) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“ HKICPA” ).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“ HKSAs” ) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA' s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“ the Code” ), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the report of the directors, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’ s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’ s Report

To the Board of Directors of China Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited (Continued)
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Other Information (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, 1in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor
" s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’ s Report
To the Board of Directors of China Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited (Continued)
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’ s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with directors of the Company regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 March 2020
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